
  

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Monday, November 18, 2024 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – 6:45PM 
 

FY2025 BUDGET 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 

II. PRESENTATION – FY2025 Budget – Director of Finance, Jeannette Kelly  

 

III. DISCUSSION  
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 7PM  
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation   

 
 

 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 
 

IV. ROLL CALL – City Clerk Vickie McGownd  

 

 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation  

 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2024 
 

B. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2024 

 

 



VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

  

A. Thursday, November 21, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
 

B. Monday, December 2, 2024 – City Council (7:00pm) 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. Eagle Scout Proclamation – Everett Jennings 
 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. Reappointment – Matt Adams – Architectural Review Board 
 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Dan Hurt, Ward 
III 

 
1. Proposed Bill No. 3526 – Public Street Acceptance – Alexander 

Woods: An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of a portion of 

Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive in Alexander Woods as a public 
street in the City of Chesterfield.  City Staff estimates that this 

additional 2,400 square yards of pavement on Chesterfield Ridge 
Center Drive will cost the City of Chesterfield approximately $8,400 
annually.  However, in this case the developer also reconstructed 

4,300 square yards of existing City pavement (Nardin Drive) in poor 
condition which saved the City $314,000 in estimated reconstruction 
costs. (First Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee 

recommends approval.  
 

2. Proposed Bill No. 3527 – P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield 
(Unified Development Code – Article 4): An amendment to Article 
4 of the Unified Development Code for modification to the City’s Tree

List. (First Reading) Planning Commission recommends approval. 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.

 
3. Next Meeting – November 21, 2024 

 

B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Barb 
McGuinness, Ward I 

 

1. Proposed Resolution 502 – A Resolution adopting the budget for 
the City of Chesterfield for the year beginning on January 1, 2025 

and ending on December 31, 2025. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

2. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled  

 



C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Gary Budoor, 
Ward IV 

 

1. Emeritus Status Recommendation, Alan Politte – The Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Committee unanimously recommended granting 
former Councilmember Alan Politte Emeritus Status for the Parks, 

Recreation, and Arts Citizens Advisory Committee per City Council 
Policy #1, which allows up to four Members Emeritus on Non-

Statutory Committees. (Voice Vote) Parks Recreation and Arts 
Committee recommends approval. 
 

2. Dog Park Fee – Recommendation to increase annual dog park 
membership fees by the amount of $5 per dog for the upcoming 
year. (Roll Call Vote) Parks Recreation and Arts Committee 

recommends approval. 
 

3. Forestry Management Alternative Program & Funding - City 
Council previously approved the proposed Forestry Management 
Program and funding dependent upon partial funding of year one 

expenses from State grant sources.  That grant was unsuccessful 
and Staff created an alternative proposal to reduce costs and self-

perform portions of the work.  The Parks, Recreation and Arts 
Committee unanimously endorsed the alternative Forestry 
Management proposal, a multi-year agreement with Native 

Landscape Solutions, and an associated 2025 budget transfer from 
Parks Fund – Fund Reserves in the amount of $61,697.  (Roll Call 
Vote) Parks Recreation and Arts Committee recommends 

approval.  
 

4. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 

D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Aaron Wahl, Ward 

II 
 

1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
X. REPORT FROM CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 

 
A. Parks Grant Acceptance Agreement - The City was successfully 

awarded a $575,000 Municipal Parks Grant for the replacement of the 
Central Park Playground, as previously authorized by City Council.  I, as 
City Administrator request Council to consider authorizing the following: 

1. Execute the Municipal Parks Grant acceptance agreement, and 
2. Authorize a 2025 budget transfer in the amount of $1,450,000 in 

additional expenditures and $575,000 in additional revenues, and 

3. Authorize the City Administrator to execute an agreement with Play 
and Park Structures in an amount not to exceed $1,450,000. 

(A Roll Call Vote is required) 
 



B. Liquor License – Sushi Boat – 84 Clarkson Wilson – requested a new 
liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor, drinks to be 
consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. There are no known 

outstanding municipal violations at this location. (Voice Vote) 
 

C. Parks Vehicle Early Order Recommendation – Due to an order cut-off 

date specified in the State Cooperative Procurement Contract, I am 
requesting authorization to place an order in December of 2024, for four 

parks maintenance vehicles which are authorized in the 2025 fiscal year 
budget.  The actual expense will occur in 2025.  In addition to the 
authorization to place the vehicle order in the 2024 fiscal year, I am also 

requesting authorization to perform the associated budget transaction 
accounting as necessary per the City’s modified accrual fiscal 
procedures.  (Roll Call Vote) City Administrator recommends 

approval. 
 

D. North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Bid Recommendation Bid 
Recommendation – 2024 North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project: 
Recommendation to accept the low bid submitted by Kelpe Contracting 

and to authorize the City Administrator to enter into an Agreement with 
Kelpe Contracting in an amount not to exceed $4,834,000 to construct 

sanitary sewer improvements on North Outer 40.  All construction costs 
to Kelpe will be refunded to the City from a State ARPA grant ($2 million) 
or Gateway Studios (all remaining costs over $2 million).  In addition to 

the contract with Kelpe, the recommendation also includes execution of a 
construction engineering contract with HR Green in an amount not to 
exceed $115,000 (from the City’s Capital Projects Fund) and the 

execution of two budget amendments necessary to fund these 
expenditures. (Roll Call Vote) Department of Public Works 

recommends approval. 
 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3528 – Schaeffer’s Grove (Lot 16A, Lot 17A): An 
ordinance providing for the approval of a Boundary Adjustment Plat for 
Lots 16A and 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove Subdivision Plat 1. (First and 

Second Readings) Department of Planning recommends approval. 
 

B. Proposed Bill No. 3524 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 
Missouri establishing the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business 
District; making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing 

certain actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a severability 
clause. (NO ACTION REQUIRED at this meeting; Second Reading held 

until January 2025) 
 

XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s 
representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real 
estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with 
employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work 
product, on behalf of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations 
with employee groups (RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 
610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE 
MCGOWND AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING 



Fund Revenue Expenditures Revenue Expenditures Revenue Expenditures

General 23,432,786 (12,614,345) 24,033,657 (13,133,015) 600,871 (518,670)
Parks 10,022,715 (9,225,280) 9,995,965 (9,249,560) (26,750) (24,280)
Capital 6,715,000 (8,432,850) 7,454,950 (8,129,255) 739,950 303,595
Public Safety 4,299,300 (13,329,742) 4,480,700 (13,633,208) 181,400 (303,466)
TOTAL 44,469,801 (43,602,217) 45,965,272 (44,145,038) 1,495,471 (542,821)
NET REVENUE

13,896,607 17,425,495
67% 77%

Fund
General 20,182,655 21,185,945 23,432,786 23,432,786 23,978,236 24,033,657
Parks 8,870,160 9,278,515 9,476,465 9,476,465 10,074,384 9,995,965
Capital 5,502,900 6,005,000 6,660,000 6,660,000 6,800,000 6,936,000
Public Safety 3,673,206 4,009,878 4,299,300 4,299,300 4,389,392 4,480,700
TOTAL 38,228,921 40,479,338 43,868,551 43,868,551 45,242,012 45,446,322
% Increase YoY 5.9% 8.4% 8.4% 11.8% 0.5%

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD
REVENUE  (WITHOUT TRANSFERS AND GRANTS)

2022
Amended
Budget

Revenues

2023
Amended
Budget

Revenues

2025 PROPOSED BUDGET 2024 VS. 2025

1,820,234

2024 Adopted
Budget

Revenues

2024
Amended
Budget

Revenues

2024
Estimated
Revenues

2025 Proposed Budget includes 4.0% merit increases for non-FOP employees and 4% step for FOP
employees.  One additional Project Manager is also included.

2025 Proposed
Budget

Revenues

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD

867,584 952,650

2024 ADOPTED BUDGET

General Fund
Reserves

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES (WITHOUT TRANSFERS)



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Municipal Taxes

4101 Utility taxes electric 4,223,380.51 3,838,000.00 3,990,000.00 3,990,000.00 4,080,000.00
4102 Utility taxes gas 1,438,382.19 1,161,500.00 1,377,000.00 1,377,000.00 1,402,500.00
4103 Utility taxes telephone 2,276,174.28 688,750.00 625,000.00 625,000.00 637,500.00
4104 Utility taxes water 1,158,608.41 873,650.00 980,000.00 980,000.00 1,173,000.00
4200 Sales tax 8,566,740.69 7,600,250.00 8,740,000.00 8,740,000.00 9,129,000.00

Municipal Taxes Totals $17,663,286.08 $14,162,150.00 $15,712,000.00 $15,712,000.00 $16,422,000.00
Intergovernmental

4300 Motor fuel tax 1,796,668.02 1,528,200.00 1,665,000.00 1,665,000.00 1,785,000.00
4310 Motor vehicle sales tax 757,590.18 695,000.00 750,000.00 750,000.00 765,000.00
4320 Cigarette taxes 81,568.87 82,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 75,000.00
4330 County road & bridge tax 2,023,055.95 2,136,150.00 2,310,000.00 2,310,000.00 2,269,500.00

Intergovernmental Totals $4,658,883.02 $4,441,350.00 $4,805,000.00 $4,805,000.00 $4,894,500.00
License and Permits

4400 Business licenses 597,459.55 576,000.00 585,000.00 585,000.00 585,000.00
4410 Liquor licenses 91,747.50 81,000.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 90,000.00
4420 Vending licenses 13,442.25 10,500.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00
4430 Franchise Fees 661,023.05 677,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 450,000.00
4450 Trash haulers license 620.00 570.00 600.00 600.00 600.00
4460 Alarm licenses 1,677.00 1,000.00 600.00 600.00 600.00
4470 Cigarette licenses 3,637.50 3,600.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 3,600.00
4480 Billboard bus. lic. fee 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00
4490 Misc. other licenses/permits 67,975.00 20,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00

License and Permits Totals $1,437,781.85 $1,369,870.00 $1,381,000.00 $1,381,000.00 $1,181,000.00
Charges for Services

4510 Engineering inspection fees 28,219.00 15,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
4530 Zoning applications 16,036.00 12,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00
4535 Residential Street Tree Program 40,100.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
4560 Planning misc. charges .00 100.00 .00 .00 .00
4590 Miscellaneous other charges 5,601.30 5,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
4825 Clarkson Valley Court Services 48,894.00 48,894.00 50,067.00 50,067.00 51,318.00

Charges for Services Totals $138,850.30 $120,994.00 $135,067.00 $135,067.00 $136,318.00
Court Fines and Fees

4800 Court fines & fees 794,172.63 775,000.00 775,000.00 775,000.00 795,000.00
4820 Cvc fees 1,779.99 1,500.00 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,800.00
4880 Alternative Court 5,500.00 .00 .00 .00 2,500.00

Court Fines and Fees Totals $801,452.62 $776,500.00 $776,750.00 $776,750.00 $799,300.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 1 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 855,058.79 75,000.00 375,000.00 375,000.00 350,000.00
4903 Gain/loss on investments 159,606.85 .00 .00 .00 .00

Investment Income Totals $1,014,665.64 $75,000.00 $375,000.00 $375,000.00 $350,000.00
Miscellaneous

4920 Insurance reimbursement 1,811.70 .00 .00 .00 .00
4921 NID reimbursement 110,480.42 80,081.00 78,969.00 78,969.00 76,857.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Chesterfield Hill 84.0000 112.53 9,452.52
City Administrator Broadmoor 152.0000 443.45 67,404.40

City Administrator Totals $76,856.92

4932 National Opioids Settlement 9,580.19 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 13,682.00
4940 Sale of fixed assets 266,426.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00
4950 Miscellaneous 108,391.67 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

Miscellaneous Totals $496,689.98 $240,081.00 $247,969.00 $247,969.00 $250,539.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $26,211,609.49 $21,185,945.00 $23,432,786.00 $23,432,786.00 $24,033,657.00
REVENUE TOTALS $26,211,609.49 $21,185,945.00 $23,432,786.00 $23,432,786.00 $24,033,657.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 2 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   011 - Legislative
Personnel Services

Salaries
5114 Salaries elected officials 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00

Salaries Totals $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 4,622.63 4,590.00 4,590.00 4,590.00 4,590.00
5122 Workers compensation 160.00 160.00 160.00 160.00 155.00
5125 Insurance life 1,208.40 1,416.00 1,420.00 1,420.00 1,450.00

Benefits Totals $5,991.03 $6,166.00 $6,170.00 $6,170.00 $6,195.00
Personnel Services Totals $65,991.03 $66,166.00 $66,170.00 $66,170.00 $66,195.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising .00 .00 300.00 300.00 300.00
5249 Memberships & subscriptions 350.00 850.00 850.00 850.00 1,100.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Metro Mayors Membership 1.0000 350.00 350.00
City Administrator Lafayette Area Mayors Association 1.0000 750.00 750.00

City Administrator Totals $1,100.00

5251 Contractual .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5277 Training & continuing education 1,302.58 3,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator STL County Muni League Installation 1.0000 30.00 30.00
City Administrator Progress 64 meetings 6.0000 45.00 270.00
City Administrator Chamber of Commerce Meetings 12.0000 25.00 300.00
City Administrator Chamber Board of Director  Meetings 12.0000 25.00 300.00
City Administrator Kiwanis Prayer Breakfast 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Elected Offical training\education 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00

City Administrator Totals $3,200.00

Contractual Services Totals $1,652.58 $5,050.00 $5,350.00 $5,350.00 $5,600.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 964.00 3,277.00 2,728.00 2,728.00 3,560.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Department Website Photos 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator Mayor Photo 1.0000 300.00 300.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 3 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   011 - Legislative
Commodities

City Administrator Mayor Photo Frame 1.0000 325.00 325.00
City Administrator Mayor Council photo frame 1.0000 325.00 325.00
City Administrator other supplies 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Mayor/Council photo 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator Installation reception 1.0000 1,400.00 1,400.00

City Administrator Totals $3,560.00

5343 Uniforms 523.66 720.00 720.00 720.00 720.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator City Logo Shirts for Elected Officials 18.0000 40.00 720.00

City Administrator Totals $720.00

Commodities Totals $1,487.66 $3,997.00 $3,448.00 $3,448.00 $4,280.00

Division   011 - Legislative Totals $69,131.27 $75,213.00 $74,968.00 $74,968.00 $76,075.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 4 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   031 - Customer Service
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 41,038.20 39,281.00 42,920.00 42,920.00 43,590.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 35,156.68 38,536.00 40,540.00 40,540.00 43,650.00
5113 Salaries overtime .00 500.00 1,750.00 1,750.00 500.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00)

Salaries Totals $76,194.88 $77,817.00 $84,710.00 $84,710.00 $87,240.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 5,539.70 5,992.00 6,520.00 6,520.00 6,715.00
5122 Workers compensation 206.00 206.00 210.00 210.00 225.00
5124 Insurance health 9,150.03 4,964.00 13,480.00 13,480.00 14,695.00
5125 Insurance life 84.36 94.00 100.00 100.00 110.00
5126 Insurance-dental 544.58 347.00 760.00 760.00 770.00
5127 Insurance disability 101.52 137.00 150.00 150.00 155.00
5130 Retirement program 2,847.85 3,143.00 3,660.00 3,660.00 3,530.00

Benefits Totals $18,474.04 $14,883.00 $24,880.00 $24,880.00 $26,200.00
Personnel Services Totals $94,668.92 $92,700.00 $109,590.00 $109,590.00 $113,440.00

Contractual Services
5249 Memberships & subscriptions .00 .00 240.00 240.00 240.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Customer Communicator Membership 1.0000 240.00 240.00

City Administrator Totals $240.00

5277 Training & continuing education 25.75 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Customer Service Training 3.0000 150.00 450.00

City Administrator Totals $450.00

Contractual Services Totals $25.75 $450.00 $690.00 $690.00 $690.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 255.79 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Self inking date stamps 2.0000 15.00 30.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 5 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   031 - Customer Service
Commodities

City Administrator Office Chairs 1.0000 270.00 270.00
City Administrator Totals $300.00

5343 Uniforms .00 200.00 210.00 210.00 210.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Employee shirts 6.0000 35.00 210.00

City Administrator Totals $210.00

Commodities Totals $255.79 $500.00 $510.00 $510.00 $510.00

Division   031 - Customer Service Totals $94,950.46 $93,650.00 $110,790.00 $110,790.00 $114,640.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 6 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   034 - Finance
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 488,019.63 525,640.00 582,250.00 582,250.00 604,710.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary .00 15,600.00 .00 .00 .00
5113 Salaries overtime 134.46 1,000.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 3,500.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (5,000.00) (6,000.00) (6,000.00) (7,500.00)

Salaries Totals $488,154.09 $537,240.00 $577,300.00 $577,300.00 $600,710.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 36,685.78 41,482.00 44,625.00 44,625.00 46,530.00
5122 Workers compensation 1,502.00 1,502.00 1,480.00 1,480.00 1,540.00
5124 Insurance health 29,297.50 30,548.00 59,790.00 59,790.00 56,495.00
5125 Insurance life 1,362.11 1,603.00 1,670.00 1,670.00 1,780.00
5126 Insurance-dental 1,968.77 2,423.00 3,190.00 3,190.00 3,215.00
5127 Insurance disability 1,323.69 1,793.00 1,990.00 1,990.00 2,140.00
5130 Retirement program 39,153.57 42,052.00 46,670.00 46,670.00 48,660.00

Benefits Totals $111,293.42 $121,403.00 $159,415.00 $159,415.00 $160,360.00
Personnel Services Totals $599,447.51 $658,643.00 $736,715.00 $736,715.00 $761,070.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 291.66 280.00 380.00 380.00 415.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Budget Public Hearing Notice 1.0000 175.00 175.00
City Administrator Semi Annual Financials (RSMo 77.110) 2.0000 120.00 240.00

City Administrator Totals $415.00

5211 Audit services 35,850.00 36,850.00 42,000.00 42,000.00 44,800.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Annual Single Audit 1.0000 2,600.00 2,600.00
City Administrator Reporting/Audit for City due to Regional TIF 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Reporting/Audit for City due to SBD-WHV 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Preparation Services 1.0000 7,400.00 7,400.00
City Administrator Financial Audit 1.0000 28,800.00 28,800.00

City Administrator Totals $44,800.00

5221 Data processing 149.00 5,500.00 .00 .00 .00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 7 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   034 - Finance
Contractual Services

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 2,715.12 3,408.00 3,410.00 3,410.00 2,545.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator SHRM Certification-CP (not due until 2026) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator SHRM Certification-PHR (due in 2026) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator GASB Accounting Standards Update 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator MO Department of Revenue - Annual Report 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator PSHR-Public Sector HR Membership-St Louis 1.0000 125.00 125.00
City Administrator GAAFR Plus Online Subscription 1.0000 150.00 150.00
City Administrator GFOA Memberships-Missouri 2.0000 75.00 150.00
City Administrator PSHR-Public Sector HR Membership-National 1.0000 175.00 175.00
City Administrator SHRM Membership 1.0000 275.00 275.00
City Administrator GFOA Membership (2 included)-National 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Professional Licenses 1.0000 450.00 450.00
City Administrator GFOA Budget Award 1.0000 600.00 600.00

City Administrator Totals $2,545.00

5251 Contractual 240.00 460.00 464.00 464.00 365.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CUSIP Annual Maintenance Fee 1.0000 125.00 125.00
City Administrator STL County sales tax listing 12.0000 20.00 240.00

City Administrator Totals $365.00

5260 Printing & binding 4,493.17 3,866.00 5,270.00 5,270.00 4,270.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Envelopes 9x12 catalog (next purchase 2026) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator 1099 forms 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator W-2 / 1095C envelopes 2.0000 135.00 270.00
City Administrator Envelopes #10 window (qty 1500) 1.0000 270.00 270.00
City Administrator W-2 / 1095C forms 2.0000 170.00 340.00
City Administrator Business Cards (sets of 250) 7.0000 50.00 350.00
City Administrator Vending machine decal stickers (licensing-qty 500) 1.0000 420.00 420.00
City Administrator Check stock (qty 10000) 1.0000 480.00 480.00
City Administrator Asset tags with bar codes 1.0000 700.00 700.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 8 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   034 - Finance
Contractual Services

City Administrator Check envelopes (qty 5000) 1.0000 1,230.00 1,230.00
City Administrator Totals $4,270.00

5261 Professional services 610.00 1,110.00 1,110.00 1,110.00 1,150.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Financial services 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator ACFR review 1.0000 650.00 650.00

City Administrator Totals $1,150.00

5277 Training & continuing education 2,095.85 6,450.00 7,820.00 7,820.00 7,850.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator GFOA Annual GAAP Update 1.0000 175.00 175.00
City Administrator GFOA-STL Lunch Meetings 24.0000 20.00 480.00
City Administrator GFOA Training Webinars 4.0000 135.00 540.00
City Administrator GFOA-MO Day Seminars (Fall and Winter) 2.0000 270.00 540.00
City Administrator SHRM-Women's Leadership Institute 1.0000 765.00 765.00
City Administrator GFOA-MO Annual Conference (Spring) 2.0000 550.00 1,100.00
City Administrator IPMA/PSHRA-HR Central Region Conference 1.0000 1,250.00 1,250.00
City Administrator GFOA National Conference (Washington DC) 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $7,850.00

Contractual Services Totals $46,444.80 $57,924.00 $60,454.00 $60,454.00 $61,395.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 797.21 1,025.00 1,615.00 1,615.00 4,820.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Office Chairs 2.0000 695.00 1,390.00
City Administrator Office Supplies 1.0000 1,430.00 1,430.00
City Administrator Cubicle Partitions for reconfiguration (per Facility Sup.) 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00

City Administrator Totals $4,820.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 9 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   034 - Finance
Commodities

5343 Uniforms .00 280.00 350.00 350.00 400.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Shirts for Finance 8.0000 50.00 400.00

City Administrator Totals $400.00

Commodities Totals $797.21 $1,305.00 $1,965.00 $1,965.00 $5,220.00

Division   034 - Finance Totals $646,689.52 $717,872.00 $799,134.00 $799,134.00 $827,685.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 10 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Personnel Services

Salaries
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (5,000.00)

Salaries Totals $0.00 ($5,000.00) ($5,000.00) ($5,000.00) ($5,000.00)
Benefits

5124 Insurance health 52,041.46 52,684.00 50,334.00 50,334.00 19,130.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Bridge to Medicare-Single Medical Insurance Plan 1.0000 5,885.00 5,885.00
City Administrator Bridge to Medicare-Family Medical Insurance Plan 1.0000 13,245.00 13,245.00

City Administrator Totals $19,130.00

5125 Insurance life 228.00 .00 690.00 690.00 690.00
5126 Insurance-dental 3,250.07 2,188.00 2,399.00 2,399.00 865.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Bridge to Medicare-Dental Single (High Option) 1.0000 346.00 346.00
City Administrator Bridge to Medicare-Dental Single +1 (High Option) 1.0000 519.00 519.00

City Administrator Totals $865.00

5131 Health reimbursement 98,438.32 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Benefits Totals $153,957.85 $154,872.00 $153,423.00 $153,423.00 $120,685.00

Personnel Services Totals $153,957.85 $149,872.00 $148,423.00 $148,423.00 $115,685.00
Contractual Services

5210 Advertising 6,298.08 21,300.00 47,900.00 47,900.00 34,085.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator (051) Chamber Out & About Directory & Enhanced Website 1.0000 35.00 35.00
City Administrator (084) Meta Boosted Posts 8.0000 50.00 400.00
City Administrator (085) Google Ads, BandsInTown, & Jambase 12.0000 125.00 1,500.00
City Administrator (084) Westnews Magazine Senior Calendar 12.0000 150.00 1,800.00
City Administrator (089) Sports Destination Management 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator (089) Billboards 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator (085) Billboards 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator (089) Meta Boosted Posts 40.0000 50.00 2,000.00
City Administrator (085) Radio 20.0000 125.00 2,500.00
City Administrator (051) Meta Boosted Posts 65.0000 50.00 3,250.00
City Administrator (085) Meta Boosted Posts 80.0000 50.00 4,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 11 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

City Administrator (051) Westnews Magazine Promo Ads 3.0000 1,400.00 4,200.00
City Administrator (084) Westnews Magazine Events/Programs Ads 6.0000 1,400.00 8,400.00

City Administrator Totals $34,085.00

5212 Boards & commissions program 973.29 1,760.00 13,850.00 13,850.00 1,760.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Volunteer Appreciation Dinner (scheduled even years) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator Citizen of the Year Award & Reception (March 2025) 1.0000 1,750.00 1,750.00

City Administrator Totals $1,760.00

5222 Education Reimb/Training 7,490.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Tuition Reimbursement Program 5.0000 2,500.00 12,500.00

City Administrator Totals $12,500.00

5224 Employee recruitment 20,663.20 26,750.00 33,150.00 33,150.00 45,750.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator American Checked Credit Checks 10.0000 15.00 150.00
City Administrator Governmentjobs.com Job postings (5 posting bundle) 2.0000 600.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Employee Recruitment-LinkedIn job postings 2.0000 600.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Employee Referral Program (Year 2) 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Job Fairs throughout the year 5.0000 500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Other Recruitment Efforts 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator AAIMEA Background Services 50.0000 65.00 3,250.00
City Administrator Athletico Physical Proficiency Tests 30.0000 175.00 5,250.00
City Administrator Florissant Psychological Assessments-PD 15.0000 400.00 6,000.00
City Administrator St Luke's Pre-employment Physical/drug screen 60.0000 125.00 7,500.00
City Administrator Employee Referral Program (Year 1) 15.0000 1,000.00 15,000.00

City Administrator Totals $45,750.00

5225 Employee relations 17,188.60 17,178.00 31,475.00 31,475.00 17,305.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Employee Service Awards ( 5 year) 1.0000 75.00 75.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (15 year) 2.0000 175.00 350.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 12 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

City Administrator Employee Service Awards-Certificates, Letters 19.0000 20.00 380.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (10 year) 4.0000 125.00 500.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (20 year) 3.0000 200.00 600.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (25 year) 3.0000 300.00 900.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (35 year) 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Fall Potluck/may be Bi-Monthly Department Recognition if approve 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Employee Appreciation Barbecue 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Employee Service Awards (30 year) 4.0000 400.00 1,600.00
City Administrator Exemplary Performer Awards 8.0000 200.00 1,600.00
City Administrator Flowers for Illness/Births/Deaths 36.0000 100.00 3,600.00
City Administrator Holiday Awards Luncheon 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $17,305.00

5230 Historical committee .00 .00 .00 .00 2,340.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Website Hosting 12.0000 70.00 840.00
City Administrator Website Maintenance 10.0000 150.00 1,500.00

City Administrator Totals $2,340.00

5233 Credit Card Fee 3,187.57 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 25,000.00
5240 Insurance 577,371.01 681,620.00 779,497.00 779,497.00 973,225.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Notary insurance 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator MO Petroleum Storage Tank Insurance 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator Fiduciary Liability 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00
City Administrator Public Employee Dishonesty Bond 1.0000 3,900.00 3,900.00
City Administrator Logan Park GL/Excess 1.0000 6,875.00 6,875.00
City Administrator Unemployment Insurance 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Additional Flood (N. Outer 40/Public Works Drive) 1.0000 13,400.00 13,400.00
City Administrator Cyber Liability 1.0000 16,200.00 16,200.00
City Administrator SLAIT Deductibles/Retention 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator D&O/Employment Practices Liability 1.0000 77,000.00 77,000.00
City Administrator General Liability/Auto Liability 1.0000 321,000.00 321,000.00
City Administrator Commercial Package 1.0000 500,850.00 500,850.00

City Administrator Totals $973,225.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 13 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment .00 1,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 11,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Office Equipment Repairs 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Folder/Inserter Maintenance Agreement 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Copier Maintenance Agreement 12.0000 750.00 9,000.00

City Administrator Totals $11,000.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 8,514.86 15,840.00 15,980.00 15,980.00 16,065.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Sam's Club (1 primary/2 add on membership cards) 1.0000 240.00 240.00
City Administrator Chesterfield Chamber of Commerce 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Progress 64 West 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Municipal League of Metro St. Louis 1.0000 7,200.00 7,200.00
City Administrator Missouri Municipal League per capita dues 1.0000 7,425.00 7,425.00

City Administrator Totals $16,065.00

5251 Contractual 34,089.48 33,520.00 34,940.00 34,940.00 39,160.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Document shredding-courts/finance 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Other 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator General Code - Annual on-line maintenance fee 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Hazardous Waste destruction 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Document Shredding - 7 containers (monthly) 12.0000 130.00 1,560.00
City Administrator General Code - Quarterly Code of Ord Updates 4.0000 1,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator Bank fees 12.0000 2,500.00 30,000.00

City Administrator Totals $39,160.00

5252 Postage 20,553.52 25,500.00 25,540.00 25,540.00 25,570.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator presort permit fee 1.0000 320.00 320.00
City Administrator UPS & FedEx shipments 1.0000 1,250.00 1,250.00
City Administrator USPS postage 1.0000 24,000.00 24,000.00

City Administrator Totals $25,570.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 14 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

5260 Printing & binding 910.85 675.00 3,755.00 3,755.00 660.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Deposit Slips for Bank 4.0000 165.00 660.00

City Administrator Totals $660.00

5261 Professional services 20,623.74 39,614.00 28,267.00 28,267.00 28,870.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Paylocity-COBRA Annual Renewal Fees 1.0000 150.00 150.00
City Administrator Federal & State Labor Law Posters (all facilities) 3.0000 50.00 150.00
City Administrator Construction Billing fees (Ameren) 1.0000 175.00 175.00
City Administrator Federal Motor Carrier Safety Admin Drug & Alcohol Clearinghouse 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator Paylocity-FSA-HRA Annual Renewal Fees 2.0000 150.00 300.00
City Administrator Empower Plan Amendment Fees (1 per plan) 2.0000 300.00 600.00
City Administrator Empower Recordkeeping fees 2.0000 750.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Paylocity-COBRA Administration 12.0000 175.00 2,100.00
City Administrator Paylocity-FSA Processing 12.0000 250.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Drug testing (random) 35.0000 125.00 4,375.00
City Administrator Mercy-EAP Quarterly 4.0000 1,170.00 4,680.00
City Administrator Paylocity-HRA Processing 12.0000 970.00 11,640.00

City Administrator Totals $28,870.00

5262 Public relations 60,418.25 59,000.00 67,600.00 84,558.00 69,280.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Public Relations, postage, stock photos, volunteeer expenses) 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator Citizen Newsletter - Postage 4.0000 5,670.00 22,680.00
City Administrator Citizen Newsletter - Printing 4.0000 10,650.00 42,600.00

City Administrator Totals $69,280.00

5263 Subdivision beautification .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator River Valley Roundabout & Landscape Island per contract 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00

City Administrator Totals $1,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 15 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

5264 Legal services 588,939.59 369,500.00 375,000.00 448,334.00 395,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Prosecutors - trial services, add'l fees 12.0000 750.00 9,000.00
City Administrator Labor Attorney 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Special Counsel Development Attorney 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Other Legal Expenses 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Prosecutors (Engelmeyer & Pezzani) 12.0000 3,875.00 46,500.00
City Administrator City Attorney 12.0000 25,000.00 300,000.00

City Administrator Totals $395,500.00

5268 Rental equipment 12,185.99 19,600.00 7,600.00 7,600.00 5,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Other Office Rental Equipment 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Mailing System Annual Lease 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $5,000.00

5276 Telephone 80,485.76 85,150.00 85,400.00 85,400.00 87,654.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Zoom Teleconferencing Subscription 12.0000 600.00 7,200.00
City Administrator Phone System/VM/Call Recording Maint Contract 1.0000 9,000.00 9,000.00
City Administrator Cell Phone Service & Hardware - PK 22.0000 442.00 9,724.00
City Administrator Cell Phone Service & Hardware - CH 26.0000 442.00 11,492.00
City Administrator Cell Phone Service & Hardware - PD 39.0000 442.00 17,238.00
City Administrator Spectrum Business Phone & Internet (land lines) 12.0000 2,750.00 33,000.00

City Administrator Totals $87,654.00

5277 Training & continuing education 3,807.16 4,700.00 8,225.00 8,225.00 6,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Communications Training 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Webinars 8.0000 250.00 2,000.00
City Administrator General Staff Training 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00

City Administrator Totals $6,000.00

5284 MSD Impervious charge .00 .00 .00 .00 31,100.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 16 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Contractual Services

5289 Wellness program 452.50 2,000.00 11,300.00 11,300.00 1,810.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Wellness Grant - SLAIT (every other year) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator Other wellness expenses 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator Health Club/Fitness Class Reimbursements 10.0000 50.00 500.00
City Administrator Wellness Program Supplies 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Wellness Seminars 2.0000 275.00 550.00

City Administrator Totals $1,810.00

5975 Allocation (139,200.00) (139,200.00) (139,200.00) (139,200.00) (358,362.00)

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator PK - Insurance (Property/Auto/GL/Flood/Logan) 1.0000 (225,000.00) (225,000.00)
City Administrator PD - Insurance (Property/Auto/GL) 1.0000 (105,000.00) (105,000.00)
City Administrator PD - Cellphones Service & Hardware 39.0000 (442.00) (17,238.00)
City Administrator PK - Cellphones Service & Hardware 22.0000 (442.00) (9,724.00)
City Administrator PD - Copier Maintenance 12.0000 (100.00) (1,200.00)
City Administrator PK - Copier Maintenance 2.0000 (100.00) (200.00)

City Administrator Totals ($358,362.00)

Contractual Services Totals $1,324,953.45 $1,284,507.00 $1,459,279.00 $1,549,571.00 $1,472,772.00
Commodities

5325 Miscellaneous supplies 15,442.50 13,000.00 15,880.00 15,880.00 18,600.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator City of Chesterfield Envelopes and Letterhead 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Flags for Facilities (American Heritage) Set-City, MO, US 3.0000 1,700.00 5,100.00
City Administrator Kitchen supplies, Meeting supplies and refreshments 1.0000 8,500.00 8,500.00

City Administrator Totals $18,600.00

5330 Office supplies 14,634.53 16,500.00 16,780.00 16,780.00 16,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator mailing system & folder/inserter supplies 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Copier paper (40 cases, 4 times per year) 160.0000 45.00 7,200.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 17 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   036 - Central Services
Commodities

City Administrator Office Supplies, name tags, proc frames, etc. 1.0000 8,800.00 8,800.00
City Administrator Totals $16,500.00

Commodities Totals $30,077.03 $29,500.00 $32,660.00 $32,660.00 $35,100.00
Other finance use and source

Operating Transfers Out
5990 Operating transfers out 12,239,701.53 8,836,222.00 9,368,873.00 12,293,873.00 9,586,773.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Reserve Used from Fund #428 for COPS 2020B-2025 1.0000 (330,481.00) (330,481.00)
City Administrator COPS 2020B DS GF Transfer (Fund 430)-2025 1.0000 768,626.00 768,626.00
City Administrator Transfer to PD (Fund 121) 1.0000 9,148,628.00 9,148,628.00

City Administrator Totals $9,586,773.00

Operating Transfers Out Totals $12,239,701.53 $8,836,222.00 $9,368,873.00 $12,293,873.00 $9,586,773.00
Other finance use and source Totals $12,239,701.53 $8,836,222.00 $9,368,873.00 $12,293,873.00 $9,586,773.00

Retirement Forfeitures
5133 Retirement forfeiture (132,907.71) (80,000.00) (100,000.00) (100,000.00) (100,000.00)

Retirement Forfeitures Totals ($132,907.71) ($80,000.00) ($100,000.00) ($100,000.00) ($100,000.00)

Division   036 - Central Services Totals $13,615,782.15 $10,220,101.00 $10,909,235.00 $13,924,527.00 $11,110,330.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:39 PM Page 18 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 670,620.27 671,554.00 644,160.00 644,160.00 668,175.00
5113 Salaries overtime .00 .00 .00 .00 1,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (1,500.00) (1,700.00) (1,700.00) (2,000.00)

Salaries Totals $670,620.27 $670,054.00 $642,460.00 $642,460.00 $667,175.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 49,714.87 51,374.00 49,280.00 49,280.00 51,190.00
5122 Workers compensation 2,232.00 2,232.00 2,010.00 2,010.00 2,090.00
5124 Insurance health 48,739.32 43,183.00 55,090.00 55,090.00 51,275.00
5125 Insurance life 1,749.79 1,958.00 1,810.00 1,810.00 1,930.00
5126 Insurance-dental 2,248.16 3,115.00 2,940.00 2,940.00 2,970.00
5127 Insurance disability 1,852.84 2,292.00 2,190.00 2,190.00 2,355.00
5130 Retirement program 53,710.06 53,725.00 51,540.00 51,540.00 53,535.00

Benefits Totals $160,247.04 $157,879.00 $164,860.00 $164,860.00 $165,345.00
Personnel Services Totals $830,867.31 $827,933.00 $807,320.00 $807,320.00 $832,520.00

Contractual Services
5221 Data processing 269,132.69 268,500.00 277,400.00 277,400.00 421,321.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Laredo Software Subscription 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator PK - AMP - Elfsight, Instagram Mgmt 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator PD - Skyido - Drone Mgmt Software 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator PK - AMP - Canva 1.0000 150.00 150.00
City Administrator PK - AQU -Survey Monkey 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator Canva Graphics Suite - Communications 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator PK - AQU - When To Work Seasonal Job Board Sub 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator PK - AMP - Buffer - Social Media Mgmt 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator PD - Identi-Kit Child Identification Kit Creation for Parents 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator PK - AQU - Canva 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator PK - Citizen - Issuu Digital Publication 12.0000 44.00 528.00
City Administrator PK - AMP - Spacecraft - Amp Website 1.0000 588.00 588.00
City Administrator PW - Navistar Service Maxx 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator PD - Bosh Crash Data Recorder Software 1.0000 1,400.00 1,400.00
City Administrator PW - Navistar Maintenance Subscription 1.0000 1,400.00 1,400.00
City Administrator eMail Archive Appliance Hardware/Software Maintenance 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator PD - Faro - 3d traffic diagraming 1.0000 1,600.00 1,600.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 19 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Contractual Services

City Administrator PW - AllData Vehicle Parts Catalog 1.0000 1,700.00 1,700.00
City Administrator Adobe Software Subscription 12.0000 150.00 1,800.00
City Administrator PD - Guardian Alliance Tech - PD Hiring 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Microfilm Hardware/Software Maintenance 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator PK - AMP - Mailchimp 12.0000 180.00 2,160.00
City Administrator PD - Assisted Patrol - GPS Tracking HW/Services 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator PD - Guarding Tracking 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator PD - Misc In-Car Software/Updates 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator PD - FTO Tracker - Testing/Evaluation softwarePD - 1.0000 2,800.00 2,800.00
City Administrator PD - TLOxp Law Enforcement - Income/Credit for investigations 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator PD - LiveView GPS Tracking 12.0000 250.00 3,000.00
City Administrator VISSUM Software 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator PDF X-Change Software Renewal 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Misc. Software Licenses 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Timekeeping/Time Clock Annual Maintenance 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator PD - Berla Vehicle Forenics 1.0000 3,250.00 3,250.00
City Administrator PW - Ford Maintenance Subscription 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00
City Administrator IT Helpdesk & Auditing Software Subscription 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00
City Administrator PK - AQU - Mail Chimp 12.0000 300.00 3,600.00
City Administrator PW - GM Maintenance Subscription 1.0000 3,600.00 3,600.00
City Administrator PW - AuTEL (Primary for Dodge) 1.0000 3,600.00 3,600.00
City Administrator PK - Productive Parks Software Subscription 1.0000 3,800.00 3,800.00
City Administrator CodeTwo Subscription 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator PK - Weather Station Software Subscription 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator PW - Freightliner Maintenance Program 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator AutoCAD Civil 3D Government Subsription Renewal 3.0000 1,500.00 4,500.00
City Administrator Guardian Tracking - Non Police 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator PD - Cell Hawk Cellphone Forenics 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator PD - PowerDMS CALEA Document Management 1.0000 6,500.00 6,500.00
City Administrator PLN - CoStar Software Subscription (propery deeds) 1.0000 6,850.00 6,850.00
City Administrator VMware Licenses 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00
City Administrator Offsite Disaster Recovery Backup 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00
City Administrator PD - Evidence Tracker 1.0000 9,000.00 9,000.00
City Administrator PW - RTA Fleet Maintenance Subscription & Hosting 1.0000 10,500.00 10,500.00
City Administrator Microsoft MVL Subscription - PK 49.0000 255.00 12,495.00
City Administrator Tyler Technologies - PK 50.0000 255.00 12,750.00
City Administrator Veeam Backup Licenses/Office 365 Backup 1.0000 13,000.00 13,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 20 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Contractual Services

City Administrator eMail Security Subscription 1.0000 15,000.00 15,000.00
City Administrator PD - Cellbrite - Cellphone Forensics 1.0000 17,000.00 17,000.00
City Administrator Entrust 2FA Software 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Firewall License Subscriptions 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Microsoft MVL Subscription - CH 101.0000 255.00 25,755.00
City Administrator Tyler Technologies - CH 101.0000 255.00 25,755.00
City Administrator Microsoft MVL Subscription - PD 110.0000 255.00 28,050.00
City Administrator Tyler Technologies - PD 110.0000 255.00 28,050.00
City Administrator ESRI Enterprise License 1.0000 45,000.00 45,000.00

City Administrator Totals $421,321.00

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 9,263.02 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
5249 Memberships & subscriptions .00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
5251 Contractual 85,954.61 14,000.00 112,500.00 127,085.00 136,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CivicPlus eCode360 Integration 1.0000 4,500.00 4,500.00
City Administrator MSD Impervious Surface Data Layer (Every 2 yrs) 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator CivicPlus - CivicClerk 1.0000 6,500.00 6,500.00
City Administrator Building Security Maintenance 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00
City Administrator Server Hardware Warranties 7.0000 1,500.00 10,500.00
City Administrator CivicPlus - Parks & Rec 1.0000 15,000.00 15,000.00
City Administrator CivicPlus - Optimize 1.0000 17,500.00 17,500.00
City Administrator CivicPlus - CivicGov -PZ/Licensing/Permitting 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator CivicPlus - SeeClickFix 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator CivicPlus Website - Evolve 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00

City Administrator Totals $136,500.00

5260 Printing & binding 2,904.49 3,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 7,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Printing and Laminating - CH 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Printing and Laminating - PRK 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00

City Administrator Totals $7,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 21 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Contractual Services

5261 Professional services 2,085.00 8,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 9,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Method Computing - Consultant 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator ESRI Consulting - GIS Services 1.0000 7,000.00 7,000.00

City Administrator Totals $9,000.00

5277 Training & continuing education 11,888.78 14,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 6,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Firewall/Network Security Training 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator ESRI GIS Training 2.0000 2,500.00 5,000.00

City Administrator Totals $6,500.00

5975 Allocation (69,400.00) (69,400.00) (71,000.00) (71,000.00) (168,228.00)

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator PD - Microsoft MVL 110.0000 (255.00) (28,050.00)
City Administrator PD - Tyler Technologies 110.0000 (255.00) (28,050.00)
City Administrator PD - Cellbrite Cellphone Forensics 1.0000 (17,000.00) (17,000.00)
City Administrator PK - Microsoft MVL 49.0000 (255.00) (12,495.00)
City Administrator PK - Tyler Technologies 49.0000 (255.00) (12,495.00)
City Administrator PD - Evidence Tracker 1.0000 (9,000.00) (9,000.00)
City Administrator PD - PowerDMS CALEA Document Mangement 1.0000 (6,500.00) (6,500.00)
City Administrator PD - Cell Hawk Cellphone Forensics 1.0000 (5,500.00) (5,500.00)
City Administrator PK - Printing and Laminating 1.0000 (5,500.00) (5,500.00)
City Administrator PK - Weather Station Software Subscription 1.0000 (4,000.00) (4,000.00)
City Administrator PK - Productive Parks Software Subscription 1.0000 (3,800.00) (3,800.00)
City Administrator PD - Berla Vehicle Forensics 1.0000 (3,250.00) (3,250.00)
City Administrator PD - TLOXP Law Enf. Prem - Credit/Earnings  Investigation 12.0000 (250.00) (3,000.00)
City Administrator PD - LiveView GPS Tracking 12.0000 (250.00) (3,000.00)
City Administrator PD - FTO Tracker - Testing/Evaluation Software 1.0000 (2,800.00) (2,800.00)
City Administrator PD - Assisted Patrol GPS 1.0000 (2,500.00) (2,500.00)
City Administrator PD - Misc In-Car Software 1.0000 (2,500.00) (2,500.00)
City Administrator PD - Guardian Tracking 1.0000 (2,500.00) (2,500.00)
City Administrator PK - AMP - MailChimp 12.0000 (180.00) (2,160.00)
City Administrator PK - AQU - Mailchimp 12.0000 (180.00) (2,160.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 22 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Contractual Services

City Administrator PD - Guardian Alliance Tech Hiring Solution 1.0000 (2,000.00) (2,000.00)
City Administrator PD - Desktop Computers 2.0000 (1,000.00) (2,000.00)
City Administrator PD - Faro 3d traffic diagraming 1.0000 (1,600.00) (1,600.00)
City Administrator PD - Bosh Crash Data Recorder Software 1.0000 (1,400.00) (1,400.00)
City Administrator PK - Desktop Computers 1.0000 (1,000.00) (1,000.00)
City Administrator PK - AMP - Website 1.0000 (600.00) (600.00)
City Administrator PK - AQU - Issuu, Citizen Digital Publishing 12.0000 (44.00) (528.00)
City Administrator PK - AMP - Canva Graphics Suite 1.0000 (500.00) (500.00)
City Administrator PK - AQU - Canava 1.0000 (500.00) (500.00)
City Administrator PK - AMP - Buffer, SM Management 1.0000 (500.00) (500.00)
City Administrator PD - Identi-Kit - Child Identity Creation Kits for Parents 1.0000 (500.00) (500.00)
City Administrator PK - AQU - WhenToWork - Job Board for Seasonals 1.0000 (400.00) (400.00)
City Administrator PK - AQU - Survey Monkey 1.0000 (200.00) (200.00)
City Administrator PK - AMP - Elfsight Instragram Mgmt 1.0000 (120.00) (120.00)
City Administrator PD - Skyido - Drone Mgmt 1.0000 (120.00) (120.00)

City Administrator Totals ($168,228.00)

Contractual Services Totals $311,828.59 $253,600.00 $353,400.00 $367,985.00 $428,093.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 3,987.62 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
5342 Tools .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5343 Uniforms .00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
5350 Computer equip under $5,000 13,870.66 20,200.00 25,200.00 31,214.00 14,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Desktop Computers - PD 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Desktop Computers - Parks 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Desktop Computers - CityHall 10.0000 1,000.00 10,000.00

City Administrator Totals $14,000.00

Commodities Totals $17,858.28 $26,700.00 $31,700.00 $37,714.00 $20,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 23 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Capital Outlay

5410 Computer equipment 38,741.15 60,000.00 .00 .00 75,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Replacement Server Hardware 3.0000 25,000.00 75,000.00

City Administrator Totals $75,000.00

Capital Outlay Totals $38,741.15 $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75,000.00

Division   037 - Information Technology Totals $1,199,295.33 $1,168,233.00 $1,192,420.00 $1,213,019.00 $1,356,113.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 24 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   038 - Municipal Court
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 158,466.57 163,792.00 174,330.00 174,330.00 180,360.00
5113 Salaries overtime 1,968.80 2,000.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00)

Salaries Totals $160,435.37 $165,292.00 $176,330.00 $176,330.00 $181,860.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 11,616.01 12,684.00 13,530.00 13,530.00 13,950.00
5122 Workers compensation 515.00 498.00 430.00 430.00 445.00
5124 Insurance health 22,542.78 21,793.00 24,430.00 24,430.00 26,640.00
5125 Insurance life 340.48 475.00 400.00 400.00 425.00
5126 Insurance-dental 1,415.76 1,452.00 1,460.00 1,460.00 1,470.00
5127 Insurance disability 415.32 548.00 580.00 580.00 625.00
5130 Retirement program 12,836.52 13,104.00 14,150.00 14,150.00 14,590.00

Benefits Totals $49,681.87 $50,554.00 $54,980.00 $54,980.00 $58,145.00
Personnel Services Totals $210,117.24 $215,846.00 $231,310.00 $231,310.00 $240,005.00

Contractual Services
5221 Data processing .00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Misc. for Laptop expenses 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $500.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 330.00 300.00 330.00 330.00 375.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator MSLACA 3.0000 50.00 150.00
City Administrator MACA 3.0000 75.00 225.00

City Administrator Totals $375.00

5260 Printing & binding 3,919.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
5261 Professional services 49,903.99 47,650.00 47,650.00 47,650.00 47,650.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Interpreter Services 5.0000 60.00 300.00
City Administrator Data Destruction 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Jail Fees 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Alt. Judges/Appt. Counsel 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 25 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   038 - Municipal Court
Contractual Services

City Administrator Bank Fees for Accounts 1.0000 4,500.00 4,500.00
City Administrator Judges Salary 1.0000 36,450.00 36,450.00

City Administrator Totals $47,650.00

5277 Training & continuing education 2,268.93 3,425.00 3,425.00 3,425.00 3,425.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Misc. Training 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator MSLACA Monthly Meetings 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator MMACJA Conference Judge 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator MACA Conference Fall 1.0000 625.00 625.00
City Administrator MACA Conference Spring 1.0000 1,700.00 1,700.00

City Administrator Totals $3,425.00

5283 Alternative Court 31,900.00 .00 48,095.00 48,095.00 48,095.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Supplies 1.0000 795.00 795.00
City Administrator Judge Gaertner 12.0000 400.00 4,800.00
City Administrator Prosecutor (Engelmeyer-Pezzani) 12.0000 700.00 8,400.00
City Administrator Treatment Costs Waived for Indigent Defendants 25.0000 500.00 12,500.00
City Administrator Prosecutor (Alt. - B. Kloos) 12.0000 1,800.00 21,600.00

City Administrator Totals $48,095.00

Contractual Services Totals $88,321.92 $56,875.00 $105,000.00 $105,000.00 $105,045.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 3,320.06 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
Commodities Totals $3,320.06 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

Division   038 - Municipal Court Totals $301,759.22 $275,721.00 $339,310.00 $339,310.00 $348,050.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 26 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   051 - City Administrator
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 391,749.46 436,497.00 519,580.00 519,580.00 661,150.00
5113 Salaries overtime .00 .00 860.00 860.00 1,150.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (15,000.00) (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (10,000.00)

Salaries Totals $391,749.46 $421,497.00 $515,440.00 $515,440.00 $652,300.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 26,630.32 33,393.00 39,820.00 39,820.00 50,670.00
5122 Workers compensation 1,223.00 1,223.00 1,320.00 1,320.00 7,560.00
5124 Insurance health 25,233.00 33,659.00 43,370.00 43,370.00 66,245.00
5125 Insurance life 1,316.13 1,813.00 2,150.00 2,150.00 2,575.00
5126 Insurance-dental 1,603.57 2,137.00 2,320.00 2,320.00 3,625.00
5127 Insurance disability 1,074.45 1,481.00 1,770.00 1,770.00 2,330.00
5130 Retirement program 31,867.75 34,920.00 41,640.00 41,640.00 52,985.00

Benefits Totals $88,948.22 $108,626.00 $132,390.00 $132,390.00 $185,990.00
Personnel Services Totals $480,697.68 $530,123.00 $647,830.00 $647,830.00 $838,290.00

Contractual Services
5223 Election expense 24,118.37 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator April General Municipal Election 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00

City Administrator Totals $30,000.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 10,679.42 4,005.00 5,480.00 5,480.00 5,080.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator APWA Local 1.0000 25.00 25.00
City Administrator Professional licensure 1.0000 75.00 75.00
City Administrator SLACMA Dues 2.0000 50.00 100.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA Annual Dues (City Clerk and Deputy Clerk) 2.0000 50.00 100.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA Eastern Division Dues (City Clerk & Deputy) 2.0000 50.00 100.00
City Administrator St. Louis Business Journal 1.0000 110.00 110.00
City Administrator MCMA Dues 2.0000 75.00 150.00
City Administrator Notary Fees (City Clerk and Deputy Clerk) 2.0000 100.00 200.00
City Administrator Professional publications/memberships 1.0000 225.00 225.00
City Administrator Progress 64 West 6.0000 45.00 270.00
City Administrator ASCE Renewal 1.0000 275.00 275.00
City Administrator Post Dispatch 1.0000 290.00 290.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 27 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   051 - City Administrator
Contractual Services

City Administrator NSPE 1.0000 360.00 360.00
City Administrator IIMC Membership (City Clerk and Deputy Clerk) 2.0000 200.00 400.00
City Administrator AAME membership (City Administrator) 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator ICMA Dues (1 @ $1,200 1 @ $600) 2.0000 900.00 1,800.00

City Administrator Totals $5,080.00

5251 Contractual 1,748.28 1,000.00 10.00 10.00 12,010.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Microfilm for City Clerk office (every third year) 1.0000 10.00 10.00
City Administrator Code Enforcement Abatement Costs 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00

City Administrator Totals $12,010.00

5260 Printing & binding 100.00 1,000.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 750.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Business Cards 5.0000 50.00 250.00
City Administrator Printing Projects-fliers, invitations & reports 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $750.00

5277 Training & continuing education 12,561.33 14,730.00 17,190.00 17,190.00 20,190.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator SLACMA meetings 18.0000 15.00 270.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA December Mayor's Appreciation Meeting 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Chamber Board of Directors 12.0000 25.00 300.00
City Administrator 3CMA Annual Membership - Kirstyn 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA Regional Conference 2.0000 200.00 400.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA Eastern Division monthly meetings 12.0000 35.00 420.00
City Administrator Spring Conference MCMA 2.0000 400.00 800.00
City Administrator MCMA Fall Conference 2.0000 400.00 800.00
City Administrator MoCCFOA Spring Institute 2.0000 850.00 1,700.00
City Administrator IIMC Annual Conference (in STL-City Clerk and Deputy) 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Local Meetings (Chamber, Progress 64) 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Anniversary & New Employee Breakfasts 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator ICMA Conference 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 28 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   051 - City Administrator
Contractual Services

City Administrator MML Conferences and workshops 2.0000 2,400.00 4,800.00
City Administrator Totals $20,190.00

Contractual Services Totals $49,207.40 $50,735.00 $53,930.00 $53,930.00 $68,030.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 2,655.73 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,400.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Communications Specialist Equipment 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Admin Area Supplies 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00

City Administrator Totals $2,400.00

5343 Uniforms 151.89 500.00 750.00 750.00 1,050.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Code Enforcement Uniform Replacements 2.0000 150.00 300.00
City Administrator Admin Staff Uniforms 3.0000 250.00 750.00

City Administrator Totals $1,050.00

Commodities Totals $2,807.62 $2,500.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $3,450.00

Division   051 - City Administrator Totals $532,712.70 $583,358.00 $704,510.00 $704,510.00 $909,770.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 29 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   061 - Planning
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 622,405.86 661,401.00 736,670.00 736,670.00 732,735.00
5113 Salaries overtime 3,878.65 2,000.00 7,420.00 7,420.00 4,800.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (6,000.00) (7,500.00) (7,500.00) (7,500.00)

Salaries Totals $626,284.51 $657,401.00 $736,590.00 $736,590.00 $730,035.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 45,556.65 50,751.00 56,930.00 56,930.00 56,425.00
5122 Workers compensation 1,822.00 1,822.00 1,880.00 1,880.00 1,875.00
5124 Insurance health 80,200.86 97,951.00 105,680.00 105,680.00 90,135.00
5125 Insurance life 1,603.40 1,937.00 2,050.00 2,050.00 2,100.00
5126 Insurance-dental 4,325.84 5,210.00 5,740.00 5,740.00 5,515.00
5127 Insurance disability 1,701.57 2,265.00 2,540.00 2,540.00 2,600.00
5130 Retirement program 50,554.19 52,913.00 59,530.00 59,530.00 59,005.00

Benefits Totals $185,764.51 $212,849.00 $234,350.00 $234,350.00 $217,655.00
Personnel Services Totals $812,049.02 $870,250.00 $970,940.00 $970,940.00 $947,690.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 1,493.37 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Public Hearing Notices 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $3,000.00

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment .00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator PDS maintenance and repairs 1.0000 250.00 250.00

City Administrator Totals $250.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 8,191.40 10,700.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator TEAM 2.0000 50.00 100.00
City Administrator Institute of Transportation Engineers (Dept) 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator APA, Local (Planners & Director) 6.0000 100.00 600.00
City Administrator AICP 4.0000 325.00 1,300.00
City Administrator APA, National & State (4 planners, PDS Director) 5.0000 340.00 1,700.00

City Administrator Totals $4,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 30 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   061 - Planning
Contractual Services

5251 Contractual 14,018.86 14,100.00 15,500.00 15,500.00 15,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Midwest Litigation BOA Transcripts 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Midwest Litigation BOA stenographer 4.0000 500.00 2,000.00
City Administrator St. Louis County Property Maintenance 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Microtek (scanning and archiving) 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00

City Administrator Totals $15,500.00

5260 Printing & binding 744.97 3,800.00 3,800.00 3,800.00 3,300.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator public hearing post cards 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Public Hearing Sign Stands 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Public Hearing signs 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00

City Administrator Totals $3,300.00

5261 Professional services .00 9,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 7,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator PC Training 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Traffic Model Consulting 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00

City Administrator Totals $7,500.00

5277 Training & continuing education 1,608.62 6,950.00 7,850.00 7,850.00 7,150.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator TEAM, local events (Planners, Director) 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator APA Spring Workshop (Planners, Director) 4.0000 175.00 700.00
City Administrator Land Use Seminars, Webinars (Dept) 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator APA Local Monthly Chapter Meetings 40.0000 25.00 1,000.00
City Administrator APA State Conference (PDS Director) 1.0000 1,250.00 1,250.00
City Administrator APA National Conference (Director) 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $7,150.00

Contractual Services Totals $26,057.22 $47,800.00 $51,400.00 $51,400.00 $40,700.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 31 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   061 - Planning
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 1,879.35 1,750.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 5,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Planning supplies 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00

City Administrator Totals $5,500.00

5343 Uniforms 216.88 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Planners/Admin 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00

City Administrator Totals $1,500.00

Commodities Totals $2,096.23 $3,250.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,000.00

Division   061 - Planning Totals $840,202.47 $921,300.00 $1,029,840.00 $1,029,840.00 $995,390.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 32 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   071 - Engineering
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 735,037.69 744,101.00 725,550.00 725,550.00 757,710.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 21,525.00 19,500.00 20,400.00 20,400.00 22,100.00
5113 Salaries overtime 1,766.95 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (5,000.00) (5,500.00) (5,500.00) (7,500.00)

Salaries Totals $758,329.64 $762,601.00 $744,450.00 $744,450.00 $776,310.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 55,800.94 58,722.00 57,370.00 57,370.00 59,965.00
5122 Workers compensation 12,921.00 12,921.00 13,780.00 13,780.00 14,130.00
5124 Insurance health 60,108.22 70,794.00 66,380.00 66,380.00 72,220.00
5125 Insurance life 1,869.34 2,146.00 2,080.00 2,080.00 2,170.00
5126 Insurance-dental 4,292.59 5,350.00 5,010.00 5,010.00 4,640.00
5127 Insurance disability 2,022.39 2,545.00 2,560.00 2,560.00 2,685.00
5130 Retirement program 59,334.30 59,529.00 58,370.00 58,370.00 60,940.00

Benefits Totals $196,348.78 $212,007.00 $205,550.00 $205,550.00 $216,750.00
Personnel Services Totals $954,678.42 $974,608.00 $950,000.00 $950,000.00 $993,060.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 4,507.81 7,320.00 7,320.00 7,320.00 6,655.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Public Notices to Missouri Lawyers 7.0000 65.00 455.00
City Administrator Public Notice in Post Dispatch 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Request  For Bids in Business Journal 7.0000 600.00 4,200.00

City Administrator Totals $6,655.00

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 802.87 900.00 100.00 100.00 950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Annual calibration of retroreflectometer 1.0000 950.00 950.00

City Administrator Totals $950.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 2,512.00 3,250.00 3,326.00 3,326.00 3,325.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator MSFPM Annual Dues, JAE, JP, SM 3.0000 30.00 90.00
City Administrator International Society of Arborist membership 1.0000 240.00 240.00
City Administrator ASCE Renewal for JAE 1.0000 275.00 275.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 33 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   071 - Engineering
Contractual Services

City Administrator ASFPM Corporate Membership JE, JP, SM 3.0000 140.00 420.00
City Administrator Membership for CE (4) 4.0000 200.00 800.00
City Administrator APWA Membership Renewal for 2025 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00

City Administrator Totals $3,325.00

5251 Contractual 15,327.67 16,960.00 16,960.00 16,960.00 16,960.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Missouri One Call 12.0000 80.00 960.00
City Administrator Recording Fees 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Vector Control (e.g. St. Louis County) 1.0000 11,000.00 11,000.00

City Administrator Totals $16,960.00

5261 Professional services 11,493.36 23,000.00 16,100.00 16,100.00 15,100.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Accreditation Expenses - Placeholder 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator Engineering, Survey and Geotechnical Services 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00
City Administrator Development related design services as needed 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00

City Administrator Totals $15,100.00

5277 Training & continuing education 6,543.20 8,650.00 8,700.00 8,700.00 9,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Arborist Training - National Conference in STL 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Project Manager Training 2.0000 300.00 600.00
City Administrator Inspector training (pavement, sewer, etc) 2.0000 300.00 600.00
City Administrator Floodplain Conference 2.0000 400.00 800.00
City Administrator Local Training & Web based Training 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator APWA Branch Meetings 12.0000 100.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Civil Engineer Training 4.0000 400.00 1,600.00
City Administrator National Conference 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $9,200.00

Contractual Services Totals $41,186.91 $60,080.00 $52,506.00 $52,506.00 $52,190.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 34 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   071 - Engineering
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 1,852.91 4,300.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 4,800.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Construction Stakes, Flagging, Levels, Tapes, Vests 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator Engineering supplies / General Office Supplies 10.0000 400.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $4,800.00

5342 Tools .00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
5343 Uniforms 1,526.31 2,600.00 2,600.00 2,600.00 2,600.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Shirts 6.0000 100.00 600.00
City Administrator Inspector Uniforms 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Project Manager Uniforms 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00

City Administrator Totals $2,600.00

Commodities Totals $3,379.22 $7,400.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00 $7,900.00

Division   071 - Engineering Totals $999,244.55 $1,042,088.00 $1,010,406.00 $1,010,406.00 $1,053,150.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:40 PM Page 35 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 1,055,484.66 1,535,185.00 1,662,630.00 1,662,630.00 1,708,370.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 16,427.61 39,354.00 .00 .00 .00
5113 Salaries overtime 4,128.74 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 50,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (60,000.00) (70,000.00) (70,000.00) (75,000.00)

Salaries Totals $1,076,041.01 $1,574,539.00 $1,652,630.00 $1,652,630.00 $1,683,370.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 78,151.74 125,043.00 131,790.00 131,790.00 134,520.00
5122 Workers compensation 152,927.00 152,927.00 149,720.00 149,720.00 147,220.00
5124 Insurance health 147,196.55 221,801.00 278,720.00 278,720.00 239,505.00
5125 Insurance life 2,332.03 3,716.00 3,880.00 3,880.00 4,105.00
5126 Insurance-dental 8,461.09 14,500.00 15,680.00 15,680.00 13,740.00
5127 Insurance disability 2,775.91 5,284.00 5,660.00 5,660.00 6,050.00
5130 Retirement program 84,895.86 122,815.00 137,810.00 137,810.00 140,670.00

Benefits Totals $476,740.18 $646,086.00 $723,260.00 $723,260.00 $685,810.00
Personnel Services Totals $1,552,781.19 $2,220,625.00 $2,375,890.00 $2,375,890.00 $2,369,180.00

Contractual Services
5242 Residential Street Tree Program 57,050.00 97,500.00 97,500.00 138,050.00 122,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Street Trees 350.0000 350.00 122,500.00

City Administrator Totals $122,500.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions .00 280.00 300.00 300.00 300.00
5251 Contractual 869,943.36 347,500.00 357,944.00 367,908.00 403,910.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Hotel Rooms During Snow Operations 20.0000 95.00 1,900.00
City Administrator Contractual Hauling 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Contractual Services 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Landfill Tipping Fees 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Agilis Tracking Service 69.0000 290.00 20,010.00
City Administrator Street Sweeping 2.0000 22,000.00 44,000.00
City Administrator Street Striping 1.0000 68,000.00 68,000.00
City Administrator Tree and Stump Removal 1.0000 220,000.00 220,000.00

City Administrator Totals $403,910.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 36 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Contractual Services

5254 Snow removal reimbursement .00 .00 .00 164,871.00 .00
5268 Rental equipment 6,232.96 10,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
5275 Taxes 3,686.27 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 15,000.00
5276 Telephone 3,254.45 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
5277 Training & continuing education 2,036.20 7,470.00 7,470.00 7,470.00 5,270.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator APWA Local Meetings 10.0000 25.00 250.00
City Administrator Supintendent local training (concrete/asphalt seminar) 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Street Repair Training Day 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Winter Warm Up Snow Plow Training 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator General Street Maintenance Training 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Traffic Control Safety Training 29.0000 80.00 2,320.00

City Administrator Totals $5,270.00

5285 Utilities-electric 41,456.24 45,500.00 45,500.00 45,500.00 45,500.00
5286 Utilities-gas 8,493.40 9,500.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 11,000.00
5287 Utilities-water 3,810.38 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
5288 Utilities-sewer 2,716.06 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00

Contractual Services Totals $998,679.32 $553,750.00 $561,714.00 $777,099.00 $621,480.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 122,665.08 205,000.00 210,000.00 226,241.00 210,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Concrete and Asphalt Supplies 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Supplies for Right of Way Repairs 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Signs and Sign Materials 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Rock 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Asphalt 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00
City Administrator Concrete 1.0000 95,000.00 95,000.00

City Administrator Totals $210,000.00

5340 Salt & abrasives 39,138.76 275,000.00 290,000.00 612,363.00 290,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Other De-icing Materials 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 37 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Commodities

City Administrator De-icing Salt including delivery 3,000.0000 90.00 270,000.00
City Administrator Totals $290,000.00

5342 Tools 1,308.15 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
5343 Uniforms 12,180.62 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00

Commodities Totals $175,292.61 $497,000.00 $517,000.00 $855,604.00 $517,000.00
Capital Outlay

5440 Machinery & equipment 123,023.65 107,400.00 87,401.00 147,202.00 78,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Equipment Trailer S312 1.0000 12,500.00 12,500.00
City Administrator Planer Attachment ML14 net trade-in (est $1000) 1.0000 19,000.00 19,000.00
City Administrator Skid Steer S272 net trade-in (estimated $8,000) 1.0000 47,000.00 47,000.00

City Administrator Totals $78,500.00

Capital Outlay Totals $123,023.65 $107,400.00 $87,401.00 $147,202.00 $78,500.00

Division   072 - Street Maintenance Totals $2,849,776.77 $3,378,775.00 $3,542,005.00 $4,155,795.00 $3,586,160.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 38 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   073 - Vehicle Maintenance
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 332,061.86 335,131.00 358,340.00 358,340.00 367,420.00
5113 Salaries overtime 5,642.48 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (1,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00) (2,000.00)

Salaries Totals $337,704.34 $346,131.00 $369,340.00 $369,340.00 $377,420.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 24,541.74 26,556.00 28,340.00 28,340.00 29,375.00
5122 Workers compensation 14,022.00 14,022.00 15,810.00 15,810.00 14,725.00
5124 Insurance health 37,092.80 34,427.00 38,670.00 38,670.00 56,025.00
5125 Insurance life 751.07 877.00 840.00 840.00 885.00
5126 Insurance-dental 2,002.88 2,314.00 2,490.00 2,490.00 2,510.00
5127 Insurance disability 886.48 1,136.00 1,220.00 1,220.00 1,305.00
5130 Retirement program 27,049.44 26,811.00 29,630.00 29,630.00 30,715.00

Benefits Totals $106,346.41 $106,143.00 $117,000.00 $117,000.00 $135,540.00
Personnel Services Totals $444,050.75 $452,274.00 $486,340.00 $486,340.00 $512,960.00

Contractual Services
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 82,464.16 125,000.00 125,000.00 132,256.00 125,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Maintenance and Repair CNG Station 1.0000 15,000.00 15,000.00
City Administrator Maintenance & Repair Equipment - General 1.0000 110,000.00 110,000.00

City Administrator Totals $125,000.00

5248 Maintenance & repair vehicles 109,771.73 180,000.00 180,000.00 180,000.00 180,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator M/R Non-PD Vehicles 1.0000 90,000.00 90,000.00
City Administrator M/R PD Vehicles - See Account 5975 1.0000 90,000.00 90,000.00

City Administrator Totals $180,000.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 23,777.44 30,100.00 30,100.00 30,100.00 1,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator AEMP memberships 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00

City Administrator Totals $1,000.00

5251 Contractual 983.68 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
5268 Rental equipment 5,456.89 5,500.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 5,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 39 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   073 - Vehicle Maintenance
Contractual Services

5277 Training & continuing education 2,006.41 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,400.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Fleet Program Training 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator ASE Certification Exams 6.0000 200.00 1,200.00

City Administrator Totals $2,400.00

5975 Allocation (282,700.00) (282,700.00) (282,700.00) (282,700.00) (279,000.00)

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator PD Allocation for Gas and Oil 1.0000 (189,000.00) (189,000.00)
City Administrator PD Allocation for M/R Vehicles 1.0000 (90,000.00) (90,000.00)

City Administrator Totals ($279,000.00)

Contractual Services Totals ($58,239.69) $61,800.00 $61,800.00 $69,056.00 $36,400.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 11,324.22 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
5318 Gasoline & oil 337,970.02 454,800.00 454,800.00 454,800.00 454,800.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Credit Card Fuel ($100/month) 12.0000 100.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Exxon Mobil Cards ($280 per month) 12.0000 280.00 3,360.00
City Administrator Oil and Propane ($2400/month) 12.0000 2,400.00 28,800.00
City Administrator CNG (2200 CCF/month @ $1.10/CCF) 12.0000 2,420.00 29,040.00
City Administrator Diesel Fuel (2050 gallons/month @ $4.00/gallon) 12.0000 8,200.00 98,400.00
City Administrator Unleaded Fuel (7000  gallons/month @ $3.50/gallon) 12.0000 24,500.00 294,000.00

City Administrator Totals $454,800.00

5342 Tools 4,745.69 5,500.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 5,500.00
5343 Uniforms 2,069.74 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

Commodities Totals $356,109.67 $473,300.00 $473,300.00 $473,300.00 $473,300.00
Capital Outlay

5440 Machinery & equipment .00 .00 16,500.00 16,500.00 5,000.00
5460 Automobiles & trucks 30,599.00 60,000.00 80,000.00 120,433.00 98,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator 1/2 ton truck for new PM to replace FA1 (25 points) 1.0000 49,000.00 49,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 40 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   073 - Vehicle Maintenance
Capital Outlay

City Administrator 1/2 ton truck to replace E15 (26 points) 1.0000 49,000.00 49,000.00
City Administrator Totals $98,000.00

Capital Outlay Totals $30,599.00 $60,000.00 $96,500.00 $136,933.00 $103,000.00

Division   073 - Vehicle Maintenance Totals $772,519.73 $1,047,374.00 $1,117,940.00 $1,165,629.00 $1,125,660.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 41 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   075 - Street Lights
Contractual Services

5251 Contractual 23,879.11 19,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Repairs 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00
City Administrator Locates 12.0000 1,500.00 18,000.00

City Administrator Totals $30,000.00

5274 Street lighting 23,268.61 22,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00
Contractual Services Totals $47,147.72 $41,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00

Division   075 - Street Lights Totals $47,147.72 $41,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 42 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   076 - Facility Maintenance
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 405,309.80 394,074.00 430,660.00 430,660.00 446,615.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 19,740.44 44,330.00 48,730.00 48,730.00 50,700.00
5113 Salaries overtime 4,223.91 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (4,500.00) (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (6,000.00)

Salaries Totals $429,274.15 $438,404.00 $478,890.00 $478,890.00 $495,815.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 31,374.80 33,883.00 37,020.00 37,020.00 38,390.00
5122 Workers compensation 25,935.00 25,935.00 27,840.00 27,840.00 28,180.00
5124 Insurance health 51,656.88 51,256.00 62,320.00 62,320.00 67,970.00
5125 Insurance life 883.40 1,018.00 1,130.00 1,130.00 1,075.00
5126 Insurance-dental 2,650.19 3,176.00 2,940.00 2,940.00 3,210.00
5127 Insurance disability 1,080.78 1,341.00 1,650.00 1,650.00 1,585.00
5130 Retirement program 32,851.97 31,526.00 34,820.00 34,820.00 36,090.00

Benefits Totals $146,433.02 $148,135.00 $167,720.00 $167,720.00 $176,500.00
Personnel Services Totals $575,707.17 $586,539.00 $646,610.00 $646,610.00 $672,315.00

Contractual Services
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 41,677.61 42,000.00 42,000.00 42,000.00 42,000.00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 35,630.22 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00
5249 Memberships & subscriptions 64.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00
5251 Contractual 49,095.91 59,000.00 59,000.00 59,000.00 67,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Exterminator PWF 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Door entry mats @ PWF 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Cleaning supply service (mops, pads & towels) 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Door entry mats @ PAMF 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Exterminator PMF 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Exterminator City Hall 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Alarm Monitoring Services 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Door entry mats @ City Hall 1.0000 4,500.00 4,500.00
City Administrator Carpets 1.0000 6,000.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Elevator Services and Inspections 1.0000 6,500.00 6,500.00
City Administrator Backflow and Fire Suppression System Inspections 1.0000 7,000.00 7,000.00
City Administrator Window Cleaning Services 1.0000 7,500.00 7,500.00
City Administrator HVAC Service 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 43 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   001 - General Fund

EXPENSE
Division   076 - Facility Maintenance
Contractual Services

City Administrator Totals $67,500.00

5268 Rental equipment .00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00
5277 Training & continuing education .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5285 Utilities-electric 167,714.79 149,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 169,000.00
5286 Utilities-gas 72,641.54 48,000.00 48,000.00 48,000.00 60,000.00
5287 Utilities-water 43,762.65 28,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 40,000.00
5288 Utilities-sewer 5,631.33 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00

Contractual Services Totals $416,218.05 $367,950.00 $379,950.00 $379,950.00 $420,450.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 53,617.45 51,000.00 51,000.00 51,000.00 51,000.00
5340 Salt & abrasives .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5342 Tools 3,734.29 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
5343 Uniforms 2,290.85 3,600.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 4,000.00

Commodities Totals $59,642.59 $59,600.00 $59,600.00 $59,600.00 $60,000.00
Capital Outlay

5470 Improvements building & grounds 38,132.58 47,400.00 12,500.00 14,946.00 10,000.00
Capital Outlay Totals $38,132.58 $47,400.00 $12,500.00 $14,946.00 $10,000.00

Division   076 - Facility Maintenance Totals $1,089,700.39 $1,061,489.00 $1,098,660.00 $1,101,106.00 $1,162,765.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $23,058,912.28 $20,626,174.00 $21,983,218.00 $25,683,034.00 $22,719,788.00

Fund   001 - General Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $26,211,609.49 $21,185,945.00 $23,432,786.00 $23,432,786.00 $24,033,657.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $23,058,912.28 $20,626,174.00 $21,983,218.00 $25,683,034.00 $22,719,788.00

Fund   001 - General Fund Totals $3,152,697.21 $559,771.00 $1,449,568.00 ($2,250,248.00) $1,313,869.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 44 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   020 - Brandywine NID Assessments

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Miscellaneous

4921 NID reimbursement 52,518.54 52,481.00 52,090.00 52,090.00 52,089.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Brandywine NID Reimbursement 133.0000 391.65 52,089.00

City Administrator Totals $52,089.00

Miscellaneous Totals $52,518.54 $52,481.00 $52,090.00 $52,090.00 $52,089.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $52,518.54 $52,481.00 $52,090.00 $52,090.00 $52,089.00
REVENUE TOTALS $52,518.54 $52,481.00 $52,090.00 $52,090.00 $52,089.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 45 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   020 - Brandywine NID Assessments

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Operating Transfers Out
5990 Operating transfers out 53,199.11 53,199.00 53,200.00 53,200.00 53,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Payments (Fund 431)-2025 1.0000 53,200.00 53,200.00

City Administrator Totals $53,200.00

Operating Transfers Out Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00
Other finance use and source Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Fund   020 - Brandywine NID Assessments Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $52,518.54 $52,481.00 $52,090.00 $52,090.00 $52,089.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Fund   020 - Brandywine NID Assessments Totals ($680.57) ($718.00) ($1,110.00) ($1,110.00) ($1,111.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 46 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   110 - Sewer lateral fund

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Charges for Services

4660 Sewer lateral fees revenue 422,342.96 430,000.00 430,000.00 430,000.00 430,000.00
Charges for Services Totals $422,342.96 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $422,342.96 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00
REVENUE TOTALS $422,342.96 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 47 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   110 - Sewer lateral fund

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Contractual Services

5245 Maint. repair sewer lateral 387,431.58 430,000.00 430,000.00 430,000.00 430,000.00
Contractual Services Totals $387,431.58 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00

Division   072 - Street Maintenance Totals $387,431.58 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $387,431.58 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00

Fund   110 - Sewer lateral fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $422,342.96 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $387,431.58 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00 $430,000.00

Fund   110 - Sewer lateral fund Totals $34,911.38 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 48 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   111 - Chesterfield Valley TIF Fund

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 97,685.49 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 75,000.00
Investment Income Totals $97,685.49 $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00

Miscellaneous
4940 Sale of fixed assets 2,392,105.65 .00 .00 .00 .00
4950 Miscellaneous 493,191.42 10,000.00 .00 .00 .00

Miscellaneous Totals $2,885,297.07 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $2,982,982.56 $10,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00
REVENUE TOTALS $2,982,982.56 $10,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 49 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   111 - Chesterfield Valley TIF Fund

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Contractual Services

5261 Professional services 11,997.50 10,000.00 10,000.00 122,652.00 130,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CVAC Bullpen Design & Permitting 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00
City Administrator CVAC Ring Road Design 1.0000 95,000.00 95,000.00

City Administrator Totals $130,000.00

Contractual Services Totals $11,997.50 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $122,652.00 $130,000.00
Capital Outlay

5498 Projects .00 .00 .00 .00 1,176,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Permanent fencing for CVAC fields A1 & A2 1.0000 16,500.00 16,500.00
City Administrator CVAC Bullpen Addition C & F Quad 16.0000 35,000.00 560,000.00
City Administrator CVAC Ring Road Construction 1.0000 600,000.00 600,000.00

City Administrator Totals $1,176,500.00

Capital Outlay Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,176,500.00

Division   072 - Street Maintenance Totals $11,997.50 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $122,652.00 $1,306,500.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $11,997.50 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $122,652.00 $1,306,500.00

Fund   111 - Chesterfield Valley TIF Fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $2,982,982.56 $10,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $11,997.50 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $122,652.00 $1,306,500.00

Fund   111 - Chesterfield Valley TIF Fund Totals $2,970,985.06 $0.00 $20,000.00 ($92,652.00) ($1,231,500.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 50 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   114 - Police forfeiture fund

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Intergovernmental

4372 DOJ Forf Funds 317,987.04 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 3,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Equitable sharing from 2019/2021 DEA task force cases 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $3,000.00

Intergovernmental Totals $317,987.04 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $317,987.04 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00
REVENUE TOTALS $317,987.04 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 51 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   114 - Police forfeiture fund

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

5277 Training & continuing education .00 .00 .00 4,600.00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $0.00

Commodities
5313 Department supplies 12,011.34 24,222.00 37,675.00 69,292.00 5,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Ski-Erg Machine for Fitness Center 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Row- Erg Machine for Fitness Center 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Leg Press Machine for Fitness Center 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00

City Administrator Totals $5,500.00

Commodities Totals $12,011.34 $24,222.00 $37,675.00 $69,292.00 $5,500.00
Capital Outlay

5440 Machinery & equipment .00 .00 .00 12,086.00 .00
5460 Automobiles & trucks .00 .00 .00 81,382.00 43,950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Dodge Durango 1.0000 43,950.00 43,950.00

City Administrator Totals $43,950.00

Capital Outlay Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $93,468.00 $43,950.00

Division   041 - Police Totals $12,011.34 $24,222.00 $37,675.00 $167,360.00 $49,450.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $12,011.34 $24,222.00 $37,675.00 $167,360.00 $49,450.00

Fund   114 - Police forfeiture fund Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $317,987.04 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $12,011.34 $24,222.00 $37,675.00 $167,360.00 $49,450.00

Fund   114 - Police forfeiture fund Totals $305,975.70 ($14,222.00) ($27,675.00) ($157,360.00) ($46,450.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 52 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   115 - SBD-Wildhorse Village

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Municipal Taxes

4050 Property taxes - general .00 .00 .00 .00 118,850.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00
REVENUE TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 53 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   115 - SBD-Wildhorse Village

EXPENSE
Division   220 - RPA 2
Contractual Services

5251 Contractual .00 .00 .00 .00 90,000.00
5261 Professional services .00 .00 .00 .00 28,850.00

Contractual Services Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00

Division   220 - RPA 2 Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00

Fund   115 - SBD-Wildhorse Village Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $118,850.00

Fund   115 - SBD-Wildhorse Village Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 54 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Municipal Taxes

4200 Sales tax 7,770,378.49 7,135,650.00 7,850,000.00 7,850,000.00 8,160,000.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $7,770,378.49 $7,135,650.00 $7,850,000.00 $7,850,000.00 $8,160,000.00

Intergovernmental
4359 MPGC grant 1,050,000.00 .00 546,250.00 546,250.00 .00
4381 Miscellaneous Grant .00 750,000.00 .00 .00 .00

Intergovernmental Totals $1,050,000.00 $750,000.00 $546,250.00 $546,250.00 $0.00
Charges for Services

4590 Miscellaneous other charges 1,000.00 .00 5,465.00 5,465.00 5,465.00
4610 Parks charges & fees 231,308.56 273,900.00 267,000.00 267,000.00 265,000.00
4612 Dog tags 22,165.00 16,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00
4620 General rev concession-cvac (720.00) .00 .00 .00 .00
4621 Soda exclusivity-cvac .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00
4622 Soda rebates-cvac 6,806.25 4,000.00 .00 .00 .00
4630 General rev-concession cp 61,038.24 52,000.00 52,000.00 52,000.00 52,000.00
4635 Gen Revenue - concession - amph 319,966.50 200,000.00 225,000.00 225,000.00 225,000.00
4640 Pool revenue 233,888.33 220,900.00 221,000.00 221,000.00 235,000.00
4641 Pool program 39,809.72 36,700.00 39,500.00 39,500.00 29,000.00
4650 Parks contributions 29,767.50 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
4680 Field rentals 527,399.27 345,000.00 376,000.00 376,000.00 420,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CVAC Birthday Party Rentals 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator YMCA Soccer 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Soccer Tournaments 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Lacrosse Trny 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Marquette Lacrosse 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Multipurpose Fields 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00
City Administrator Sand Volleyball 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00
City Administrator Baseball/Softball Tournaments 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Soccer Misc 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator Lacrosse Misc 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator CBSA Tournaments 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator Baseball Misc 1.0000 45,000.00 45,000.00
City Administrator CBSA 1.0000 225,000.00 225,000.00

City Administrator Totals $420,500.00

4685 Amphitheater Rental 166,025.80 127,000.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 130,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 55 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Charges for Services

4750 User CVAC License Fees 297,560.58 100,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 150,000.00
4751 User CVAC Concession Revenues 53,939.18 65,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00 85,000.00
4752 User CVAC Contributions 250,000.00 250,000.00 .00 .00 .00
4753 User CVAC Advertising & Sponsorships 4,250.00 50,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 80,000.00

Charges for Services Totals $2,244,204.93 $1,757,000.00 $1,526,465.00 $1,526,465.00 $1,710,965.00
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 286,619.48 50,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 125,000.00
Investment Income Totals $286,619.48 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $125,000.00

Miscellaneous
4920 Insurance reimbursement 7,766.58 .00 .00 .00 .00
4940 Sale of fixed assets 330,475.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
4950 Miscellaneous 9,110.83 5,390.00 .00 .00 .00

Miscellaneous Totals $347,352.41 $5,390.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $11,698,555.31 $9,698,040.00 $10,022,715.00 $10,022,715.00 $9,995,965.00
REVENUE TOTALS $11,698,555.31 $9,698,040.00 $10,022,715.00 $10,022,715.00 $9,995,965.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 56 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 1,837,569.41 2,114,016.00 2,289,740.00 2,289,740.00 2,370,095.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 150,639.97 232,495.00 220,360.00 220,360.00 233,560.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Recreation Intern 1.0000 7,680.00 7,680.00
City Administrator PT Recreation Specialist (year-round) 1.0000 26,130.00 26,130.00
City Administrator PT Admin Assistant (year-round) 1.0000 28,125.00 28,125.00
City Administrator PT Maintenance Worker (year-round) 1.0000 30,605.00 30,605.00
City Administrator Summer Camp (1 Director/10 Counselors) 1.0000 69,850.00 69,850.00
City Administrator Seasonal Maintenance Workers (Mar-Oct) 8.0000 8,896.25 71,170.00

City Administrator Totals $233,560.00

5113 Salaries overtime 7,144.51 20,000.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 18,540.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (30,000.00) (40,000.00) (40,000.00) (50,000.00)

Salaries Totals $1,995,353.89 $2,336,511.00 $2,491,100.00 $2,491,100.00 $2,572,195.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 145,058.57 179,090.00 193,650.00 193,650.00 200,600.00
5122 Workers compensation 116,710.00 116,710.00 123,560.00 123,560.00 127,290.00
5124 Insurance health 252,195.86 313,304.00 339,280.00 339,280.00 350,800.00
5125 Insurance life 4,355.56 5,291.00 5,850.00 5,850.00 6,020.00
5126 Insurance-dental 15,412.54 19,850.00 20,130.00 20,130.00 19,635.00
5127 Insurance disability 4,992.51 7,302.00 8,110.00 8,110.00 8,405.00
5130 Retirement program 147,807.51 169,122.00 184,850.00 184,850.00 191,095.00

Benefits Totals $686,532.55 $810,669.00 $875,430.00 $875,430.00 $903,845.00
Personnel Services Totals $2,681,886.44 $3,147,180.00 $3,366,530.00 $3,366,530.00 $3,476,040.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 13,685.25 15,000.00 .00 .00 .00
5221 Data processing 6,226.18 6,200.00 11,406.00 11,406.00 .00
5224 Employee recruitment 210.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,000.00
5227 Environmental Expenditures 1,462.83 6,100.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,500.00
5233 Credit Card Fee 8,760.72 6,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 9,000.00
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 22,398.22 110,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 29,774.37 35,000.00 35,000.00 38,262.00 35,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 57 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Contractual Services

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 3,933.00 3,655.00 3,860.00 3,860.00 5,100.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Sams Club - (1 primary / 3 add on membership cards) 4.0000 75.00 300.00
City Administrator Canva 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Survey Monkey 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Annual CAPRA Fees 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator West County Chamber of Commerce 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator NRPA 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator MPRA (City Membership) 1.0000 2,100.00 2,100.00

City Administrator Totals $5,100.00

5251 Contractual 50,182.52 117,050.00 78,070.00 101,770.00 62,850.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Soil Testing at CVAC soccer and baseball outfield - GR Robinson 5.0000 40.00 200.00
City Administrator Extermination Services - Rentokil 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Pump Station (PM agreement for sanitary sewer) MO Machinery 1.0000 1,250.00 1,250.00
City Administrator Irrigation - PM agreement for CVAC 4 well houses 4.0000 350.00 1,400.00
City Administrator Monitoring 1.0000 7,000.00 7,000.00
City Administrator Backflow Inspections 50.0000 200.00 10,000.00
City Administrator HVAC Preventive Maint. per PW Contract 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Mulching - Clarkson 40 Quad 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00
City Administrator Fire Extinguisher Service per PW contract 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00

City Administrator Totals $62,850.00

5260 Printing & binding 443.32 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 800.00
5261 Professional services .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 .00
5268 Rental equipment 12,695.27 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Portable toilet-Pickleball Courts CVAC 1.0000 2,200.00 2,200.00
City Administrator Equipment (air compressor, hydraulic lift) 1.0000 14,000.00 14,000.00

City Administrator Totals $16,200.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 58 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Contractual Services

5271 Licenses/permits 2,810.75 2,500.00 2,811.00 2,811.00 3,335.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator AllTrack music rights 1.0000 375.00 375.00
City Administrator BMI music rights 1.0000 445.00 445.00
City Administrator ASCAP music rights 1.0000 460.00 460.00
City Administrator Global Music Rights 1.0000 895.00 895.00
City Administrator SESAC music rights 1.0000 1,160.00 1,160.00

City Administrator Totals $3,335.00

5275 Taxes 38,700.57 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
5276 Telephone 3,093.66 2,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,500.00
5277 Training & continuing education 14,633.90 20,400.00 12,385.00 12,385.00 14,550.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Pesticide Training - Staff Recertification 2.0000 100.00 200.00
City Administrator Archery Instructor Training 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator Certifications - CPRP 3.0000 250.00 750.00
City Administrator Local workshops and meetings 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator National Playground Safety Inspection Certification 4.0000 600.00 2,400.00
City Administrator Workzone and Flagger Certification 10.0000 260.00 2,600.00
City Administrator NRPA 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator MPRA 2.0000 1,700.00 3,400.00

City Administrator Totals $14,550.00

5285 Utilities-electric 277,852.74 258,000.00 280,000.00 280,000.00 280,000.00
5286 Utilities-gas 734.29 800.00 800.00 800.00 1,000.00
5287 Utilities-water 236,073.96 130,000.00 220,000.00 220,000.00 220,000.00
5288 Utilities-sewer 114,852.51 82,600.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 115,000.00
5299 Special Projects 1,194,482.60 430,000.00 1,235,000.00 1,237,000.00 400,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CVAC Turf Replacement (Future replacement set aside) 1.0000 400,000.00 400,000.00

City Administrator Totals $400,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 59 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Contractual Services

5975 Allocation 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 281,882.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator IT - AMP - Elfsite Instagram Mgmt 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator IT - AQU - SurveyMonkey 1.0000 200.00 200.00
City Administrator CS - Copier Maintenance 2.0000 100.00 200.00
City Administrator IT - AQU - WhenToWork Job Board for Seasonals 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator IT - AQU - Canva Graphics Suite 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator IT - AMP - Buffer Social Media Management 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator IT - AMP - Canva Graphics Suite 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator IT - AQU - Issuu Citizen Digital Publishing 12.0000 44.00 528.00
City Administrator IT - AMP - Website 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator IT - Desktop Computers 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator IT - AQU - MailChimp 12.0000 180.00 2,160.00
City Administrator IT - AMP - MailChimp 12.0000 180.00 2,160.00
City Administrator IT - Productive Parks Software Subscrption 1.0000 3,800.00 3,800.00
City Administrator IT - Weather Station Software Subscription 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator IT - Printing and Laminating 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator CS - Cellphones Service & Hardware 22.0000 442.00 9,724.00
City Administrator IT - Tyler Technolgies 49.0000 255.00 12,495.00
City Administrator IT - Microsoft MVL 49.0000 255.00 12,495.00
City Administrator CS - Insurance (GL/Auto/Property/Flood/Logan) 1.0000 225,000.00 225,000.00

City Administrator Totals $281,882.00

Contractual Services Totals $2,035,006.66 $1,287,305.00 $2,105,332.00 $2,139,294.00 $1,526,717.00
Commodities

5311 Parks Donation/Sponsorship/Living Legacy 
expenditures

5,409.54 .00 .00 .00 .00

5313 Department supplies 361,436.87 443,750.00 408,000.00 436,199.00 386,185.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Pest Control - Traps 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Oil 1.0000 900.00 900.00
City Administrator Batteries 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Chlorine for fountains 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Dog Tags 500.0000 4.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Kitchen 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 60 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Commodities

City Administrator Lumber and Fencing 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00
City Administrator Flags 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Supplies 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Safety Equipment 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator First Aid - CPR manikins (adult/baby) and AED trainer 1.0000 5,800.00 5,800.00
City Administrator Signs 1.0000 6,000.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Amenities-Benches, Trash Cans 1.0000 6,000.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Paint (buildings) 1.0000 6,000.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Non-Cap Equipment (Push Mowers, Hedge Trimmers, Weed Trimmers) 1.0000 9,500.00 9,500.00
City Administrator Rock-Concrete 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Mulch - In House  quantity in yards 810.0000 18.50 14,985.00
City Administrator Top Soil 1.0000 15,000.00 15,000.00
City Administrator Plant Material (annual plantings, bushes, shrubs) 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Hardware (Trim line, nuts/bolts, nails, hoses, water keys, etc) 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator Pole Banners - replace all on Chesterfield Parkway - new design 210.0000 150.00 31,500.00
City Administrator Irrigation (parts) 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00
City Administrator Janitorial 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00
City Administrator Seed/Sod 1.0000 40,000.00 40,000.00
City Administrator Chemicals and Fertlizers 1.0000 94,000.00 94,000.00

City Administrator Totals $386,185.00

5325 Miscellaneous supplies 146,669.45 175,550.00 160,500.00 160,500.00 154,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Community CPR/Babysitting 101 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator NRPA -Parks Month 1.0000 750.00 750.00
City Administrator Dog Park Events 1.0000 750.00 750.00
City Administrator Back to School Bash 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Tots and Tales 4.0000 250.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Swag 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Fitness Class 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Eggstravaganza 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Trucks and Treats 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Youth Try/Tri-Athalon 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Rec Programs 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00
City Administrator Outdoor Recreation events 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator Summer Camp 1.0000 9,300.00 9,300.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 61 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Commodities

City Administrator Senior Programs 1.0000 14,500.00 14,500.00
City Administrator Holiday Festivities-Candy Cane Hunt, Santa Paws, Cookie w/ Claus 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator 4th of July 1.0000 78,000.00 78,000.00

City Administrator Totals $154,000.00

5330 Office supplies 1,848.27 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,250.00
5342 Tools 6,926.96 7,000.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00
5343 Uniforms 15,570.27 14,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00

Commodities Totals $537,861.36 $642,800.00 $596,500.00 $624,699.00 $567,935.00
Capital Outlay

5440 Machinery & equipment 17,063.46 67,500.00 90,999.00 151,988.00 109,190.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Equipment Trailer (replaces PK-303) 1.0000 5,400.00 5,400.00
City Administrator Utility Cart (replaces Pk-226) 1.0000 5,530.00 5,530.00
City Administrator Arrow Board (replaces PK-230) 1.0000 6,000.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Walk Behind Mower (replaces PK-266) 1.0000 6,900.00 6,900.00
City Administrator Utility Cart (replaces PK -288) 1.0000 8,430.00 8,430.00
City Administrator Utility Cart (replaces PK-260) 1.0000 9,830.00 9,830.00
City Administrator Zero Turn Mower (replaces PK-281) 1.0000 15,200.00 15,200.00
City Administrator Ride-on Painter (replaces PK-241) 1.0000 19,900.00 19,900.00
City Administrator Compact Excavator (replaces PK-407) 1.0000 32,000.00 32,000.00

City Administrator Totals $109,190.00

5460 Automobiles & trucks 23,475.00 .00 54,000.00 54,000.00 168,150.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Compact SUV (replaces PK-3) 1.0000 31,830.00 31,830.00
City Administrator Compact SUV for Parks Director (replaces PK-21) 1.0000 31,830.00 31,830.00
City Administrator 1/2 Ton Truck, Crew cab (replaces PK-17) 1.0000 48,490.00 48,490.00
City Administrator 3/4 Ton Truck King cab (replaces PK-22) 1.0000 56,000.00 56,000.00

City Administrator Totals $168,150.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 62 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Capital Outlay

5470 Improvements building & grounds .00 55,000.00 .00 35,558.00 9,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Replacement Drinking Fountains for CVAC 3.0000 3,000.00 9,000.00

City Administrator Totals $9,000.00

5480 Improvements other than building .00 .00 .00 .00 7,700.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Replacement ADA stair for Comp Pool required by StL County 1.0000 7,700.00 7,700.00

City Administrator Totals $7,700.00

Capital Outlay Totals $40,538.46 $122,500.00 $144,999.00 $241,546.00 $294,040.00
Other finance use and source

Operating Transfers Out
5990 Operating transfers out 1,797,850.12 1,802,050.00 974,740.00 1,974,740.00 1,130,657.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Reserve Used from Fund 428 for COPS 2013 in 2025 1.0000 (2,394,496.00) (2,394,496.00)
City Administrator DS Admin/Trustee fees (Fund 422) 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator DS Admin/Trustee fees (Funds 424, 429, 430)-2025 3.0000 950.00 2,850.00
City Administrator COPS 2020 A payment (Fund 429)-2025 1.0000 94,062.00 94,062.00
City Administrator COPS 2016 Bond payment (Fund 424)-2025 1.0000 347,795.00 347,795.00
City Administrator COPS 2020 B payment (Fund 430)-2025 1.0000 496,245.00 496,245.00
City Administrator COPS 2013 Bond payment (Fund 422)-2025 1.0000 2,583,201.00 2,583,201.00

City Administrator Totals $1,130,657.00

Operating Transfers Out Totals $1,797,850.12 $1,802,050.00 $974,740.00 $1,974,740.00 $1,130,657.00
Other finance use and source Totals $1,797,850.12 $1,802,050.00 $974,740.00 $1,974,740.00 $1,130,657.00

Division   084 - Parks and Recreation Totals $7,093,143.04 $7,001,835.00 $7,188,101.00 $8,346,809.00 $6,995,389.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 63 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 185,526.64 194,193.00 203,780.00 203,780.00 212,315.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 8,388.75 8,550.00 15,330.00 15,330.00 18,060.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Seasonal Recreation Aide 4.0000 4,515.00 18,060.00

City Administrator Totals $18,060.00

5113 Salaries overtime 1,930.65 500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 1,300.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00)

Salaries Totals $195,846.04 $202,743.00 $223,110.00 $223,110.00 $231,175.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 14,800.53 15,549.00 17,110.00 17,110.00 17,725.00
5122 Workers compensation 14,781.00 14,781.00 11,290.00 11,290.00 11,680.00
5124 Insurance health 7,692.08 17,598.00 15,010.00 15,010.00 17,915.00
5125 Insurance life 404.70 459.00 480.00 480.00 515.00
5126 Insurance-dental 475.64 1,622.00 1,460.00 1,460.00 1,050.00
5127 Insurance disability 493.22 671.00 710.00 710.00 755.00
5130 Retirement program 15,003.57 15,536.00 16,670.00 16,670.00 17,090.00

Benefits Totals $53,650.74 $66,216.00 $62,730.00 $62,730.00 $66,730.00
Personnel Services Totals $249,496.78 $268,959.00 $285,840.00 $285,840.00 $297,905.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 10,415.76 10,500.00 .00 .00 .00
5221 Data processing 1,337.90 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,370.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Elfsight (instagram feed for website) 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator Canva 1.0000 150.00 150.00
City Administrator Buffer(scheduling platform for social media) 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Spacecraft(Amp website) 1.0000 600.00 600.00

City Administrator Totals $1,370.00

5224 Employee recruitment .00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00
5233 Credit Card Fee 11,476.39 6,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 13,500.00
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 18,783.67 25,000.00 10,000.00 15,909.00 8,000.00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 11,364.46 8,500.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 6,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:41 PM Page 64 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment
Contractual Services

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 823.00 823.00 823.00 823.00 875.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Creative Arts Alliance 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator International Entertainment Buyers Association 1.0000 125.00 125.00
City Administrator Pollstar 1.0000 650.00 650.00

City Administrator Totals $875.00

5251 Contractual 74,800.13 78,600.00 78,600.00 78,600.00 89,950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Extermination - Blue Chip 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Photographer 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator EMT service 1.0000 3,800.00 3,800.00
City Administrator Janitorial 1.0000 6,750.00 6,750.00
City Administrator Staging, barricades, staff 1.0000 7,000.00 7,000.00
City Administrator Security 1.0000 21,500.00 21,500.00
City Administrator Production 1.0000 22,000.00 22,000.00
City Administrator Concession staffing - Keystone 1.0000 26,000.00 26,000.00

City Administrator Totals $89,950.00

5268 Rental equipment 3,672.26 6,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00
5271 Licenses/permits 19,172.00 6,175.00 22,500.00 22,500.00 22,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator St Louis County Health 1.0000 75.00 75.00
City Administrator Liquor License 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Liquor Liability 1.0000 21,925.00 21,925.00

City Administrator Totals $22,500.00

5277 Training & continuing education 1,993.72 2,000.00 3,685.00 3,685.00 2,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Local staff training (3 staff 1 session each) 1.0000 150.00 150.00
City Administrator IEBA (Int'l Entertainment Buyers Assoc.) 1.0000 2,350.00 2,350.00

City Administrator Totals $2,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 65 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment
Contractual Services

5299 Special Projects .00 .00 .00 5,000.00 115,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator FF&E BOH Facility 1.0000 115,000.00 115,000.00

City Administrator Totals $115,000.00

Contractual Services Totals $153,839.29 $146,348.00 $142,358.00 $153,267.00 $266,445.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 305,114.17 313,350.00 316,601.00 319,938.00 323,751.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Rotating Art at City Hall 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Shakespeare in the Park 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Art on Loan 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Hardware 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Tuesdays at the ChAmp Plaza 2.0000 1,375.00 2,750.00
City Administrator Production Supplies 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Operations - cleaning supplies, wristbands, paint supplies, conc 1.0000 8,500.00 8,500.00
City Administrator Movies at Amp 2.0000 5,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Fall Festival 1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00
City Administrator Sounds of Summer Concerts 6.0000 8,900.00 53,400.00
City Administrator Beverage Supplies and Product 1.0000 100,000.00 100,000.00
City Administrator Ticketed Concerts (Top Headliners) 3.0000 36,667.00 110,001.00

City Administrator Totals $323,751.00

5343 Uniforms 456.95 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
Commodities Totals $305,571.12 $313,850.00 $317,101.00 $320,438.00 $324,251.00

Capital Outlay
5470 Improvements building & grounds 485.00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 85,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator 6' steel fencing, approx. 625' 1.0000 85,000.00 85,000.00

City Administrator Totals $85,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 66 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment
Capital Outlay

5480 Improvements other than building .00 .00 22,500.00 22,500.00 4,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Amphitheater cameras: additional, upgrades 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $4,000.00

Capital Outlay Totals $485.00 $0.00 $30,500.00 $30,500.00 $89,000.00

Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment Totals $709,392.19 $729,157.00 $775,799.00 $790,045.00 $977,601.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 67 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   086 - Pool
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 47,991.68 47,661.00 50,160.00 50,160.00 51,920.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 205,336.75 184,000.00 240,100.00 240,100.00 275,270.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Dive Coach/Asst. Dive Coach 1.0000 5,725.00 5,725.00
City Administrator Swim Coach/Asst. Swim Coach (3) 1.0000 10,965.00 10,965.00
City Administrator Swim Lessons (1 Coordinator/ 20 Instructors) 1.0000 13,670.00 13,670.00
City Administrator Pool Managers (3) 1.0000 20,235.00 20,235.00
City Administrator Head Guards (6) 1.0000 32,785.00 32,785.00
City Administrator Lifeguards (65) 1.0000 191,890.00 191,890.00

City Administrator Totals $275,270.00

5113 Salaries overtime 1,504.03 2,500.00 4,850.00 4,850.00 750.00
Salaries Totals $254,832.46 $234,161.00 $295,110.00 $295,110.00 $327,940.00

Benefits
5120 Social security 19,385.01 17,914.00 22,580.00 22,580.00 25,090.00
5122 Workers compensation 11,900.00 11,900.00 15,750.00 15,750.00 18,430.00
5124 Insurance health 5,091.60 4,964.00 5,480.00 5,480.00 5,975.00
5125 Insurance life 110.96 113.00 120.00 120.00 125.00
5126 Insurance-dental 337.55 347.00 350.00 350.00 350.00
5127 Insurance disability 136.17 165.00 180.00 180.00 185.00
5130 Retirement program 3,916.90 3,813.00 4,260.00 4,260.00 4,215.00

Benefits Totals $40,878.19 $39,216.00 $48,720.00 $48,720.00 $54,370.00
Personnel Services Totals $295,710.65 $273,377.00 $343,830.00 $343,830.00 $382,310.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising .00 250.00 .00 .00 .00
5224 Employee recruitment .00 .00 500.00 500.00 250.00
5233 Credit Card Fee 4,325.21 4,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 1,646.09 5,000.00 5,000.00 9,585.00 5,000.00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 20,749.95 45,000.00 45,000.00 68,880.00 35,000.00
5251 Contractual (78.36) .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 65,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Locker Room floor painting 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00
City Administrator Competition Pool painting and crack/void repairs 1.0000 40,000.00 40,000.00

City Administrator Totals $65,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 68 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   086 - Pool
Contractual Services

5268 Rental equipment 693.00 1,250.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 750.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Pool rental for lifeguard training 1.0000 750.00 750.00

City Administrator Totals $750.00

5271 Licenses/permits 200.00 475.00 300.00 300.00 200.00
5276 Telephone 733.04 630.00 630.00 630.00 1,000.00
5277 Training & continuing education 7,524.68 9,605.00 8,430.00 8,430.00 10,105.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Region Mini Conference - Local 2.0000 50.00 100.00
City Administrator Lifeguard Instructor Certification 1.0000 425.00 425.00
City Administrator Ellis Client Fee (Certification for Lifeguards lump sum) 1.0000 9,580.00 9,580.00

City Administrator Totals $10,105.00

5286 Utilities-gas (541.04) .00 .00 .00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $35,252.57 $66,210.00 $116,360.00 $144,825.00 $122,305.00

Commodities
5313 Department supplies 43,737.73 52,300.00 60,600.00 60,600.00 57,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Whistles for lifeguards 75.0000 2.00 150.00
City Administrator Poles, hoses, leaf nets, brushes, etc. 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Lifeguard Equipment - rescue tube, hip pack, umbrella, mask, etc 1.0000 2,250.00 2,250.00
City Administrator First Aid Supplies - trauma bags, backboards, supplies 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Janitorial supplies 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Supplies (Plugs, Sunscreen, Tubes, Batteries, flags, key fobs) 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator Aquatic Programs 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator Chemicals 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00

City Administrator Totals $57,000.00

5343 Uniforms 1,630.35 3,750.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,370.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator t-shirts/polos 110.0000 14.50 1,595.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 69 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   086 - Pool
Commodities

City Administrator Suits 75.0000 37.00 2,775.00
City Administrator Totals $4,370.00

Commodities Totals $45,368.08 $56,050.00 $64,600.00 $64,600.00 $61,370.00

Division   086 - Pool Totals $376,331.30 $395,637.00 $524,790.00 $553,255.00 $565,985.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 70 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   087 - CVAC Concession 
Personnel Services

Benefits
5124 Insurance health 403.50 .00 .00 .00 .00
5125 Insurance life 8.93 .00 .00 .00 .00
5126 Insurance-dental 28.13 .00 .00 .00 .00
5127 Insurance disability 10.84 .00 .00 .00 .00

Benefits Totals $451.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Personnel Services Totals $451.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Contractual Services
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 971.33 1,000.00 .00 .00 .00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 1,050.00 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00
5251 Contractual 936.90 750.00 .00 .00 .00

Contractual Services Totals $2,958.23 $3,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   087 - CVAC Concession Totals $3,409.63 $3,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 71 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   088 - Central Park - Concession
Personnel Services

Salaries
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 43,920.45 46,220.00 54,980.00 54,980.00 59,605.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator 30 Aquatic Aides (May 12-Sep 6) 1.0000 59,605.00 59,605.00

City Administrator Totals $59,605.00

5113 Salaries overtime .00 100.00 .00 .00 .00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (3,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (5,000.00)

Salaries Totals $43,920.45 $43,320.00 $50,980.00 $50,980.00 $54,605.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 3,359.94 3,544.00 4,210.00 4,210.00 4,560.00
5122 Workers compensation 2,375.00 2,375.00 2,970.00 2,970.00 3,430.00

Benefits Totals $5,734.94 $5,919.00 $7,180.00 $7,180.00 $7,990.00
Personnel Services Totals $49,655.39 $49,239.00 $58,160.00 $58,160.00 $62,595.00

Contractual Services
5233 Credit Card Fee 1,327.99 1,000.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 1,400.00
5246 Maintenance & repair-building .00 1,000.00 500.00 500.00 .00
5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment .00 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,339.00 2,250.00
5251 Contractual 132.00 625.00 500.00 500.00 125.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Extermination Services 1.0000 125.00 125.00

City Administrator Totals $125.00

5261 Professional services 520.00 675.00 675.00 675.00 .00
5271 Licenses/permits 75.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 75.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator St Louis County Health Dept. 1.0000 75.00 75.00

City Administrator Totals $75.00

Contractual Services Totals $2,054.99 $5,500.00 $4,275.00 $4,614.00 $3,850.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 72 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   088 - Central Park - Concession
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 24,475.54 22,500.00 24,000.00 23,661.00 26,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Birthday Party Pizzas 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Pepsi 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Sam's Club - supplies for concession stand 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator RL Mueller- food for concession stands 1.0000 14,000.00 14,000.00

City Administrator Totals $26,000.00

Commodities Totals $24,475.54 $22,500.00 $24,000.00 $23,661.00 $26,000.00

Division   088 - Central Park - Concession Totals $76,185.92 $77,239.00 $86,435.00 $86,435.00 $92,445.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 73 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   089 - Sports and Wellness
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 227,439.84 243,261.00 248,130.00 248,130.00 255,330.00
5112 Salaries parttime/temporary 25,876.50 31,425.00 36,590.00 36,590.00 38,235.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Sports & Wellness Intern 1.0000 7,680.00 7,680.00
City Administrator Recreation Aide - Supervise CVAC complex 4.0000 7,638.75 30,555.00

City Administrator Totals $38,235.00

5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (5,000.00) (6,000.00)
Salaries Totals $253,316.34 $269,686.00 $279,720.00 $279,720.00 $287,565.00

Benefits
5120 Social security 18,212.22 21,014.00 21,780.00 21,780.00 22,460.00
5122 Workers compensation 14,110.00 14,110.00 14,420.00 14,420.00 15,000.00
5124 Insurance health 27,697.54 33,659.00 37,900.00 37,900.00 36,110.00
5125 Insurance life 488.87 574.00 490.00 490.00 620.00
5126 Insurance-dental 1,269.01 1,968.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,400.00
5127 Insurance disability 598.32 838.00 860.00 860.00 910.00
5130 Retirement program 18,198.12 19,461.00 19,850.00 19,850.00 20,430.00

Benefits Totals $80,574.08 $91,624.00 $97,100.00 $97,100.00 $96,930.00
Personnel Services Totals $333,890.42 $361,310.00 $376,820.00 $376,820.00 $384,495.00

Contractual Services
5210 Advertising 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00
5233 Credit Card Fee .00 500.00 .00 .00 .00
5246 Maintenance & repair-building 19,037.02 21,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00 33,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Musco Field Light Repair 1.0000 16,000.00 16,000.00
City Administrator CVAC Concessions, Bathrooms & OMB Building Repairs 1.0000 17,000.00 17,000.00

City Administrator Totals $33,000.00

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 4,707.24 5,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Repairing fiberglass frame on pitching mounds 4.0000 500.00 2,000.00

City Administrator Totals $2,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 74 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   089 - Sports and Wellness
Contractual Services

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 1,445.00 1,445.00 1,445.00 1,445.00 5,445.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator St. Louis Sports Commission 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator Sports Event Tourism Association 1.0000 1,195.00 1,195.00
City Administrator PlayEasy Subscription 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $5,445.00

5251 Contractual .00 .00 750.00 750.00 750.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Exterminating Services - Bug Out 1.0000 750.00 750.00

City Administrator Totals $750.00

5268 Rental equipment .00 500.00 500.00 500.00 .00
5271 Licenses/permits .00 408.00 .00 .00 .00
5277 Training & continuing education 3,748.28 3,665.00 4,740.00 4,740.00 4,100.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Region Mini Conference - Local 4.0000 75.00 300.00
City Administrator Sports Tourism Learning Institute 4.0000 200.00 800.00
City Administrator Sports Events Tourism Association Symposium 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $4,100.00

Contractual Services Totals $30,937.54 $34,518.00 $32,435.00 $32,435.00 $45,295.00
Commodities

5313 Department supplies 72,611.74 75,100.00 69,700.00 69,700.00 74,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Direct TV - Showcase games at Entertainment Plazas 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Field Marking Chalk 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Field Conditioner 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Signs (Miracle Field signs) 2.0000 2,250.00 4,500.00
City Administrator CVAC Operations (locks, zip ties, temp fence repair, fence ties) 1.0000 7,000.00 7,000.00
City Administrator Field Paint 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator CVAC Amenities (bases, mounds, goals, cage nets, L screens) 1.0000 49,000.00 49,000.00

City Administrator Totals $74,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 75 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   119 - Parks sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   089 - Sports and Wellness
Commodities

5325 Miscellaneous supplies 53,324.39 64,400.00 109,180.00 109,180.00 113,600.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator CVAC Birthday Party Rentals 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Flag Football League 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Kickball League 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator 4th of July 5k 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator Shamrock Run 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator Pickleball 1.0000 13,000.00 13,000.00
City Administrator Adult Softball 1.0000 18,000.00 18,000.00
City Administrator Youth Soccer 1.0000 20,000.00 20,000.00
City Administrator Turkey Trot 1.0000 45,000.00 45,000.00

City Administrator Totals $113,600.00

5342 Tools .00 250.00 250.00 250.00 250.00
5343 Uniforms 484.04 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00

Commodities Totals $126,420.17 $140,250.00 $179,630.00 $179,630.00 $188,350.00
Capital Outlay

5470 Improvements building & grounds .00 .00 61,270.00 61,270.00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $0.00 $0.00 $61,270.00 $61,270.00 $0.00

Division   089 - Sports and Wellness Totals $491,248.13 $536,078.00 $650,155.00 $650,155.00 $618,140.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $8,749,710.21 $8,743,696.00 $9,225,280.00 $10,426,699.00 $9,249,560.00

Fund   119 - Parks sales tax Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $11,698,555.31 $9,698,040.00 $10,022,715.00 $10,022,715.00 $9,995,965.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $8,749,710.21 $8,743,696.00 $9,225,280.00 $10,426,699.00 $9,249,560.00

Fund   119 - Parks sales tax Totals $2,948,845.10 $954,344.00 $797,435.00 ($403,984.00) $746,405.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 76 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Municipal Taxes

4200 Sales tax 6,609,571.66 6,060,000.00 6,660,000.00 6,660,000.00 6,936,000.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $6,609,571.66 $6,060,000.00 $6,660,000.00 $6,660,000.00 $6,936,000.00

Charges for Services
4595 Escrow Forfeitures 6,995.00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Charges for Services Totals $6,995.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Miscellaneous

4950 Miscellaneous 55,421.74 55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00 518,950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Grant-Schoettler SW Right of Way 1.0000 18,850.00 18,850.00
City Administrator CDGB Grant (2 year) 1.0000 84,000.00 84,000.00
City Administrator Grant-Pathway on Parkway Design 1.0000 204,000.00 204,000.00
City Administrator Grant-Highcroft Drive Design 1.0000 212,100.00 212,100.00

City Administrator Totals $518,950.00

4990 Operating transfers in .00 .00 .00 2,125,000.00 .00
Miscellaneous Totals $55,421.74 $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $2,180,000.00 $518,950.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $6,671,988.40 $6,115,000.00 $6,715,000.00 $8,840,000.00 $7,454,950.00
REVENUE TOTALS $6,671,988.40 $6,115,000.00 $6,715,000.00 $8,840,000.00 $7,454,950.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 77 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 235,218.00 232,723.00 248,200.00 248,200.00 340,450.00
5113 Salaries overtime .00 200.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (200.00) (200.00) (200.00) (500.00)

Salaries Totals $235,218.00 $232,723.00 $249,000.00 $249,000.00 $340,950.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 16,816.75 17,819.00 19,070.00 19,070.00 26,125.00
5122 Workers compensation 3,292.00 3,292.00 3,290.00 3,290.00 3,805.00
5124 Insurance health 29,810.76 28,695.00 32,420.00 32,420.00 50,055.00
5125 Insurance life 529.53 550.00 580.00 580.00 815.00
5126 Insurance-dental 1,178.28 1,208.00 1,210.00 1,210.00 1,990.00
5127 Insurance disability 644.48 803.00 840.00 840.00 1,195.00
5130 Retirement program 18,832.57 18,618.00 19,940.00 19,940.00 27,320.00

Benefits Totals $71,104.37 $70,985.00 $77,350.00 $77,350.00 $111,305.00
Personnel Services Totals $306,322.37 $303,708.00 $326,350.00 $326,350.00 $452,255.00

Contractual Services
5251 Contractual 226,248.35 131,000.00 189,000.00 188,088.00 110,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Capital Contracts 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Semi-Annual Crack Sealing 1.0000 100,000.00 100,000.00

City Administrator Totals $110,000.00

5261 Professional services 298,434.38 195,000.00 692,000.00 1,040,597.00 797,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Capital Project Design 1.0000 10,000.00 10,000.00
City Administrator Grant App - Ladue Fm Bridge 1.0000 15,000.00 15,000.00
City Administrator Schoettler SW Right of Way - offset by $18,850 grant 1.0000 29,000.00 29,000.00
City Administrator RHL Culvert design 1.0000 75,000.00 75,000.00
City Administrator Inspection testing services - slab / sidewalk / asphalt 1.0000 110,000.00 110,000.00
City Administrator Pathway on Parkway design - offset by $204k grant 1.0000 255,000.00 255,000.00
City Administrator Highcroft Drive Design - offset by $212,100 grant 1.0000 303,000.00 303,000.00

City Administrator Totals $797,000.00

5297 I-64/N. Outer 40/Long Rd Project .00 .00 .00 2,100,000.00 .00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 78 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Contractual Services

5299 Special Projects .00 .00 .00 25,000.00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $524,682.73 $326,000.00 $881,000.00 $3,353,685.00 $907,000.00

Capital Outlay
5440 Machinery & equipment .00 .00 .00 .00 185,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Front End Loader ML14 Net Trade-in (est. $75,000) 1.0000 185,000.00 185,000.00

City Administrator Totals $185,000.00

5460 Automobiles & trucks 504,978.00 514,000.00 430,000.00 968,028.00 470,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator 2.5 ton flatbed truck - replace S-115 (26 points) 1.0000 235,000.00 235,000.00
City Administrator 2.5 ton dump truck - replaces S- 116 (25 points) 1.0000 235,000.00 235,000.00

City Administrator Totals $470,000.00

5470 Improvements building & grounds 590,229.11 32,000.00 430,500.00 586,500.00 95,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator HVAC Unit at PWF 1.0000 35,000.00 35,000.00
City Administrator Replace 3 HVAC Units at Amphitheater 1.0000 60,000.00 60,000.00

City Administrator Totals $95,000.00

5490 Street improvements 3,787,646.40 4,340,000.00 5,800,000.00 6,656,539.00 5,100,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Concrete Slab Replacement Projects 2.0000 2,550,000.00 5,100,000.00

City Administrator Totals $5,100,000.00

5495 Storm sewer improvements .00 40,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
5497 Sidewalks improvements 547,370.32 555,000.00 555,000.00 555,000.00 910,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Curb Ramps (added 10/21/2024 per City Council) 1.0000 100,000.00 100,000.00
City Administrator CDBG project - 2 yr project - reimbursement of $84,000 1.0000 110,000.00 110,000.00
City Administrator Sidewalk Replacement Project B 1.0000 300,000.00 300,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 79 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Capital Outlay

City Administrator Sidewalk Replacement Project A 1.0000 400,000.00 400,000.00
City Administrator Totals $910,000.00

Capital Outlay Totals $5,430,223.83 $5,481,000.00 $7,225,500.00 $8,776,067.00 $6,770,000.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $6,261,228.93 $6,110,708.00 $8,432,850.00 $12,456,102.00 $8,129,255.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $6,261,228.93 $6,110,708.00 $8,432,850.00 $12,456,102.00 $8,129,255.00

Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $6,671,988.40 $6,115,000.00 $6,715,000.00 $8,840,000.00 $7,454,950.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $6,261,228.93 $6,110,708.00 $8,432,850.00 $12,456,102.00 $8,129,255.00

Fund   120 - Capital improvement sales tax Totals $410,759.47 $4,292.00 ($1,717,850.00) ($3,616,102.00) ($674,305.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 80 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Municipal Taxes

4205 Sales Tax - Prop P 3,202,539.25 2,903,750.00 3,160,000.00 3,160,000.00 3,340,500.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $3,202,539.25 $2,903,750.00 $3,160,000.00 $3,160,000.00 $3,340,500.00

Intergovernmental
4340 Bullet proof vest grant 8,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00
4350 Parkway Grant 291,443.61 306,703.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 309,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Salary, benefits and overtime for 4 officers 1.0000 309,000.00 309,000.00

City Administrator Totals $309,000.00

4354 Rockwood Grant 157,359.59 146,237.00 155,000.00 155,000.00 162,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Salary, benefits and overtime for 2 officers 1.0000 162,000.00 162,000.00

City Administrator Totals $162,000.00

4355 Community Programs (Safety Town, Youth Academy, 
etc.)

4,530.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 6,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Youth Academy 50.0000 40.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Registration fees collected per student 150.0000 30.00 4,500.00

City Administrator Totals $6,500.00

4361 Police Overtime Grants 16,926.98 24,850.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 24,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator MODOT DWI ENFORCEMENT GRANT 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00
City Administrator MODOT HAZARDOUS MOVING VIOLATION 1.0000 12,000.00 12,000.00

City Administrator Totals $24,000.00

4362 FBI Overtime 18,645.51 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 .00
4363 East West Gateway Grant 97,037.15 94,238.00 122,500.00 122,500.00 122,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Salary and Benefits for one officer 1.0000 122,500.00 122,500.00

City Administrator Totals $122,500.00

4370 Fund from seized assets 339.95 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 81 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Intergovernmental

4375 Post commission training grant 3,849.17 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Training grant funds awarded by the POST commission 1.0000 4,500.00 4,500.00

City Administrator Totals $4,500.00

Intergovernmental Totals $598,631.96 $607,228.00 $637,700.00 $637,700.00 $636,200.00
Charges for Services

4540 Police report 9,573.30 8,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 9,600.00
4541 Clarkson Valley Police Services 459,996.00 460,000.00 460,000.00 460,000.00 460,000.00
4545 Fingerprinting 105.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 200.00
4550 False alarms 1,050.00 5,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00

Charges for Services Totals $470,724.30 $473,400.00 $470,400.00 $470,400.00 $472,800.00
Court Fines and Fees

4800 Court fines & fees 5,525.00 6,100.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00
4810 Court fees - Law Enforcement Training 10,055.50 9,700.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
4815 Inmate Security Fee 10,054.00 9,700.00 10,500.00 10,500.00 10,500.00

Court Fines and Fees Totals $25,634.50 $25,500.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00
Miscellaneous

4920 Insurance reimbursement 27,362.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
4950 Miscellaneous 4,537.64 .00 3,700.00 3,700.00 3,700.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Donations received for community events 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Recycling of brass from used ammunition 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Graduation and compliance checks overtime from school disctricts 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Chamber of Commerce Blossom Bolt Overtime reimbursement 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Chamber of Commerce Pumpkin Run Overtime reimbursement 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00

City Administrator Totals $3,700.00

4990 Operating transfers in 8,216,058.73 8,730,941.00 9,018,462.00 9,018,462.00 9,148,628.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Transfer from GF for operations 1.0000 9,148,628.00 9,148,628.00

City Administrator Totals $9,148,628.00

Miscellaneous Totals $8,247,958.37 $8,730,941.00 $9,022,162.00 $9,022,162.00 $9,152,328.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $12,545,488.38 $12,740,819.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,629,328.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 82 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

REVENUE TOTALS $12,545,488.38 $12,740,819.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,629,328.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 83 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Personnel Services

Salaries
5111 Salaries regular/full-time 7,852,415.96 7,920,833.00 8,093,860.00 8,093,860.00 8,434,865.00
5113 Salaries overtime 87,284.39 100,000.00 112,180.00 112,180.00 85,000.00
5115 Police holiday pay 167,688.11 187,929.00 228,390.00 228,390.00 242,280.00
5199 Personnel Expenditure Budgetary Savings .00 (158,677.00) (162,600.00) (162,600.00) (175,000.00)

Salaries Totals $8,107,388.46 $8,050,085.00 $8,271,830.00 $8,271,830.00 $8,587,145.00
Benefits

5120 Social security 587,438.60 627,970.00 645,240.00 645,240.00 670,305.00
5122 Workers compensation 435,821.00 428,741.00 427,450.00 427,450.00 444,455.00
5124 Insurance health 928,763.14 958,679.00 1,125,410.00 1,125,410.00 1,220,335.00
5125 Insurance life 17,291.99 20,717.00 20,110.00 20,110.00 21,400.00
5126 Insurance-dental 53,175.04 60,014.00 62,260.00 62,260.00 59,245.00
5127 Insurance disability 20,643.98 28,144.00 27,660.00 27,660.00 29,760.00
5130 Retirement program 648,348.01 648,752.00 674,760.00 674,760.00 700,975.00

Benefits Totals $2,691,481.76 $2,773,017.00 $2,982,890.00 $2,982,890.00 $3,146,475.00
Personnel Services Totals $10,798,870.22 $10,823,102.00 $11,254,720.00 $11,254,720.00 $11,733,620.00

Contractual Services
5221 Data processing 34,525.44 35,410.00 39,375.00 40,875.00 .00
5233 Credit Card Fee 422.16 600.00 600.00 600.00 500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Misc credit card processing fees1 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $500.00

5244 Investigative expenses 2,835.83 5,620.00 6,180.00 6,180.00 4,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Surveillance Investigations SEU 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Major Case Squad Activation 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Organized Retail Crime Investigations 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00

City Administrator Totals $4,500.00

5246 Maintenance & repair-building .00 .00 .00 .00 3,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Replacement Desk System for Report Writing Room 1.0000 3,500.00 3,500.00

City Administrator Totals $3,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 84 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

5247 Maintenance & repair-equipment 5,267.97 11,300.00 9,900.00 9,900.00 9,935.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Equipment Repair 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Weapon Repair 1.0000 2,035.00 2,035.00
City Administrator Fire Extinguishers for Vehicles 1.0000 2,400.00 2,400.00
City Administrator Radar Repair / Certification 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $9,935.00

5248 Maintenance & repair vehicles 429.86 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Cleaning Vehicles / Detailing for Special Events 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $500.00

5249 Memberships & subscriptions 2,249.01 4,740.00 4,980.00 4,980.00 3,910.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Missouri Peace Officer's Association 1.0000 30.00 30.00
City Administrator Missouri Crime Prevention Association 2.0000 25.00 50.00
City Administrator Intelligence Analyst Membership (Detective in Fusion Center) 1.0000 50.00 50.00
City Administrator St Louis Regional Traffic Safety 1.0000 60.00 60.00
City Administrator National Association of Accident Reconstructionists 2.0000 30.00 60.00
City Administrator Missouri Association for Court Administration 1.0000 60.00 60.00
City Administrator National Association of Field Trainers 2.0000 40.00 80.00
City Administrator Gateway Crime Prevention Council 1.0000 80.00 80.00
City Administrator Metro St Louis Association for Court Administration 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator Missouri Law Enforcement Accreditation Commission 1.0000 100.00 100.00
City Administrator Law Enforcement Officials 10.0000 12.00 120.00
City Administrator International Assoc of Property & Evidence 2.0000 75.00 150.00
City Administrator International Association of Chiefs of Police 1.0000 190.00 190.00
City Administrator FBI National Academy Associates 2.0000 115.00 230.00
City Administrator Major Case Squad Membership 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator Mid States Organized Crime Information Center 1.0000 250.00 250.00
City Administrator St Louis Area Police Chief's Associations (SLAPCA) 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator National Association of School Resource Officers 8.0000 50.00 400.00
City Administrator Criminal Information Exchange 1.0000 400.00 400.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 85 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

City Administrator Missouri Police Chief's Association 2.0000 225.00 450.00
City Administrator CIT Annual Banquet 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $3,910.00

5251 Contractual 476,873.14 510,180.00 598,200.00 626,033.00 505,550.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Language Line Interpretation Services 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Vehicle Window Tint Car 5 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Carcass Removal 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00
City Administrator FLOCK Cameras 7.0000 2,500.00 17,500.00
City Administrator Vehicle Changeover Install 1.0000 42,100.00 42,100.00
City Administrator REJIS 1.0000 81,000.00 81,000.00
City Administrator Body Cameras/In Car cameras 1.0000 129,850.00 129,850.00
City Administrator St Louis County Dispatch Services 1.0000 230,000.00 230,000.00

City Administrator Totals $505,550.00

5260 Printing & binding 3,593.33 3,620.00 6,320.00 6,320.00 6,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Evidence Envelope Printing 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Business Cards 20.0000 60.00 1,200.00
City Administrator Record Room Forms & Envelopes 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Prosecuting Attorney Printing and Office Supplies 1.0000 2,300.00 2,300.00

City Administrator Totals $6,000.00

5261 Professional services 9,435.67 9,700.00 9,700.00 9,700.00 7,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Drug Destruction Fees 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator CALEA Annual 1.0000 4,700.00 4,700.00

City Administrator Totals $7,200.00

5268 Rental equipment 1,813.14 2,060.00 2,125.00 2,125.00 1,935.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Portable Restroom for Range 1.0000 1,935.00 1,935.00

City Administrator Totals $1,935.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 86 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

5273 Inmate Security Expense 18,252.77 24,772.00 22,480.00 22,480.00 14,380.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Inmate Property Bags 1.0000 300.00 300.00
City Administrator Inmate Welfare Supplies 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator Cleaning of Prisoner Blankets 1.0000 1,500.00 1,500.00
City Administrator Breathalyzer & Drug Testing Supplies 1.0000 1,680.00 1,680.00
City Administrator Inmate Bio Hazard Clean Up 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Latex gloves 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Prisoner Meals 1.0000 2,400.00 2,400.00
City Administrator Medical Examinations 1.0000 4,000.00 4,000.00

City Administrator Totals $14,380.00

5277 Training & continuing education 42,006.84 43,944.00 60,390.00 60,390.00 58,423.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Cellebrite recertification training 1.0000 330.00 330.00
City Administrator Camp Fury 1.0000 395.00 395.00
City Administrator Field Training Instructor Training 1.0000 600.00 600.00
City Administrator Police Applicant Testing 50.0000 15.75 787.50
City Administrator Mediocolegal Death Training 1.0000 875.00 875.00
City Administrator Citizen & Teen Academy 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Police Officer Recruitment 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator CIT Conference 6.0000 170.00 1,020.00
City Administrator Missouri Association for Court Administrators Training 1.0000 1,100.00 1,100.00
City Administrator FBI N.A. Annual Refresher Training 2.0000 750.00 1,500.00
City Administrator  FBI - LEEDA Command Leadership Training 1.0000 1,590.00 1,590.00
City Administrator MSHP Criminal Justice Information System Training 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Missouri Police Clerk's Training 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator CALEA 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator International Association of Chief's of Police Conference 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Berla Training 1.0000 4,500.00 4,500.00
City Administrator Special Response Team training 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Professional Training and Certifications 1.0000 5,000.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Computer Based Training (Lexipol) 1.0000 6,900.00 6,900.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 87 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

City Administrator County & Municpal Police Academy 110.0000 157.50 17,325.00
City Administrator Totals $58,422.50

5279 Training post commission 12,323.16 15,625.00 13,200.00 13,200.00 16,270.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Threat Recognition Instructor Recert 1.0000 55.00 55.00
City Administrator Misc POST sponsored training 1.0000 80.00 80.00
City Administrator TASER Instructor Renewal 1.0000 375.00 375.00
City Administrator Basic SRO training 1.0000 445.00 445.00
City Administrator CIT Annual Training registrations 6.0000 75.00 450.00
City Administrator Major Case Squad Annual Retraining 6.0000 100.00 600.00
City Administrator Leadership Development sponsored by FBI 1.0000 695.00 695.00
City Administrator Bosch Crash Reconstruction Training 4.0000 200.00 800.00
City Administrator School Resource Officer Conference Rotating 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator Missouri Police Chief's Annual Training 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Street Crimes Conference 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator DRE Training 2.0000 500.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Missouri Crime Prevention 2.0000 800.00 1,600.00
City Administrator LETSAC Training 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Crash Investigations Training for New Officer 2.0000 2,685.00 5,370.00

City Administrator Totals $16,270.00

5975 Allocation 489,300.00 489,300.00 488,900.00 488,900.00 523,708.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator IT - Skyido  Drone Mgmt 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator IT - IdentiKit - Child Identity Creation for Kids 1.0000 500.00 500.00
City Administrator CS - Copier Maintenance 1.0000 1,200.00 1,200.00
City Administrator IT - Bosh Crash Data Recorder Software 1.0000 1,400.00 1,400.00
City Administrator IT - Faro 3d Traffic Diagraming 1.0000 1,600.00 1,600.00
City Administrator IT - Guardian Alliance Tech - Hiring Solution 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator IT - Computer Desktops 2.0000 1,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator IT - Guardian Tracking (from IT) 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator IT - Misc In-Car Software 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator IT - Assisted Partrol GPS 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 88 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Contractual Services

City Administrator IT - FTO Tracker Testing/Candidate Evaluation 1.0000 2,800.00 2,800.00
City Administrator IT - LiveView GPS Tracking 12.0000 250.00 3,000.00
City Administrator IT - TLOXP Law Enf. Prem Credit/Earnings Investigation 12.0000 250.00 3,000.00
City Administrator IT - Berla Vehicle Forensics 1.0000 3,250.00 3,250.00
City Administrator IT - Cell Hawk Cellphone Forensics 1.0000 5,500.00 5,500.00
City Administrator IT - Power DMS CALEA Documentation Mgmt 1.0000 6,500.00 6,500.00
City Administrator IT - Evidence Tracker - Evidence Inventory 1.0000 9,000.00 9,000.00
City Administrator IT - Cellbrite Cellphone Forensics 1.0000 17,000.00 17,000.00
City Administrator CS - Cellphones Service & Hardware 39.0000 442.00 17,238.00
City Administrator IT - Microsoft MVL 110.0000 255.00 28,050.00
City Administrator IT - Tyler Technolgies 110.0000 255.00 28,050.00
City Administrator PW - Vehicle Maintenance & Repair 1.0000 90,000.00 90,000.00
City Administrator CS - Insurance 1.0000 105,000.00 105,000.00
City Administrator PW - Gasoline and Oil 1.0000 189,000.00 189,000.00

City Administrator Totals $523,708.00

Contractual Services Totals $1,099,328.32 $1,157,371.00 $1,262,850.00 $1,292,183.00 $1,156,311.00
Commodities

5312 Crime prevention supplies 4,391.99 10,500.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Crime Prevention Supplies and Presentations 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Special Event Materials and Child ID Kits 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00
City Administrator Funds for Youth Activities 1.0000 3,000.00 3,000.00

City Administrator Totals $9,000.00

5313 Department supplies 116,041.87 167,078.00 180,601.00 192,978.00 171,237.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Door Stops Tactical 1.0000 360.00 360.00
City Administrator First Aid Supplies 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Firearms Cleaning Supplies 1.0000 400.00 400.00
City Administrator Faraday Bags (w/batteries) for Evidence Storage 6.0000 80.00 480.00
City Administrator Batteries for flashlights and weapon mounted lights 500.0000 2.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Department promotional items 200.0000 5.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Office Chairs 4.0000 250.00 1,000.00
City Administrator Air Filters for Evidence Storage Area 3.0000 400.00 1,200.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 89 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Commodities

City Administrator Taser Duty Cartridge 40.0000 35.00 1,400.00
City Administrator Supervisor Vehicle Equipment 1.0000 1,610.00 1,610.00
City Administrator Traffic Flares 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Radio Charger Six Unit Motorola 2.0000 1,022.50 2,045.00
City Administrator Radio Charger Single Unit Motorola 20.0000 112.00 2,240.00
City Administrator SRT supplies 1.0000 2,500.00 2,500.00
City Administrator Batteries for Portable Radios 25.0000 102.00 2,550.00
City Administrator Munitions for Less Lethal Shotguns 300.0000 8.50 2,550.00
City Administrator Sirens & Brackets 9.0000 346.00 3,114.00
City Administrator Taser Power Source 125.0000 25.00 3,125.00
City Administrator Vehicle Changeover Supplies 1.0000 3,400.00 3,400.00
City Administrator Mobile Ticket Printer, Power Adapter and Docking Station 3.0000 1,294.00 3,882.00
City Administrator Ballistic Plates Level III 10.0000 400.00 4,000.00
City Administrator LED lights for grills, bumpers, etc and mounting hardware 20.0000 250.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Interactive Panel for Roll Call 2.0000 2,500.00 5,000.00
City Administrator Console Boxes, accessories and hardware 10.0000 535.00 5,350.00
City Administrator LED Light Bars of various sizes (full roof, small interior,etc) 15.0000 400.00 6,000.00
City Administrator Range Supplies 1.0000 6,500.00 6,500.00
City Administrator Radar Unit Replacement 2.0000 3,670.00 7,340.00
City Administrator Taser Training Cartridge 230.0000 40.00 9,200.00
City Administrator AR-15 Rifle/Shotgun Mounts for Vehicles 9.0000 1,164.00 10,476.00
City Administrator Prisoner Seat / Restraint / Partition (HALF - SUV) 5.0000 2,486.00 12,430.00
City Administrator Ballistic Vests 20.0000 825.00 16,500.00
City Administrator Portable Radios 5.0000 4,537.00 22,685.00
City Administrator Ammunition 1.0000 24,500.00 24,500.00

City Administrator Totals $171,237.00

5315 Safety town supplies 2,874.71 5,855.00 5,855.00 5,855.00 5,855.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Replace Safety Town Vehicles 2.0000 280.00 560.00
City Administrator Safety Town Supplies 1.0000 5,295.00 5,295.00

City Administrator Totals $5,855.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 90 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Commodities

5321 Investigative supplies 3,487.30 4,810.00 6,190.00 6,190.00 7,665.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator HEPA Filter-Annual Replacement for Evidence Processing 1.0000 365.00 365.00
City Administrator Carbon Filter for Cyanosafe Fuming Chamber 1.0000 640.00 640.00
City Administrator Carbon Filter for Drying Cabinet 1.0000 650.00 650.00
City Administrator CD's and DVD's 1.0000 750.00 750.00
City Administrator Traffic Accident Investigative Supplies 1.0000 800.00 800.00
City Administrator Crime Scene Processing Supplies 1.0000 2,000.00 2,000.00
City Administrator Camera, Fash and Case Replacement 2.0000 1,230.00 2,460.00

City Administrator Totals $7,665.00

5325 Miscellaneous supplies 6,379.23 7,700.00 7,700.00 7,700.00 500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Confidential Investigative Funds 1.0000 500.00 500.00

City Administrator Totals $500.00

5343 Uniforms 58,157.86 79,000.00 85,500.00 91,738.00 85,400.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Clothing Allowance for Detectives 7.0000 1,200.00 8,400.00
City Administrator New and Replacement Uniforms and Equipment 1.0000 77,000.00 77,000.00

City Administrator Totals $85,400.00

5350 Computer equip under $5,000 14,725.00 16,400.00 24,150.00 24,150.00 24,120.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator External Disc Drive 1.0000 120.00 120.00
City Administrator Replacement Mobile Data Terminals for fleet vehicles 8.0000 3,000.00 24,000.00

City Administrator Totals $24,120.00

Commodities Totals $206,057.96 $291,343.00 $318,996.00 $337,611.00 $303,777.00
Capital Outlay

5410 Computer equipment .00 .00 31,276.00 31,276.00 .00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 91 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Capital Outlay

5460 Automobiles & trucks 451,614.00 490,000.00 450,000.00 450,000.00 439,500.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Fleet of 10 of police vehicles 10.0000 43,950.00 439,500.00

City Administrator Totals $439,500.00

5470 Improvements building & grounds .00 .00 11,900.00 11,900.00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $451,614.00 $490,000.00 $493,176.00 $493,176.00 $439,500.00

Division   041 - Police Totals $12,555,870.50 $12,761,816.00 $13,329,742.00 $13,377,690.00 $13,633,208.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $12,555,870.50 $12,761,816.00 $13,329,742.00 $13,377,690.00 $13,633,208.00

Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $12,545,488.38 $12,740,819.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,317,762.00 $13,629,328.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $12,555,870.50 $12,761,816.00 $13,329,742.00 $13,377,690.00 $13,633,208.00

Fund   121 - Public Safety/Prop P Totals ($10,382.12) ($20,997.00) ($11,980.00) ($59,928.00) ($3,880.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 92 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Intergovernmental

4381 Miscellaneous Grant 2,368,389.16 2,806,697.00 1,283,410.00 1,283,410.00 .00
Intergovernmental Totals $2,368,389.16 $2,806,697.00 $1,283,410.00 $1,283,410.00 $0.00

Investment Income
4901 Interest on investments 139,165.14 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00
4903 Gain/loss on investments 7,936.00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Investment Income Totals $147,101.14 $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $2,515,490.30 $2,806,697.00 $1,293,410.00 $1,293,410.00 $0.00
REVENUE TOTALS $2,515,490.30 $2,806,697.00 $1,293,410.00 $1,293,410.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 93 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   037 - Information Technology
Capital Outlay

5410 Computer equipment 63,835.91 .00 .00 70,879.00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $63,835.91 $0.00 $0.00 $70,879.00 $0.00

Division   037 - Information Technology Totals $63,835.91 $0.00 $0.00 $70,879.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 94 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   041 - Police
Capital Outlay

5410 Computer equipment 25,733.00 25,735.00 .00 .00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $25,733.00 $25,735.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Other finance use and source
Operating Transfers Out

5990 Operating transfers out 1,000,105.20 1,000,000.00 .00 .00 .00
Operating Transfers Out Totals $1,000,105.20 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Other finance use and source Totals $1,000,105.20 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   041 - Police Totals $1,025,838.20 $1,025,735.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:42 PM Page 95 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   072 - Street Maintenance
Contractual Services

5254 Snow removal reimbursement 98,391.79 170,000.00 .00 .00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $98,391.79 $170,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   072 - Street Maintenance Totals $98,391.79 $170,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 96 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   076 - Facility Maintenance
Capital Outlay

5470 Improvements building & grounds 429,083.50 294,000.00 415,000.00 415,000.00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $429,083.50 $294,000.00 $415,000.00 $415,000.00 $0.00

Division   076 - Facility Maintenance Totals $429,083.50 $294,000.00 $415,000.00 $415,000.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 97 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Contractual Services

5251 Contractual 164,430.85 .00 75,000.00 130,000.00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $164,430.85 $0.00 $75,000.00 $130,000.00 $0.00

Capital Outlay
5470 Improvements building & grounds 80,973.30 .00 .00 .00 .00

Capital Outlay Totals $80,973.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $245,404.15 $0.00 $75,000.00 $130,000.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 98 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Contractual Services

5299 Special Projects 121,922.95 332,127.00 .00 14,252.00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $121,922.95 $332,127.00 $0.00 $14,252.00 $0.00

Commodities
5313 Department supplies 4,734.00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Commodities Totals $4,734.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Capital Outlay

5440 Machinery & equipment 93,544.76 94,835.00 .00 .00 .00
5460 Automobiles & trucks 168,563.00 .00 .00 40,433.00 .00

Capital Outlay Totals $262,107.76 $94,835.00 $0.00 $40,433.00 $0.00

Division   084 - Parks and Recreation Totals $388,764.71 $426,962.00 $0.00 $54,685.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 99 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment
Contractual Services

5299 Special Projects 14,782.00 825,000.00 834,629.00 1,284,702.00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $14,782.00 $825,000.00 $834,629.00 $1,284,702.00 $0.00

Commodities
5313 Department supplies 83,280.00 25,000.00 .00 .00 .00

Commodities Totals $83,280.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Capital Outlay

5470 Improvements building & grounds 17,660.63 40,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00
Capital Outlay Totals $17,660.63 $40,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00

Division   085 - Arts and Entertainment Totals $115,722.63 $890,000.00 $839,629.00 $1,289,702.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 100 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act

EXPENSE
Division   086 - Pool
Contractual Services

5251 Contractual 1,348.27 .00 .00 .00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $1,348.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   086 - Pool Totals $1,348.27 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,368,389.16 $2,806,697.00 $1,329,629.00 $1,960,266.00 $0.00

Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $2,515,490.30 $2,806,697.00 $1,293,410.00 $1,293,410.00 $0.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,368,389.16 $2,806,697.00 $1,329,629.00 $1,960,266.00 $0.00

Fund   137 - Am Rescue Plan Act Totals $147,101.14 $0.00 ($36,219.00) ($666,856.00) $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 101 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF

REVENUE
Division   220 - RPA 2
Municipal Taxes

4050 Property taxes - general 62,554.33 .00 .00 .00 275,000.00
4200 Sales tax 11,356.00 .00 .00 .00 75,000.00

Municipal Taxes Totals $73,910.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments .00 .00 .00 .00 10,000.00
Investment Income Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

Division   220 - RPA 2 Totals $73,910.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $360,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 102 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF

REVENUE
Division   250 - Parkway Capital Contribution
Municipal Taxes

4050 Property taxes - general 4,666.69 .00 .00 .00 18,000.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $4,666.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

Division   250 - Parkway Capital Contribution Totals $4,666.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 103 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF

REVENUE
Division   251 - Rockwood Capital Contribution
Municipal Taxes

4050 Property taxes - general 953.92 .00 .00 .00 955.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $953.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $955.00

Division   251 - Rockwood Capital Contribution Totals $953.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $955.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 104 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF

REVENUE
Division   260 - Monarch (25%)
Municipal Taxes

4050 Property taxes - general 6,852.47 .00 .00 .00 9,955.00
Municipal Taxes Totals $6,852.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,955.00

Division   260 - Monarch (25%) Totals $6,852.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,955.00
REVENUE TOTALS $86,383.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $388,910.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 105 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF

EXPENSE
Division   220 - RPA 2
Contractual Services

5261 Professional services 58,853.00 .00 .00 .00 35,000.00
Contractual Services Totals $58,853.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

Division   220 - RPA 2 Totals $58,853.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $58,853.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $86,383.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $388,910.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $58,853.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00

Fund   150 - Chesterfield Regional TIF Totals $27,530.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $353,910.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 106 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   210 - Park Construction 2020

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 54,857.56 .00 .00 .00 .00
Investment Income Totals $54,857.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $54,857.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
REVENUE TOTALS $54,857.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 107 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   210 - Park Construction 2020

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Contractual Services

5261 Professional services .00 60,000.00 .00 .00 .00
Contractual Services Totals $0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Capital Outlay
5480 Improvements other than building 606,893.51 895,928.00 1,016,331.00 1,016,331.00 .00

Capital Outlay Totals $606,893.51 $895,928.00 $1,016,331.00 $1,016,331.00 $0.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $606,893.51 $955,928.00 $1,016,331.00 $1,016,331.00 $0.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $606,893.51 $955,928.00 $1,016,331.00 $1,016,331.00 $0.00

Fund   210 - Park Construction 2020 Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $54,857.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $606,893.51 $955,928.00 $1,016,331.00 $1,016,331.00 $0.00

Fund   210 - Park Construction 2020 Totals ($552,035.95) ($955,928.00) ($1,016,331.00) ($1,016,331.00) $0.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 108 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   422 - COPs 2005 Parks

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 3,309.95 .00 .00 .00 .00
Investment Income Totals $3,309.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous
4990 Operating transfers in 2,433,471.04 2,436,250.00 2,512,250.00 2,512,250.00 2,584,201.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator COPS 2013 DS Admin/Trustee Fees (from 119) 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00
City Administrator COPS 2013 Interest Payment (from 119) 2.0000 37,650.00 75,300.00
City Administrator COPS 2013 Principal Payment (from 119) 1.0000 326,249.00 326,249.00
City Administrator Reserve Used from Fund 428 for Principal Payment 1.0000 2,181,652.00 2,181,652.00

City Administrator Totals $2,584,201.00

Miscellaneous Totals $2,433,471.04 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,584,201.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $2,436,780.99 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,584,201.00
REVENUE TOTALS $2,436,780.99 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,584,201.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 109 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   422 - COPs 2005 Parks

EXPENSE
Division   084 - Parks and Recreation
Other finance use and source

Principal
5600 Principal payment 2,180,000.00 2,180,000.00 2,365,000.00 2,365,000.00 2,510,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Payment 2025 1.0000 2,510,000.00 2,510,000.00

City Administrator Totals $2,510,000.00

Principal Totals $2,180,000.00 $2,180,000.00 $2,365,000.00 $2,365,000.00 $2,510,000.00
Interest and Fiscal Charges

5601 Interest expense 255,250.00 255,250.00 146,250.00 146,250.00 75,300.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Interest Payments-2025 2.0000 37,650.00 75,300.00

City Administrator Totals $75,300.00

5602 Trustee/Agent Fees 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Trustee/Agent Fees-BOK Financial 1.0000 1,000.00 1,000.00

City Administrator Totals $1,000.00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $256,250.00 $256,250.00 $147,250.00 $147,250.00 $76,300.00
Other finance use and source Totals $2,436,250.00 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,586,300.00

Division   084 - Parks and Recreation Totals $2,436,250.00 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,586,300.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,436,250.00 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,586,300.00

Fund   422 - COPs 2005 Parks Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $2,436,780.99 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,584,201.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,436,250.00 $2,436,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,512,250.00 $2,586,300.00

Fund   422 - COPs 2005 Parks Totals $530.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,099.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 110 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   424 - 2008 Parks Phase II Certificate

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 469.54 .00 .00 .00 .00
Investment Income Totals $469.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous
4990 Operating transfers in 345,908.90 346,378.00 350,378.00 350,378.00 348,745.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator COPS 2016 DS Admin/Trustee fees from Parks (Fund 119) 1.0000 950.00 950.00
City Administrator COPS 2016 Bond Payment from Parks (Fund 119) 1.0000 347,795.00 347,795.00

City Administrator Totals $348,745.00

Miscellaneous Totals $345,908.90 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $348,745.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $346,378.44 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $348,745.00
REVENUE TOTALS $346,378.44 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $348,745.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 111 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   424 - 2008 Parks Phase II Certificate

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Principal
5600 Principal payment 300,000.00 300,000.00 310,000.00 310,000.00 315,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Principal Payment-2025 1.0000 315,000.00 315,000.00

City Administrator Totals $315,000.00

Principal Totals $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $310,000.00 $310,000.00 $315,000.00
Interest and Fiscal Charges

5601 Interest expense 45,427.50 45,428.00 39,428.00 39,428.00 33,228.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Interest Payments-2025 2.0000 16,614.00 33,228.00

City Administrator Totals $33,228.00

5602 Trustee/Agent Fees 900.00 950.00 950.00 950.00 950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Trustee/Agent Fees - BOK Financial 1.0000 950.00 950.00

City Administrator Totals $950.00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $46,327.50 $46,378.00 $40,378.00 $40,378.00 $34,178.00
Other finance use and source Totals $346,327.50 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $349,178.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $346,327.50 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $349,178.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $346,327.50 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $349,178.00

Fund   424 - 2008 Parks Phase II Certificate Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $346,378.44 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $348,745.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $346,327.50 $346,378.00 $350,378.00 $350,378.00 $349,178.00

Fund   424 - 2008 Parks Phase II Certificate Totals $50.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($433.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 112 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   428 - COPS 2014

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 214,946.76 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00
4903 Gain/loss on investments 68,300.59 .00 .00 .00 .00

Investment Income Totals $283,247.35 $0.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00
Miscellaneous

4990 Operating transfers in 4,918,467.00 1,000,000.00 .00 1,800,000.00 .00
Miscellaneous Totals $4,918,467.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,800,000.00 $0.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $5,201,714.35 $1,000,000.00 $60,000.00 $1,860,000.00 $60,000.00
REVENUE TOTALS $5,201,714.35 $1,000,000.00 $60,000.00 $1,860,000.00 $60,000.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 113 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   428 - COPS 2014

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Interest and Fiscal Charges
5602 Trustee/Agent Fees 2,000.00 .00 .00 .00 .00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Operating Transfers Out

5990 Operating transfers out 2,544,172.00 2,544,172.00 3,127,852.00 3,127,852.00 2,724,977.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Prepaid DS Funds Used for Fund 430 COPS 2020B (001) 1.0000 330,481.00 330,481.00
City Administrator Prepaid DS Funds Used for Fund 422 COPS 2013 DS payment 1.0000 2,394,496.00 2,394,496.00

City Administrator Totals $2,724,977.00

Operating Transfers Out Totals $2,544,172.00 $2,544,172.00 $3,127,852.00 $3,127,852.00 $2,724,977.00
Other finance use and source Totals $2,546,172.00 $2,544,172.00 $3,127,852.00 $3,127,852.00 $2,724,977.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $2,546,172.00 $2,544,172.00 $3,127,852.00 $3,127,852.00 $2,724,977.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,546,172.00 $2,544,172.00 $3,127,852.00 $3,127,852.00 $2,724,977.00

Fund   428 - COPS 2014 Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $5,201,714.35 $1,000,000.00 $60,000.00 $1,860,000.00 $60,000.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $2,546,172.00 $2,544,172.00 $3,127,852.00 $3,127,852.00 $2,724,977.00

Fund   428 - COPS 2014 Totals $2,655,542.35 ($1,544,172.00) ($3,067,852.00) ($1,267,852.00) ($2,664,977.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 114 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   429 - COPS 2020 A - Non-Taxable

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 124.33 .00 .00 .00 .00
Investment Income Totals $124.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous
4990 Operating transfers in 94,908.88 95,075.00 95,075.00 95,075.00 95,012.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator DS Admin/Trustee fees - BOK Financial 1.0000 950.00 950.00
City Administrator DS Bond Payment (Parks Fund 119) 2.0000 47,031.00 94,062.00

City Administrator Totals $95,012.00

Miscellaneous Totals $94,908.88 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,012.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $95,033.21 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,012.00
REVENUE TOTALS $95,033.21 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,012.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 115 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   429 - COPS 2020 A - Non-Taxable

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Interest and Fiscal Charges
5601 Interest expense 94,125.00 94,125.00 94,125.00 94,125.00 94,125.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Interest-2025 2.0000 47,062.50 94,125.00

City Administrator Totals $94,125.00

5602 Trustee/Agent Fees 900.00 950.00 950.00 950.00 950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator DS Agent/Trustee Fees - BOK Financial 1.0000 950.00 950.00

City Administrator Totals $950.00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $95,025.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00
Other finance use and source Totals $95,025.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $95,025.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $95,025.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00

Fund   429 - COPS 2020 A - Non-Taxable Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $95,033.21 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,012.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $95,025.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00 $95,075.00

Fund   429 - COPS 2020 A - Non-Taxable Totals $8.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($63.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 116 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   430 - COPS 2020 B - Taxable

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Investment Income

4901 Interest on investments 2,119.66 .00 .00 .00 .00
Investment Income Totals $2,119.66 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous
4990 Operating transfers in 1,573,014.30 1,573,800.00 1,495,300.00 1,495,300.00 1,265,821.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator DS Admin/Trustee fees (from Fund 119) 1.0000 950.00 950.00
City Administrator Reserve Used from Fund 428 (General) 1.0000 330,481.00 330,481.00
City Administrator DS Bond Payment (from General Fund) 1.0000 438,145.00 438,145.00
City Administrator DS Bond Payment (from Fund 119) 1.0000 496,245.00 496,245.00

City Administrator Totals $1,265,821.00

Miscellaneous Totals $1,573,014.30 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,265,821.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $1,575,133.96 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,265,821.00
REVENUE TOTALS $1,575,133.96 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,265,821.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 117 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   430 - COPS 2020 B - Taxable

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Principal
5600 Principal payment 1,450,000.00 1,450,000.00 1,415,000.00 1,415,000.00 1,230,000.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Principal-2025 1.0000 1,230,000.00 1,230,000.00

City Administrator Totals $1,230,000.00

Principal Totals $1,450,000.00 $1,450,000.00 $1,415,000.00 $1,415,000.00 $1,230,000.00
Interest and Fiscal Charges

5601 Interest expense 122,850.00 122,850.00 79,350.00 79,350.00 36,900.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Service Interest Payments 2.0000 18,450.00 36,900.00

City Administrator Totals $36,900.00

5602 Trustee/Agent Fees 900.00 950.00 950.00 950.00 950.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator DS Trustee/Agent Fees - BOK Financial 1.0000 950.00 950.00

City Administrator Totals $950.00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $123,750.00 $123,800.00 $80,300.00 $80,300.00 $37,850.00
Other finance use and source Totals $1,573,750.00 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,267,850.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $1,573,750.00 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,267,850.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $1,573,750.00 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,267,850.00

Fund   430 - COPS 2020 B - Taxable Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $1,575,133.96 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,265,821.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $1,573,750.00 $1,573,800.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,495,300.00 $1,267,850.00

Fund   430 - COPS 2020 B - Taxable Totals $1,383.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,029.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 118 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   431 - Brandywine NID S2020C

REVENUE
Division   000 - Non departmental
Miscellaneous

4990 Operating transfers in 53,199.11 53,199.00 53,200.00 53,200.00 53,200.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Bond Payment Transfer from Fund 020 1.0000 53,200.00 53,200.00

City Administrator Totals $53,200.00

Miscellaneous Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Division   000 - Non departmental Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00
REVENUE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 119 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



Account Account Description
2023 Actual 

Amount
2023 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2024 Amended 

Budget
2025 City 

Administrator
Fund   431 - Brandywine NID S2020C

EXPENSE
Division   079 - Capital Projects
Other finance use and source

Principal
5600 Principal payment 31,943.00 31,943.00 32,806.00 32,806.00 33,805.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Principal Payment-2025 1.0000 33,805.00 33,805.00

City Administrator Totals $33,805.00

Principal Totals $31,943.00 $31,943.00 $32,806.00 $32,806.00 $33,805.00
Interest and Fiscal Charges

5601 Interest expense 21,256.11 21,256.00 20,394.00 20,394.00 19,395.00

Budget Transactions
Level Transaction Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Amount
City Administrator Debt Interest Payment-2024 2.0000 9,697.50 19,395.00

City Administrator Totals $19,395.00

Interest and Fiscal Charges Totals $21,256.11 $21,256.00 $20,394.00 $20,394.00 $19,395.00
Other finance use and source Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Division   079 - Capital Projects Totals $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Fund   431 - Brandywine NID S2020C Totals
REVENUE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00
EXPENSE TOTALS $53,199.11 $53,199.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00 $53,200.00

Fund   431 - Brandywine NID S2020C Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Net Grand Totals
REVENUE GRAND TOTALS $73,268,444.01 $58,553,684.00 $59,869,966.00 $63,794,966.00 $60,588,728.00
EXPENSE GRAND TOTALS $61,175,220.73 $59,571,314.00 $63,481,980.00 $73,327,389.00 $62,801,391.00

Net Grand Totals $12,093,223.28 ($1,017,630.00) ($3,612,014.00) ($9,532,423.00) ($2,212,663.00)

Run by Jeannette Kelly on 11/04/2024 13:26:43 PM Page 120 of 120

2025 Proposed Budget 11-18-2024
Budget Year 2025



DATE CHECK # VENDOR DESCRIPTION CHECK AMT FUND

10/24/2024 1375 ASPIRE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC GENERAL CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENTS OF AMPHITHEATER BACK
OF THE HOUSE - PROGRESS PYMT #1 50,341.60$ 137

10/24/2024 1376 BOND ARCHITECTS, INC. ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES-AMP IMPROVEMENTS-PROGRESS PYMT #11 11,109.85 137

10/24/2024 1377 SECURITY EQUIPMENT SUPPLY SECURITY SYSTEM UPGRADES AT CITY HALL (CAMERAS, RECORDERS) 18,139.76 137

10/31/2024 1378 DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP, INC. 2024 STREET TREE INVENTORY OF THE CITY'S 18,000 STREET TREES 70,296.40 137

10/10/2024 53084 KEYSTONE STAFFING RESOURCES STAFFING FOR TAYLORVILLE, 7 BRIDGES, AND JAMEY JOHNSON
CONCERTS 6,837.95 119

10/10/2024 53111 MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 17925 N OUTER 40; ACCT # 1017-210013295212 7,653.85 119

10/17/2024 53133 AMERICAN BANNER AMUSEMENTS, INC. THREE AMUSEMENT PARK RIDES FOR THE FALL FESTIVAL 15,000.00 119

10/17/2024 53157 SEATED, INC. SHANE SMITH & THE SAINTS FEES FOR VIP PACKAGES SOLD 9,933.33 119

10/24/2024 53167 AMEREN MISSOURI 17925 N OUTER 40 CONCESSION B; ACCT# 0153089010 8,509.46 119

10/24/2024 53168 AMEREN MISSOURI 17925 N OUTER 40 CONCESSION D/E; ACCT# 5798504112 6,427.71 119

10/24/2024 53179 GR ROBINSON SEED & SERVICE CO SULFUR, FERTILIZERS, AND CHEMICIALS 5,890.00 119

10/24/2024 53208 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY HOLDING, LLC LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES (WIRE, PVC, FULL CIRCLE ROTOR, ALGAECIDE AND
WATER QUALITY ENHANCER) 8,162.88 119

10/31/2024 53228 METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT 16365 LYDIA HILL DR, ACCT 0472321-9 27,711.62 119

10/31/2024 53231 MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 16365 LYDIA HILL DR, ACCT #1017-210013295038 16,384.08 119

10/31/2024 53235 OLD ROCK HOUSE LLC JAMEY JOHNSON TICKET CONCERT NET REVENUE SETTLEMENT 5,154.00 119

10/3/2024 73389 DELTA DENTAL  OF MISSOURI OCTOBER 2024 DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS 14,406.70 001

10/3/2024 73400 HESSE GRAVILLE, LLC AUGUST 2024 LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEES 45,545.00 001

10/3/2024 73402 HORNER & SHIFRIN INC. ENGINEERING SERVICES-SCHOETTLER ROAD SIDEWALK EXTENSION-
PROGRESS PYMT #4 7,911.33 120

10/3/2024 73418 ST. LOUIS AREA HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST-MEDICAL OCTOBER 2024 HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS 235,603.88 001

10/3/2024 73426 TOPE INC SEWER REPAIR - 2173 WILLOW RIDGE 5,892.00 110

10/10/2024 73443 APPLIED CONCEPTS, INC. ACCESSORIES FOR TWO POLICE VEHICLES (STALKER RADAR MOUNTS
WITH RADAR REMOTE) 7,340.30 121

10/10/2024 73444 ASPIRE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC 2024 PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY MEZZANINE IMPROVEMENTS-PROGRESS
PYMT #6 76,092.73 120

10/10/2024 73454 ENERGY PETROLEUM CO. GASOLINE-89 OCT (7872.8 GALLONS), DIESEL #2 ULTRA LS (81.7 GALLONS) 19,489.34 001

10/10/2024 73479 ST. LOUIS COUNTY MISSOURI - POLICE DEPT DEPARTMENT COMPUTER ASSISTED REPORT ENTRY SYSTEM 17,734.32 121

10/10/2024 73482 THE HARTFORD-PRIORITY ACCOUNTS OCTOBER 2024 GROUP LIFE, LTD, STD, VOL LIFE, ACCIDENT, AND
CRITICAL ILLNESS INSURANCE 15,263.01 001

10/10/2024 73487 UTILITY ASSOCIATES INC. PURCHASE OF MOBILE VIDEO SYSTEM FOR POLICE PATROL FLEET
VEHICLE NOT PREVOUSLY EQUIPPED 9,149.40 114

10/17/2024 73494 AMEREN MISSOURI 690 CHESTERFIELD PKWY W-0627147004 19,449.37 001

10/17/2024 73495 AMERICA'S PARKING REMARKING INC 2024 STREET STRIPING PROJECT 49,203.08 001

10/17/2024 73517 JOHN DEERE CO. PURCHASE JOHN DEERE GATOR 2024 TX MODEL UTILITY VEHICLE 11,793.28 114

10/17/2024 73520 LOCHMUELLER GROUP INC. ENGINEERING SERVICES-LONG RD INTERCHANGE & N OUTER 40
EXTENSION-PROGRESS PYMT #3 20,307.69 120

10/24/2024 73551 CDS OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES PURCHASE (9) PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK 55 IN CAR COMPUTERS 20,032.88 121

10/24/2024 73564 HR GREEN, INC. LADUE FARM ROAD BRIDGE-DESIGN SERVICES-PROGRESS PYMT #2 19,579.79 120

10/24/2024 73574 MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 690 CHESTERFIELD PKWY W-1017-210014663856 6,222.83 001

10/24/2024 73578 PNC BANK SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 2024 MONTHLY CREDIT CARD STATEMENT 17,130.05 001

City of Chesterfield
Excess Checks (=> $5,000)

OCTOBER 2024



DATE CHECK # VENDOR DESCRIPTION CHECK AMT FUND

City of Chesterfield
Excess Checks (=> $5,000)

OCTOBER 2024

10/24/2024 73588 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO., INC PURCHASE SKID STEER PAVEMENT BREAKER ATTACHMENT AND WALK
BEHIND PAVEMENT LINE STRIPER 11,325.00 001

10/24/2024 73591 TRUCK CENTERS, INC. PURCHASE 2.5 TON FREIGHTLINER TRUCK (REPLACE S-113) AND 2.5 TON
DUMP TRUCK INCLUDING SALT SPREADER AND PLOWS 106,013.11 120

10/24/2024 73592 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC ANNUAL TIMECLOCK LICENSING AND SUPPORT 7,750.85 001

10/31/2024 73597 BENTON HOMEBUILDERS, INC. SUBDIVISION MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT RELEASE - SCHOETTLER GROVE
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 120,419.00 808

10/31/2024 73606 GEOTECHNOLOGY INC. 2024 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION TESTING SERVICES 5,487.00 120

10/31/2024 73611 HORNER & SHIFRIN INC. ENGINEERING SERVICES - SCHOETTLER ROAD SIDEWALK EXTENSION-
PROGRESS PYMT #5 18,799.26 120

10/31/2024 73616 MAESTROVISION INC. REPLACE INTERVIEW ROOMS RECORDING SOFTWARE AND HARDWARE IN
POLICE DEPARTMENT 31,276.00 121

10/31/2024 73632 TIMBERLINE PROFESSIONAL TREE CARE LLC 2024 STREET TREE AND STUMP REMOVALS 12,162.50 001
10/31/2024 73636 VADIVELU, KUMARA GRADING SURETY RELEASE - ESTATES AT CONWAY 5,000.00 808

1,203,932.19$

Respectfully submitted by,
Jeannette Kelly, Director of Finance General Fund 001

Sewer lateral fund 110
Police forfeiture  fund 114

Parks 119
Capital Improvements 120

Public Safety 121
Am Rescue Plan Act 137

Trust & Agency 808
TGA Trust Fund 810

Fund Legend



AGENDA REVIEW – MONDAY, November 18, 2024 – 5:30 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 5:30 PM, on Monday, 

November 18, 2024. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  



APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2024 
 

B. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – October 21, 2024 
 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS  
  
A. Monday, December 2, 2024 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 

B. Thursday, November 21, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

A. Eagle Scout Proclamation – Everett Jennings 
 

APPOINTMENTS  
 

A. Reappointment – Matt Adams – Architectural Review Board 

 



 1 

 
 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

OCTOBER 21, 2024 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04 p.m. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the October 7, 2024 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Monachella made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to 

approve the October 7, 2024 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 



 2 

 

The minutes of the October 7, 2024 Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District 

public hearing were submitted for approval. Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion, 

seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve the October 7, 2024 Downtown 

Chesterfield Special Business District public hearing minutes.  A voice vote was taken 

with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

The minutes of the October 7, 2024 Executive Session were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

the October 7, 2024 Executive Session minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

The minutes of the October 1, 2024 F&A Committee of the Whole (Budget Workshop) 

were submitted for approval. Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember McGuinness, to approve the October 1, 2024 F&A Committee of the 

Whole (Budget Workshop) minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Monday, 

November 4, at 7 p.m. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Ms. Anna Vasilenok, 14562 Gatemont Drive, spoke in favor of a mandatory dog leash 

law in residential areas of Chesterfield. 

 

Mr. Bill Vellios (property owner), 1538 Virginia Drive, was present to answer questions 

about the Ballwin Acres (The Glen) preliminary plat approval. 

 

Mr. Brett Hardesty (representing Hardesty Homes), 232 Chesterfield Industrial Blvd., 

was present to answer questions about the Ballwin Acres (The Glen) preliminary plat 

approval. 

 

Mr. Rob Kilo, 16734 Benton Taylor Drive, provided additional information about the 

Chesterfield Parks leash policies in City parks. 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

There were no appointments scheduled for this meeting. 

 



 3 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning & Public Works Committee 

 

Bill No. 3522 Amends Schedule VII of the Traffic Code of the City of Chesterfield 

by implementing a parking restriction on Long Road Crossing Drive, 

North Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard, North Trade Center 

Boulevard, and North Spirit Drive  (Second Reading) Planning and 

Public Works Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Dan Hurt, Chairperson of the Planning & Public Works Committee, 

made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos, for the second reading of Bill 

No. 3522.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result (Councilmember Wahl 

voted “Nay”) and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3522 was read for the second 

time.  A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3522 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Budoor, Hurt, McGuinness, Monachella, Mastorakos, Hansen 

and Moore.  Nays – Wahl.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3522 approved, 

passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3312. 

 

Bill No. 3523 Amends City of Chesterfield Ordinance 2646 to establish four new 

permitted uses and revise the development criteria for a 0.226-acre 

tract of land zoned “UC” Urban Core District with a Landmark and 

Preservation Area (LPA) overlay located on the south side of Old 

Chesterfield Road and its intersection with Santa Maria Drive 

(17T310083)  (Second Reading) Planning Commission 

recommends approval. Planning & Public Works Committee 

recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, for the 

second reading of Bill No. 3523.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3523 was read for the second time.  

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3523 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Hansen, Mastorakos, McGuinness, Hurt, Monachella, Budoor, 

Moore and Wahl.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3523 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3313. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

the preliminary plat and associated plans for Ballwin Acres (The Glen).  A roll call vote 

was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Monachella, Hansen, Mastorakos, Wahl, 

Moore, McGuinness, Budoor and Hurt.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the 

motion passed. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

the purchase of a walk-behind forklift with existing budgeted funds from Crown Lift 

Trucks in an amount not to exceed $35,559 and authorize the intra-fund budget transfer 

as recommended by the Planning and Public Works Committee.  A roll call vote was 



 4 

taken with the following results:  Ayes – Wahl, Hansen, Budoor, Hurt, Monachella, 

Moore, McGuinness and Mastorakos.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion 

passed. 

 

Councilmember Hurt announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled for 

Thursday, November 7, at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Finance & Administration Committee 

 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness, Chairperson of the Finance & Administration 

Committee, indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this 

meeting. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Gary Budoor, Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee, 

indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

Councilmember Budoor announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled 

for Wednesday, November 6, at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety Committee, 

indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

REPORT FROM THE ASSISTANT CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

Assistant City Administrator Elliot Brown requested a motion to increase the 2025 draft 

budget allocation from the Capital Projects Fund by $300,000 for the purpose of 

increasing the effort for sidewalk repair, replacement and accessible ramp installations, as 

recommended by Director of Public Works/City Engineer Jim Eckrich.  Councilmember 

Wahl made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve this 

recommendation.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Budoor, 

McGuinness, Mastorakos, Wahl, Moore, Hurt, Hansen and Monachella.  Nays – None.  

Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Bill No. 3525 Provides for the approval of a Boundary Adjustment Plat for Lots 3-

7 of the Long Road Lipton Parcel subdivision totaling 8.98-acres of 

land zoned “PI” Planned Industrial District (17U410160, 

17U410159, 17U410148, 17U410137, 17U410126)  (First & 

Second Reading) Department of Planning recommends approval 

 



 5 

Councilmember Monachella made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for 

the first and second readings of Bill No. 3525.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3525 was read for the 

first and second time.  A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 

3525 with the following results:  Ayes – Wahl, Monachella, Mastorakos, Budoor, 

Hansen, Hurt, McGuinness and Moore.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 

3525 approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO 3314. 

 

Bill No. 3524 Establishes the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District; 

making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing certain 

actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a severability 

clause  (Second Reading held until January 2025) 

 

Assistant City Administrator Brown indicated that no action is required pertaining to Bill 

No. 3524 at this meeting.  The second reading is scheduled for January 2025 due to 

statutory requirements. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:35 

p.m. 

 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 





PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Mary Monachella 

 
1. Proposed Bill No. 3526 – Public Street Acceptance – Alexander 

Woods: An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of a portion of 
Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive in Alexander Woods as a public street in 
the City of Chesterfield.  City Staff estimates that this additional 2,400 

square yards of pavement on Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive will cost 
the City of Chesterfield approximately $8,400 annually.  However, in this 
case the developer also reconstructed 4,300 square yards of existing City 

pavement (Nardin Drive) in poor condition which saved the City 
$314,000 in estimated reconstruction costs. (First Reading) Planning & 

Public Works Committee recommends approval.  
 

2. Proposed Bill No. 3527 – P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified 

Development Code – Article 4): An amendment to Article 4 of the 
Unified Development Code for modification to the City’s Tree List. (First
Reading) Planning Commission recommends approval. Planning & 

Public Works Committee recommends approval.
 

3. Next Meeting – November 21, 2024 
 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Planning and Public Works Committee is scheduled for Thursday, 
November 21, 2024, at 5:30pm. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 
of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 

Monday’s meeting.   



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 
SUBJECT: Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary  

 Thursday, November 7, 2024 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held on 
Thursday, November 7, 2024 in Conference Room 101.  
 
In attendance:  

Chair Dan Hurt (Ward III) 
Councilmember Mary Monachella (Ward I) 
Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos (Ward II) 
Councilmember Merrell Hansen (Ward IV) 
Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 
Shilpi Bharti, Planner 
Isaak Simmers, Planner 
Theresa Barnicle, Executive Assistant 
John Nations, Doster, Nations, Ullom, & Boyle, LLC.  
Ed Garozzo, Gray Design Group 
Ty Gramling, Stock and Associates 
Rob Meurer, White Company Commercial Real Estate 
Rusty Saunders, Loomis Associates 
Tony Wiese, B-Street Collision 
Matt Nieters, Gray Design Group 
Zachary Stutz, Stock & Associates 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Councilmember Monachella. Chair Dan Hurt arrived at 
5:32 p.m. 
 
The council unanimously agreed to discuss items in the following order: New Business items III.D, III.C, 
III.B; followed by Unfinished Business items II.A and II.B; then New Business item III.A.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the October 10, 2024 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of October 10, 2024.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 3-0.   

 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 7, 2024 

 

2 

II. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
A. Long Road Crossing: An Amended Site Development Concept Plan for Long Road 

Crossing subdivision located on a 22.99-acre tract of land located at northwest 
intersection of Chesterfield Airport Road and westbound Long Road, zoned “PC”-
Planned Commercial. (Ward 4) 

DISCUSSION 
This agenda item, along with the subsequent item, II.B were revisited from being postponed at the 
October 10, Planning and Public Works Committee meeting. The applicant revised their proposal to 
include changes to the landscaping and building design. In addition, City staff had done ample research 
into other vehicle dealerships and facilities around the Chesterfield Valley area for the purpose of 
comparing this plan to others similar to it. 
 
Upon being presented with the amendments, the council discussed the adequacy of the screening and 
landscaping, with concerns about the visibility of vehicles from highway I-64. Chair Hurt emphasized 
the need for better screening and landscaping to meet design criteria and City code requirements.  
 
Mr. John Nations, a lawyer representing the petitioner, inquired to the council on where the petitioner 
failed to comply with the plan. Mr. Hurt noted that the City Code criteria noted in the Staff report, 
particularly the screening of outdoor storage areas from I-64 and the parking along I-64 do not comply 
with code. Mr. Nations subsequently requested that both unfinished business items be held until the 
next meeting, to which the council was in agreement. 
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to postpone Long Road Crossing Site Development Concept 
Plan until the November 21, 2024 Planning and Public Works Committee meeting. The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
B. Long Road Crossing, Lot B-2: A Site Development Section Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting 

Plan and Architectural Elevations for a vehicle repair facility located on a 4.6-acre tract 
of land located east side of Long Road Crossing Drive, zoned “PC”-Planned Commercial. 
(Ward 4) 

DISCUSSION 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to postpone the Site Development Section Plan for Long 
Road Crossing, Lot B-2 until the November 21, 2024 Planning and Public Works Committee meeting. 
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Hansen, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Long Road Crossing, Lot A-2: A Site Development Section Plan, Landscape Plan, and 
Lighting Plan for a 1.93-acre tract of land zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District 
located south of Long Road Crossing Drive and east of North Chesterfield Industrial 
Boulevard. (Ward 4) 

 
 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 7, 2024 

 

3 

DISCUSSION 
The plan for the development of this lot was presented by Mr. Isaak Simmers. The presented plan is 
for an automotive repair shop that will provide minor repairs and services to vehicles. The building will 
be approximately 4,430 gross square feet and will include an area for service, office space for staff, 
and utility room. The parking will allow for 89 spaces in total, 59 of which were spaces allocated for 
loaner vehicles and vehicles awaiting service. These spaces are shaded on the presented plan. 
 
The committee discussed the potential need to reduce the number of parking spaces and improve the 
design to meet code requirements. Mr. Matt Nieters, petitioner for the applicant, explained the 
business model and the need for multiple parking spaces to facilitate quick vehicle turnover. Members 
of the committee; however, expressed skepticism about the need for such a large number of parking 
spaces and that the proposal is for outdoor storage thus requiring screening. Mr. Rusty Saunders, 
landscape architect with Loomis and Associates, addressed the council to clarify what they would deem 
acceptable regarding landscaping. Chair Hurt suggested that the petitioner work with staff to address 
the committee’s concerns and improve the design. 
 
Overall, it was decided that the best course of action would be to postpone a decision of the item until 
the petitioner can revise their proposal to provide amended parking and landscaping solutions, which 
they intended to do by the next PPW meeting. 
 
Councilmember Monachella made a motion to postpone the Site Development Section Plan for Long 
Road Crossing, Lot A-2 until the November 21, 2024 Planning and Public Works Committee meeting. 
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
B. P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified Development Code – Article 4): An 

amendment to Article 4 of the Unified Development Code for modifications to the City’s 
Tree List. 

DISCUSSION 
Mr. Justin Wyse presented some minor amendments to Article 4 of the Unified Development Code 
regarding landscaping, which included replacing the Standard River Birch with the Dura Heat River 
Birch, as well as removing invasive pear trees and adding arborvitaes. The Parks Citizens Committee 
and City Arborist supported the amendments and approval was recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to recommend P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified 
Development Code – Article 4) to City Council with a recommendation to approve. The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
C. Chesterfield Village Mall: A Site Development Concept Plan, Landscape Plan, and 

Lighting Plan for a 96-acre tract of land zoned “PC&R” Planned Commercial and 
Residential District located on the south side of Interstate 64, east of Chesterfield 
Parkway. (Ward 2) 

 
 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 7, 2024 

 

4 

DISCUSSION 
The applicant has asked to postpone this item to be discussed at the November 21 Planning and Public 
Works Council meeting, to which council agreed. 
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to postpone Chesterfield Village Mall until the November 
21, 2024 Planning and Public Works Committee meeting. This was seconded by Councilmember 
Monachella, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
D. Street Acceptance – Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive (Ward 2) 

DISCUSSION 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to recommend Street Acceptance – Chesterfield Ridge 
Center Drive to City Council with a recommendation to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Hansen, and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
IV. OTHER 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, PE 
  City Administrator 
 

cc:  James A. Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

 

Justin Wyse, AICP, PTP 
Director of Planning 
 

Zachary S. Wolff, PE 
Assistant City Engineer 

 

FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, PE 

Senior Civil Engineer 
 

DATE: October 21, 2024 
  

RE:  Public Street Acceptance  
Alexander Woods 

 

 
Public Works staff recently conducted an inspection of the Alexander Woods subdivision.  As 
part of the inspection, we have determined that the following street meets the City of 
Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for acceptance as a public street:   
 

(1) Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive Approximately 830 feet; from Intersection 
of Nardin Drive to the eastern limit of the 
Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive bridge 
Book 368, Page 1-3; Book 23496, Page 2984; 
Book 23486, Page 1674 

 
A draft ordinance and a map showing the location of the above referenced street and the 
associated record plat exhibit are attached.  The street area to be accepted is approximately 
2,398 square yards of concrete pavement.  The remaining section of Chesterfield Ridge Center 
Drive was previously accepted as a public street by way of ordinance 3038 
 
Nardin Drive is located in the Alexander Woods subdivision and was reconstructed to City 
standards as part of the subdivision construction.  The Nardin Drive right-of-way was existing 
and no new right-of-way was necessary.  A small portion of right-of-way, which covered the 
previous roundabout on Nardin Drive, was vacated as indicated on the attached record plat.      
 
Action Recommended 
 
I recommend forwarding the acceptance of the above-referenced street and associated 
sidewalks to the Planning and Public Works Committee for its consideration. If the Planning 
and Public Works Committee recommends approval, the matter should be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration.   
 

 



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________
 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PORTION OF 

CHESTERFIELD RIDGE CENTER DRIVE IN ALEXANDER WOODS AS A PUBLIC 

STREET IN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has approved the construction of Alexander Woods; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the street in Alexander Woods was intended to be a public street and was 

therefore constructed to the design standards of the Department of Public Works of the City of 

Chesterfield. 

 

WHEREAS, Payne Family Homes has completed required street improvements in 

Alexander Woods. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The following street is hereby accepted by the City of Chesterfield for future care and 

maintenance: 

 

(1) Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive:  Approximately 830 feet; from Intersection 

of Nardin Drive to the eastern limit of the 

Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive bridge  

Book 368, Page 1-3; Book 23496, Page 

2984, Book 23486, Page 1674 

 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 
____________________ 

3526



Chesterfield Ridge Center Drive

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Preliminary Parcels

Parcels

10/18/2024, 2:10:12 PM

0 0.07 0.150.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line



KReiter
Received



KReiter
Received



KReiter
Received



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Adminstrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: November 18th, 2024

RE: P.Z. 08-2024 City of Chesterfield (Unified Development Code – Article 4):
An amendment to Article 4 of the Unified Development Code for
modifications to the City’s Tree List.

Summary
The  Unified Development Code (UDC) contains a table that details the species of trees
that are permitted to be planted within City limits. It also further breaks down which
of the trees may be utilized as street trees or parking lot trees based on a variety of a
species individual characteristics. Landscape plans are reviewed against this table in
addition to the requirements in Section 405.04.020 Tree Preservation and Landscape
Requirements. This table has become outdated in recent years and Chesterfield
Citizens Environmental Advisory Committee has expressed interest in having it
updated.

A Public Hearing was held on October 14th, 2024 and no issues were raised. Planning
Commission voted on the request and a motion to recommend approval passed by a
vote of 7-0.

The petition was review by the Planning & Public Works Committee on November 7th,
2024. The Committee made a motion to forward the petition to City Council with a
recommendation to approve.



BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AMENDING SECTION
405.04.020 OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE RELATING TO THE
TABLE FOR CITY’S TREE LIST.

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code contains
regulations pertaining to Tree Preservation and Landscape Requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the table for the tree list contained
within these regulations; and

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on
October 10, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the
following amendments; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning & Public Works Committee, having considered
said request, recommended approval of the following amendments; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to
approve the amendments to Section 405.04.020 Tree List of the Unified
Development Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section I:  The City of Chesterfield hereby approves the updates to Section
405.04.020 Tree List as set out in Attachment “A” which is attached hereto and
made part thereof.

Section II: If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of
this Ordinance shall be declared by a court of a competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as whole, or
any part thereof.

Section III: Where this Ordinance differs or conflicts with other laws, rules
or regulations, unless the right to do so is preempted or prohibited by the
County, State, or Federal government, the more restrictive or protective of the
City and the public shall apply.

Section IV: This ordinance shall be codified within the Municipal Code of
the City of Chesterfield.

3527



Section V: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

Passed and approved this day of                                 , 2024.

     PRESIDING OFFICER         Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

FIRST READING HELD: 11/18/2024



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate           Size Class

Abies concolor Fir, White (Concolor) x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Acer ginnala Maple, Amur x x x  20-25 Med Small

Acer platanoides Maple, Norway x x 45+ Med Large

Acer platanoides 'Columnare' Maple, Norway, Columnar x x 45+ Med Large

Acer rubrum varieties Maple, Red and Varieties                      x x x 45+ Fast Large

Acer saccharinum Maple, Silver x 45+ Fast Large

Acer saccharum varieties Maple, Sugar and Varieties                 x x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Acer tataricum Maple, Tatarian x x 15-25 Med Small

Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' Maple, Hybrid, Autumn Blaze  x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Acer x freemanii 'Scarsen' Maple, Scarlet Sentinel x x 45+ Fast Large

Aesculus glabra Buckeye, Ohio x x x 25-35 Slow Medium

Aesculus hippocastanum Horsechestnut x  x  30-45 Med Medium

Aesculus pavia Buckeye, Red x x  x  20-30 Slow Slow

Alnus glutinosa Alder, European x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Amelanchier arborea Serviceberry, Downy x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Amelanchier laevis 'Cumulus' Serviceberry, Cumulus       x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Robin Hill' Serviceberry, Robin Hill   x x x 25-30 Slow/Med Medium

Betula nigra 'BNMTF Dura-heat' Dura-heat River Birch x x x 30+ Med Medium

Carpinus betulus Hornbeam, European x x x 35-40 Slow/Med Medium

Carpinus caroliniana Hornbeam, American x x x  x 20-35 Med Small

Carya illinoensis Pecan x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Carya laciniosa Hickory, Shellbark x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Carya ovata Hickory, Shagbark x 45+ Slow Large

Catalpa speciosa Catalpa, Northern x 45+ Fast Large

Celtis laevigata Sugarberry x x 45+ Fast Large

Celtis occidentalis varieties Hackberry and Varieties x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Cercidiphyllum japonicum Katsura x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Cercis canadensis Redbud, Eastern x x x 25-30 Fast Medium

Chionanthus virginicus Fringetree x x 20-50 Med Small

Cladrastis kentukea Yellowwood x x 30-50 Slow/Med Large

Cornus florida Dogwood, Flowering x x 15-25 Slow/Med Small

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

405 Attachment 5

City of Chesterfield

Table 5

Tree List

[CC 1990 Ch. 31, Attach 5; Ord No. 2801, §3 (Exh. A), 6-16-2014]

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                             Page 1 of 3



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate   Size Class

Crataegus crus-galli Hawthorn, Cockspur x x x 15-20 Med Small

Crataegus laevigata 'Superba' Hawthorn, Crimson Cloud    x x x x 15-20 Med Small

Crataegus phaenopyrum Hawthorn, Washington x x  x  20-30 Med Small

Crataegus virdis Hawthorn, Green x x 25-30 Med Small

Crataegus virdis Hawthorn, Winter King  x x x 25-30 Med Small

Eucommia ulmoides Rubbertree, Hardy x  x x 45+ Med Large

Fagus grandifolia Beech, American x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Fagus sylvatica Beech, European x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Ginkgo biloba-Male Ginkgo (male)              x x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Gleditsia triacanthos inermis -   

thornless, podless varieties 

Honeylocust -                

thornless, podless varieties    
x x x 45+ Fast Large

Gymnocladus dioicus Kentucky Coffeetree  x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Halesia carolina Silverbell x x x 20-30 Slow Medium

Ilex decidua Holly, Deciduous x x  x  45+ Slow Large

Ilex opaca Holly, American  x 45+ Slow Large

Juniperus chinensis Juniper, Chinese x x 20-30 Slow/Med Small

Juniperus virginiana varieties Redcedar, Eastern x  x 30-40 Med Medium

Koelreuteria paniculata Golden Rain Tree  x x x 25-40 Med/Fast Medium

Liquidambar styraciflua Sweetgum x 45+ Fast Large

Liriodendron tulipifera Tuliptree x 45+ Fast Large

Magnolia acuminata Cucumber Tree x  x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Magnolia grandiflora Magnolia, Southern x x 45+ Med Large

Magnolia soulangeana Magnolia, Saucer x x x 20-30 Slow/Med Medium

Magnolia virginiana Magnolia, Sweetbay x x x 15-25 Med Small

Metasequoia glyptostroboides Dawn Redwood x x 70-100 Fast Large

Nyssa aquatica Water Tupelo x 50-80 Slow/Med Med/Large

Nyssa sylvatica Blackgum x x x 30-50 Slow Medium

Ostrya virginiana Hop-hornbeam                  x x x 30-40 Slow/Med Medium

Oxydendron arboreum Sourwood (Sorrel Tree)  x x 20-30 Slow/Med Medium

Picea abies Norway Spruce x 40-60 Med/Fast Med/Large

Picea glauca Spruce, White x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Picea pungens Spruce, Colorado Blue x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Pinus densiflora Pine, Japanese Red x x 45+ Med Large

Pinus flexilis Pine, Limber x x 30-40 Med Large

Pinus resinosa Pine, Red  x 45+ Med Large

Pinus strobus Pine, Eastern White x  x 45+ Fast Large

Pinus thunbergiana Pine, Japanese Black x  x 45+ Med Large

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                                                                                                             Page 2 of 3



Scientific Name Common Name          Street Tree
Parking Lot Tree    

Island Tree
Deciduous Evergreen Ornamental Mature Height (ft) Growth Rate Size Class

Platanus occidentalis Sycamore x 45+ Fast Large

Platanus x acerifolia Planetree, London    x x 45+ Fast Large

Platycladus orientalis Arborvitae, Oriental x x x x  30-40 Slow Medium

Prunus cerasifera Plum, Purple-leaf x x x 15-25 Med Small

Prunus sargentii 'Columnaris' Cherry, Sargent, Columnar x x x 30-40 Med Medium

Prunus serrulata Cherry, Flowering, Japanese x x x 25-35 Med Medium

Quercus acutissima Oak, Sawtooth x  x 45+ Med Large

Quercus alba Oak, White x 45+ Med Large

Quercus bicolor Oak, Swamp White x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus coccinea Oak, Scarlet x  x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus falcata var.pagodafolia Oak, Cherrybark x 45+ Med Large

Quercus imbricaria Oak, Shingle x  x 45+ Med Large

Quercus macrocarpa Oak, Bur x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Quercus michauxii Oak, Swamp Chestnut x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus muehlenbergii Oak, Chinkapin x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus prinus Oak, Chestnut x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus robur Oak, English, x x 45+ Med Large

Quercus rubra Oak, Northern Red x x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus shumardii Oak, Shumard x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Quercus stellata Oak, Post x 45+ Slow Large

Quercus velutina Oak, Black x 45+ Med Large

Salix nigra Willow, Black x 30-40 Fast Medium

Sassafras albidum Sassafras x 30-40 Med Medium

Sophora japonica Pagodatree, Japanese x  x  45+ Med Large

Syringa reticulata Lilac, Japanese Tree x x x 25-30 Med Small

Taxodium distichum Bald Cypress x 45+ Med Large

Thuja plicata Arborvitae, Green Giant x 50 Fast Large

Thuja occidentalis Arborvitae, Emerald Green x x 14 Slow Small

Tilia americana American Basswood x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Tilia cordata varieties Littleleaf Linden   x x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Tsuga canadensis Hemlock, Canadian x  x 45+ Slow/Med Large

Ulmus americana varieties Elm, American and Varieties x x 60-80 Med/Fast Large

Ulmus parvifolia Elm, Chinese or Lacebark x x 45+ Med/Fast Large

Zelkova serrata varieties Zelkova, Japanese x x 45+ Fast Large

Note: Trees not found on this list may be reviewed/approved on a case by case basis by the Department of Planning.                                                                                                                                                                                   

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

Page 3 of 3



FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember Barb McGuinness 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 
 

1. Proposed Resolution 502 – A Resolution adopting the budget for the City of 

Chesterfield for the year beginning on January 1, 2025 and ending on 
December 31, 2025. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

The next Finance and Administration Committee is not yet scheduled.  
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 

Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Monday’s meeting.   
 

 
 



RESOLUTION #502 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 

CHESTERIELD FOR THE YEAR BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2025 AND 

ENDING ON DECEMBER 31, 2025 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has adopted an ordinance providing for a 

fiscal year which begins on January 1 of each year and ends on December 31 of each 

year, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield, by ordinance, has directed the City 

Administrator to prepare a proposed budget, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Finance and Administration Committee of the Whole, in 

conjunction with a comprehensive review of the 2025 Budget, recommended funding the 

2025 Merit Pool for employee compensation increases, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Chesterfield Police Officers and Sergeants are represented by 

the Fraternal Order of Police and subject to employment terms approved by the City and 

the FOP in June of 2024, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has held a public hearing with regard to the adoption of the 

budget for the year beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD adopts the attached budget as its budget for the fiscal year beginning 

January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 18th day of November 2024. 

  

 

________________________  _______________________________ 

Presiding Officer    Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________ 

City Clerk 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Budoor 

Vice Chair:  Councilmember Monachella  
 

1. Emeritus Status Recommendation, Alan Politte – The Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Committee unanimously recommended granting 
former Councilmember Alan Politte Emeritus Status for the Parks, 

Recreation, and Arts Citizens Advisory Committee per City Council Policy 
#1, which allows up to four Members Emeritus on Non-Statutory 

Committees. (Voice Vote) Parks Recreation and Arts Committee 
recommends approval. 
 

2. Dog Park Fee – Recommendation to increase annual dog park 
membership fees by the amount of $5 per dog for the upcoming year. 
(Roll Call Vote) Parks Recreation and Arts Committee recommends 

approval. 
 

3. Forestry Management Alternative Program & Funding - City Council 
previously approved the proposed Forestry Management Program and 
funding dependent upon partial funding of year one expenses from State 

grant sources.  That grant was unsuccessful and Staff created an 
alternative proposal to reduce costs and self-perform portions of the work.  
The Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee unanimously endorsed the 

alternative Forestry Management proposal, a multi-year agreement with 
Native Landscape Solutions, and an associated 2025 budget transfer from 

Parks Fund – Fund Reserves in the amount of $61,697.  (Roll Call Vote) 
Parks Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval.  
 

4. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee is not yet scheduled. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me prior 
to Monday’s meeting. 

 
 



Revised 2.20171

Memorandum
To: Mike Geisel, City Administrator

From: Kari Johnson, Superintendent of Recreation

Date: October 29, 2024

Subject: Emeritus Status Recommendation, Alan Polite

At the October 9, 2024 Parks, Recreation & Arts Citizen Advisory meeting, the Committee
had a discussion on the option to have a long-standing committee member have emeritus
status granted to them if they were unable to come to meetings on a regular basis.  Alan
Politte has been unable to attend meetings recently and the committee feels it is important
to give Mr. Politte the opportunity to still have a voice on the committee given his many
years of service to the city as a council member and member of the committee. With the
understanding that the recommendation goes to the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of
Council and then to Council and the Mayor for final approval. The Committee held a vote
and unanimously agreed to move in this direction.

With your approval, we would like to move this forward to the next Parks, Recreation & Arts
Committee of Council meeting and then on the full Council and Mayor.

If you have any other questions or require additional information, please advise.

Please forward to the PR&A Committee for their review and
recommendation.

                                           2024-10-30







Please forward to the PRA Committee for their review and con-
sideration
                                                                    2024-11-3











Please forward to the PR&A Committee for their review and
recommendation.

                                                       2024-10-29















































PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Merrell Hansen  
 

There are no Public Health and Safety Committee items scheduled for tonight’s 
meeting. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee is not yet scheduled.  
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief 

Cheryl Funkhouser or me prior Monday’s meeting.   
 
 



REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

A. Parks Grant Acceptance Agreement - The City was successfully awarded a 
$575,000 Municipal Parks Grant for the replacement of the Central Park 

Playground, as previously authorized by City Council.  I, as City Administrator 
request Council to consider authorizing the following: 
1. Execute the Municipal Parks Grant acceptance agreement, and 

2. Authorize a 2025 budget transfer in the amount of $1,450,000 in 
additional expenditures and $575,000 in additional revenues, and 

3. Authorize the City Administrator to execute an agreement with Play and 

Park Structures in an amount not to exceed $1,450,000. 
(A Roll Call Vote is required) 

 
B. Liquor License – Sushi Boat – 84 Clarkson Wilson – requested a new liquor 

license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor, drinks to be consumed 

on premise, and Sunday sales. There are no known outstanding municipal 
violations at this location. (Voice Vote) 

 
C. Parks Vehicle Early Order Recommendation – Due to an order cut-off date 

specified in the State Cooperative Procurement Contract, I am requesting 

authorization to place an order in December of 2024, for four parks 
maintenance vehicles which are authorized in the 2025 fiscal year budget.  
The actual expense will occur in 2025.  In addition to the authorization to 

place the vehicle order in the 2024 fiscal year, I am also requesting 
authorization to perform the associated budget transaction accounting as 

necessary per the City’s modified accrual fiscal procedures.  (Roll Call Vote) 
City Administrator recommends approval. 
 

D. North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Bid Recommendation Bid 
Recommendation – 2024 North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project: 
Recommendation to accept the low bid submitted by Kelpe Contracting and to 

authorize the City Administrator to enter into an Agreement with Kelpe 
Contracting in an amount not to exceed $4,834,000 to construct sanitary 

sewer improvements on North Outer 40.  All construction costs to Kelpe will be 
refunded to the City from a State ARPA grant ($2 million) or Gateway Studios 
(all remaining costs over $2 million).  In addition to the contract with Kelpe, 

the recommendation also includes execution of a construction engineering 
contract with HR Green in an amount not to exceed $115,000 (from the City’s 

Capital Projects Fund) and the execution of two budget amendments 
necessary to fund these expenditures. (Roll Call Vote) Department of Public 
Works recommends approval. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 
 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3528 – Schaeffer’s Grove (Lot 16A, Lot 17A): An 
ordinance providing for the approval of a Boundary Adjustment Plat for 

Lots 16A and 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove Subdivision Plat 1. (First and 
Second Readings) Department of Planning recommends approval. 

 



B. Proposed Bill No. 3524 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, 
Missouri establishing the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business 
District; making certain findings in connection therewith; authorizing 

certain actions by City Officials and Officers; and containing a 
severability clause. (NO ACTION REQUIRED at this meeting; Second 
Reading held until January 2025) 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There is no new business scheduled for this meeting 



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 

Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 

 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 

   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer  
 

DATE:  November 6, 2024  
  

RE: Central Park Playground – Grant Agreement  
 

On November 1, 2024 the City of Chesterfield was formally notified that its grant 

application for the reconstruction of the playground at Central Park has been 
approved by the Municipal Park Grant Commission (MPGC).  Specifically, this grant 

will fund up to $575,000 of the estimated $1,450,000 cost to construct a new 

playground in Central Park.  Details of the proposed playground, including a 

proposal (with schematic), are included in the attached memorandum from 
Superintendent of Sports and Wellness Ethan Collier.   

 

In order to move forward with this project, the Chesterfield City Council will need to 
take the following actions: 

1) Authorize the City Administrator to execute the attached MPGC Grant 

Agreement.  This Agreement contains the terms the City will need to follow in 
order to receive a reimbursement up to $575,000 upon completion. 

2) Authorize the City Administrator to execute an Agreement with Play and Park 

Structures of Missouri in an amount not to exceed $1,450,000.  This includes 
the costs delineated in the proposal ($1,351,782) plus a contingency to address 

change orders if necessary.   

3) Authorize the City Administrator to execute a Budget Amendment from Parks 

Fund – Fund Reserves to Account 119-084-5299 (Parks Special Projects) in the 
amount of $1,450,000.  The $575,000 reimbursement will be returned to the 

Parks Fund after completion of the project, making the net cost $875,000.   

 
Action Recommended 

This matter should be forwarded to the City Council for consideration.  Should City 

Council concur with Staff’s recommendation it should authorize the City 
Administrator to take the actions delineated above in order to accept a $575,000 

grant from the MPGC and construct a new playground in Central Park.   

 
Concurrence: ______________________________________ 

     Jeannette Kelly, Finance Director  



     Memorandum      

 

To:  James A. Eckrich, Director of Public Works 

 
From:  Ethan Collier, Superintendent of Sports and Wellness 
 

Date:  November 6, 2024 
 

Subject: Round 25 Municipal Parks Grant, Central Park Playground 

 
 

On November 1, 2024 the Parks, Recreation & Arts Department was notified 
that our recent grant submittal was approved by the Municipal Park Grant 
Commission.  This grant will reimburse the City of Chesterfield up to $575,000 

toward construction of a new playground in Central Park in 2025.  If approved 
by City Council, the grant will fund approximately 43 percent of the total cost 

for this project ($1,351,783).  The scope of the project includes removing the 
existing playground and constructing a new playground as detailed in the 
attached proposal from Park and Play Structures of Missouri.   

 
The original grant application was submitted by the prior Parks Director on 

July of 2024, and included a cost of $1,320,964.  After his departure, the 
application was reviewed in detail by members of the Parks Staff and the Parks 
Recreation and Arts Citizens Advisory Committee (PRACAC).  The consensus 

amongst all who reviewed the application was that the original proposal lacked 
shade structures, contained inadequate seating, and included unnecessary 
Chesterfield logos embedded on the playground surface.  Accordingly, I 

requested an updated proposal to remove the City logos and add benches and 
shade structures.  That revised proposal is attached.   

 
The existing playground at Central Park was installed in 2001 and is in need of 
replacement.  It requires frequent repairs, and many parts are now unavailable 

due to the age of the playground. The 2019 Parks Master Plan prioritized a new 
playground and recommended its replacement in 2025.  

 
The recommended playground utilizes more of the available footprint than the 
current playground, which will allow more children to play at the same time. It 

includes poured-in-place surfacing for universal access and provides several 
new all-inclusive play features.  As detailed above, there will also be shade 
structures around the playground and ample benches for seating.   

 



The proposed playground will adhere to all applicable ADA requirements and 
will contain sensory amenities.  It is designed with features for both the 2-5 age 

group as well as older children in the 5-12 age group.  Some of the playground 
amenities are:        

 
• Inclusive Orbit (ground level whirl sits flush with surfacing) 

• Freenotes Music (musical instruments) 
o Mushrooms 
o Flowers 
o Butterflies 

• Mini Seat Panel (gives a place for children to sit side-by-side and interact) 

• Drum Line (realistic looking drums allowing children to create unique rhythms 
and sounds) 

• Temple Trolley w/ Made-For-Me Seat (offers gliding, spinning and swinging with 

all-inclusive seat) 

• Swizzler (users experience a self-driven, gentle rocking motion with playful 
rotation) 

• Rain Wheel 

• Early Horizons Play Structure (slide, ropes and climbers) 

• Solo Flyer (spring seat that allows user to rock back and forth) 

• Shaded Swing Set 
o Tot Selfie Seat (parents can place phone in swing to capture 

memories of their child hands-free) 
o Reflection Selfie Seat (parents can swing with child facing one 

another) 

• Roller Slide 

• Ramped Wheelchair Accessible Play Structure 
o Rock N Wave (large platform that sways side to side) 
o World Scramble 
o Accessible Driving Panel 

• Large Supermax Play Structure (rope ladders, slides, platforms) 

• Parallax Play Structure (allows user to climb) 

• Surface Spheres (users can climb or sit on) 

• Swings (8 total). 

• Ziplines (2 total) 

• Equipment that promotes agility, balance, and muscle memory including: 
- Pyramid Tower (Agility) 
- Mini Space Step (Agility)  
- Rope Ladder (Agility) 
- Cable Climber Across (Agility) 
- Big Rope (Balance) 
- Surface Spheres (Balance) 
- Inclusive Orbit (Balance) 
- Trestle Bridge (Balance) 
- Word Scramble Panel (Muscle Memory) 
- Accessible Driving Panel (Muscle Memory) 
- Freenotes Music (Muscle Memory) 

 



In order to move forward with acceptance of the grant and construction of the 
playground, the City will need to execute a Municipal Park Grant Commission 

Grant Agreement (attached).  Additionally, the City will need to execute a 
contract with Play and Park Structures for construction of the playground in 

an amount not to exceed $1,450,000.  This includes the cost of the modified 
proposal included in the grant submittal and a modest contingency to account 
for change orders that may become necessary as part of the project.   

 
Funding for this project is available in Parks Fund - Fund Reserves, which will 
contain an estimated balance of $5,000,000 at the end of 2024.  If this project 

is approved, the City Administrator will need to execute a Budget Amendment 
from Account 119-3001-019 (Parks Fund – Fund Reserves) to Account 119-

084-5299 (Parks Special Projects) in the amount of $1,450,000.  Once the 
project is completed, the Municipal Parks Commission will reimburse the City 
up to $575,000.  

 
I have attached the proposal from Play & Park Structures (including 

schematic), Resolution Number 499 which authorized the grant submittal, the 
Notice of Award from the Municipal Park Grant Commission, and the Grant 
Agreement.    

 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   



Play & Park Structures of MO 
303 Bass St. 
Park Hills, MO, 63601 
Phone: 573-631-1968 
Fax: 423-425-3124 
Email: 
scasada@playandpark.com
Contact: Steve Casada

Central Park

Chesterfield Parks, Recreation & Arts 
Attn: T W Dieckmann 
16365 Lydia Hill Drive 
Chesterfield, MO 63017 
Phone: 636-812-9500 
twdieckmann@chesterfield.mo.us 

Quote Number: 796-167075E
Quote Date: 10/14/2024

Stock ID Description Quantity Weight Unit Price Amount
RDU 5-12 Play Structure 1 23661.5 $325,190.00 $325,190.00

  60040 -- 11'POST W/O CAP ALUM 4  
  60059 -- 5"OD ALUM UPR 10'W/CAP 2  
  60089 -- 5"OD ALUM UPR W/O CAP 12 4  
  60944 -- 5"OD ALUM UPR 15'W/O CAP 4  
  71000 -- SQUARE DECK 3  
  71001 -- TRIANGLE DECK 1  
  71003 -- SEMI-HEX DECK 1  
  71031 -- RING CLAMP ASSEMBLY 125  
  71309 -- CABLE CLIMB ACROSS 1  
  71348 -- SEAT FOR TWO AND TABLE 1  
  71352 -- CRAWL TUNNEL BELOW DK 4' 1  
  71437 -- 8'TRESTLE BRIDGE 2  
  71463 -- TRANSFER MODULE 4'-0" 2  
  71475 -- DECK TO DECK STAIR 4'-0" 1  
  71512 -- SQ SLAT ROOF 2  
  71513 -- SLAT BARRIER 9  
  71529 -- 8'-0"ROPE LADDER 1  
  71532 -- HALF HEX SLAT ROOF W/EXT 1  
  71645 -- SPY BARRIER 2  
  71651 -- METAL LEAF CLIMBER 1  
  71894 -- SMALL ALPINE LINK 1  
  71896 -- SINGLE SPIRAL CASCADE SLI 1  
  71928 -- GFRC TREE W/DECK & ROOF 2  
  71930 -- DENALI TOWER BASE 1  
  71939 -- 10' BUBBLE PANEL BARRIER 1  
  71944 -- 12'CURVED TUBE SLIDE 1  
  71948 -- 12' TUBE TO OPEN SLIDE 1  
  71949 -- 12' TUBE TO OPEN-REVERSE 1  
  71964 -- Ground Level In & Out Panel 1  
  71967 -- Ground Level Take A Seat Panel 1  
  71968 -- Shop Panel 1  
  72005 -- Single Velocity Accelerator Slide8' 1  

  72064 -- OLYMPIAN CLIMBER (5'-4",6'-0",6'-
8") 1  

  72079 -- TRACKS ACTIVITY PANEL 1  
  72080 -- TREES ACTIVITY PANEL 1  
  72096 -- LOOKOUT SPLIT ENTRY 2  

 
YP300 MERIDIAN 12 FT PYRAMID TOWER BRIDGE 1 0 $17,098.00 $17,098.00
YP308 MERIDIAN LARGE COSMOS BRIDGE 1 0 $23,454.00 $23,454.00
YP390 MERIDIAN SQUARE HELIX TOWER NEXUS 1 0 $94,155.00 $94,155.00

RDU 5-12 Shaded Swing Set 1 2404 $19,340.00 $19,340.00
  65175 -- TWEEN SWING 5"OD 3  
  65180 -- TWEEN MATES SWING 5" 1  
  65223 -- SHADED SWING 2 BAY 1  

 
RDU 2-5 Early Horizons Play Structure 1 1974.8 $44,286.00 $44,286.00



  7202 -- ECHO CHAMBER ASSEMBLY 1  
  68300 -- MINI TRIMAX W/MAX TWIST 1  
  68302 -- BIG ROPE 1  
  68305 -- MINI SPACE STEP 2  
  68306 -- CURVED UPRIGHT-OVERHEAD 2  
  68308 -- STRETCHING RINGS 1  
  68309 -- MINI SEAT PANEL W/AURA 1  
  68310 -- RAIN WHEEL 2  
  68311 -- DRUM LINE 1  
  68316 -- 4'HORIZONS VELOCITY SLIDE 1  
  68317 -- LARGE CABLE CLIMBER 1  

 
RDU 2-5 Shaded Swing Set 1 2424 $21,086.00 $21,086.00

  65173 -- REFLECTIONS SELFIE SWING 5" 2  
  65174 -- SELFIE TOT SWING 5" 2  
  65223 -- SHADED SWING 2 BAY 1  

 
RDU Small Ramped Inclusive Structure 1 4265.16 $53,352.00 $53,352.00

  60102 -- 5"OD AL UPR W/CAP 6'LG 2  
  60949 -- 5"OD ALUM UPR 7' W/CAP 2  
  61322 -- 5"OD AL UPR W/O CAP 8'LG 3  
  71002 -- ISOSCELES DECK 1  
  71016 -- RAMP DECK TO GROUND 1  
  71031 -- RING CLAMP ASSEMBLY 22  
  71158 -- WORD SCRAMBLE-ADA PANEL 1  
  71385 -- BALCONY DECK 2  
  71502 -- ACCESSIBLE DRIVING PANEL 1  
  72043 -- SM TRAPEZOID DECK 1  
  72060 -- 1' ROCK N WAVE 1  
  72096 -- LOOKOUT SPLIT ENTRY 1  
  72107 -- SPIRE TOPPER 3  

 
7355 20" TWO SIDED RAIN 1 21 $1,742.00 $1,742.00

65196 SWIZZLER 2 342 $3,119.00 $6,238.00
65218 INCLUSIVE ORBIT 1 794 $18,490.00 $18,490.00
65275 Double Temple Trolley 1 2423 $42,265.00 $42,265.00
65277 TempleTrolley Belt Seat Package 1 539 $6,603.00 $6,603.00
65278 Temple Trolley Made-For-Me (Yellow) 1 66 $4,627.00 $4,627.00
65280 Button Step 10" 1 26 $421.00 $421.00
66786 HC201008IG Hanging Cantilever w Glide 1 600 $8,553.00 $8,553.00
67865 CUSTOM FIBERGLASS SIGN 2S 1 81 $3,702.00 $3,702.00
68115 ACTIVITY METER 2 80 $837.00 $1,674.00
71464 SLIDE TRANSFER 1 146 $3,861.00 $3,861.00
71763 ROLLER SLIDE 1 653 $18,572.00 $18,572.00
YP413 HALF SPHERE 14" 3 87 $630.00 $1,890.00
YP414 FULL SPHERE 14" 4 196 $898.00 $3,592.00
YP415 HALF SPHERE 20" 3 105 $929.00 $2,787.00
YP416 FULL SPHERE 20" 6 744 $1,497.00 $8,982.00
YP417 HALF SPHERE 28" 1 167 $1,527.00 $1,527.00
YP418 FULL SPHERE 28" 3 975 $2,636.00 $7,908.00

MUSHROOMS Freenotes Mushroom Inground Ensemble 1 0 $7,349.00 $7,349.00

 
- Includes: Small, Medium, and Large 
Mushroom  

BFLY-O-IG Orange Butterfly - (With Inground Mount 
Kit) 1 0 $1,429.00 $1,429.00

BFLY-I-IG Indigo Butterfly - (With Inground Mount Kit) 1 0 $1,429.00 $1,429.00
FWR-I-IG Indigo Flower - (With Inground Mount Kit) 1 0 $1,619.00 $1,619.00
FWR-Y-IG Yellow Flower - (With Inground Mount Kit) 1 0 $1,619.00 $1,619.00

SND-LG NatureROCKS SANDSTONE BOULDER - 
LARGE 1 0 $27,880.00 $27,880.00

SND-MD NatureROCKS SANDSTONE BOULDER - 
MEDIUM 1 0 $17,158.00 $17,158.00

SF-175 SINGLE PED TABLE 46" SMT 2 810 $3,081.00 $6,162.00
RDU Surface Mount Plates 1 134 $2,542.00 $2,542.00

  60855 -- 1 5/16"BASE PLATE PKG 2  
  60856 -- 1 5/8"BASE PLATE PKG 2  
  60857 -- 1 7/8"BASE PLATE PKG 1  
  60861 -- 5"BASE PLATE PKG 11  

 



PIP 16,760 SF OF PIP 1 0 $392,955.00 $392,955.00

 

- Scope: POURED IN PLACE. COLOR IS 50/50 
BLACK/STANDARD. *COLOR IS 100% FOR 
MOUNDS. 5.25" THICKNESS FOR 12' CFH. 
MOUNDS CONSTRUCTED BY OTHERS. 
INCLUDES GRAPHICS AND LOGOS AS 
SUBMITTED. - lines on graphics will be a 
minimum of 4" or thicker; at the discretion of 
the installer 4" THICK STONE BASE BY 
OTHERS. OMNIA PRICING INCLUDED. 
PREVAILING WAGE.

 

DUMPSTER DUMPSTER 5 0 $1,115.00 $5,575.00
INSTALL PREVAILING WAGE INSTALLATION 1 0 $265,475.00 $265,475.00

 

- Install ONLY as per prints provided. Quote 
Number: 796-167075E. Price includes saw 
cutting and disposal of 160 footer holes. 
Workstation - VelocityLT with Recycled Plastic 
Lumber: 700W Solar Array; 75 Ah Battery 
Bank; (3) 120V GFCI Protected Outlets; (3) 
Dual USB Outlets, Including USB-Fast 
Charging Outlets; Recycled Plastic Lumber 
Table and Bench Tops Color Cedar. and gray; 
Custom Powder Coat Color blue and green 
(per unit). Graphics Option - Custom 
Logo/Color. Vinyl-Wrapped Designated Areas 
with Customer-Supplied Graphics. Two (2) 
Bench Backs or table sides. 

 

INSTALL
Mounds are a combination of compacted 
rock aggregate and concrete needed for 
equipment footers. 

1 0 $17,820.00 $17,820.00

INSTALL Dumpster for Install 6 0 $1,155.00 $6,930.00
INSTALL Removal of Existing Surfacing 1 0 $41,480.00 $41,480.00
INSTALL Removal of Existing Equipment 1 0 $16,500.00 $16,500.00
INSTALL Dumpster for Removal 16 0 $1,155.00 $18,480.00

BOND BOND FEE 1 0 $19,977.08 $19,977.08
 

Pricing per National IPA / OMNIA Partners Public Sector Contract 
#R220202._________ Please reference contract number on your 
purchase order made out to Play and Park Structures. ____________ 
Taxes not included. If the customer is not exempt, taxes will be added 
to the total. 

Total Weight:43718.46 SubTotal: $1,593,774.08
Discount: $271,261.49

Estimated Freight: $29,269.56
Total Amount: $1,351,782.15

THIS QUOTATION IS SUBJECT TO POLICIES IN THE CURRENT PLAY & PARK STRUCTURES CATALOG AND THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS. OUR QUOTATION IS BASED ON SHIPMENT OF ALL ITEMS AT ONE TIME TO A SINGLE DESTINATION, UNLESS NOTED, AND 
CHANGES ARE SUBJECT TO PRICE ADJUSTMENT. PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $1,000.00 TO BE SUPPORTED BY YOUR WRITTEN PURCHASE 
ORDER MADE OUT TO PLAY & PARK STRUCTURES, C/O Play & Park Structures of MO. 

Pricing: f.o.b. factory, firm for 30 days from date of quotation. 

Freight charges: Prepaid & added 

Installation: A certified Play & Park Structures Installer is recommended for play equipment installation. Customer shall be responsible for 
scheduling coordination and site preparation. Site should be level and permit installation equipment access. Purchaser shall be responsible 
for unknown conditions such as buried utilities, tree stumps, bedrock or any concealed materials or conditions that may result in additional 
labor or material costs. 

Submittals: our design proposal reflects the spirit and intent of the project plans and specifications. While some variations may exist 
between our quotation and the project design, the differences do not materially affect the intended use. Play & Park Structures designs and 
specifications are unique and not intended to be identical in all respects to other manufacturers. We shall submit for review and approval 
by the owner's representative detailed drawings depicting the equipment to be furnished accompanied by specifications describing 
materials. Once approved, these drawings and specifications shall constitute the final documents for the project and shall take precedence 
over all other requirements. 

Exclusions: unless specifically included, this quotation excludes all site work and landscaping; removal of existing equipment; acceptance 
of equipment and off-loading; storage of goods prior to installation; equipment assembly and installation; safety surfacing; borders and 
drainage provisions. 



  

  

Acceptance of quotation:

Accepted By (printed):   P.O. No: 

 

Signature:   Date: 

 

Title:   Phone: 

 

Purchase Amount: $1,351,782.15 E-mail:  

Order Information

Bill to:   Ship to:

Company:   Company:  

Attn:   Attn:  

Address:   Address:  

City/State/Zip:   City/State/Zip:  

Billing Contact:   Jobsite Contact:  

Billing Phone:   Jobsite Phone:  

Billing Fax:   Jobsite Fax:  

Enter desired color palette name:         OR 

Enter desired color:            Uprights ( )            Decks ( )   

Accents ( )            Roofs/Tubes ( )            Slides/Panels ( )     

Play & Park Structures of MO 

By:  

Salesperson's signature

  Salespersons's Signature   Customer's Signature  



16,760 SQ FT
INSIDE AREA

460 LFT

544 Chestnut Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402

800-727-1907 / www.playandpark.com

IMPORTANT: Never install play equipment over hard, unresilient surfaces such as asphalt, concrete, or compacted earth.  It is the owner's responsibility to ensure the "minimum area required" contains an appropriate amount of resilient material to cushion accidental falls.

C E R T I F I E D

This play equipment is
recommended for

children ages:

Minimum Area Required: Quote Number:

Date:

Drawn By:
User Capacity

Critical Fall Height
This drawing can be
scaled only when in
an 24" x 36" format

Scale:

Top View drawings and measurements are for overall site and structure appearance purposes. Top view should not be conceived as a construction detail; therefore, all measurements and slope requirements should be field verified prior to construction.

Central Park / Chesterfield Parks & REcreation
16365 Lydia Hill Dr
Chesterfield, MO 63017

Play and Park Structures of Missouri

2-5 and 5-12

146'-0" x 146'-0"

3/32" = 1'-0" Chris Yates

10/15/24

796-167075E

700-800

12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
71928

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFRC TREE  w/DECK & ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
71928

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFRC TREE  w/DECK & ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENALI TOWER BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71930

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' CURVED  TUBE SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71944

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' TUBE TO  OPEN SLIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
71948

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' TUBE TO  OPEN SLIDE (REVERSE) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
71949

AutoCAD SHX Text
71475

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DECK TO DECK STAIRS (4' RISE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFER MODULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71463

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE HELIX  TOWER NEXUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP390

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROPE LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71529

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF HEX SLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
71532

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SPIRAL CASCADE SLIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
71896

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUBBLE PANEL BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71939

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLYMPIAN CLIMBER MID

AutoCAD SHX Text
72064

AutoCAD SHX Text
72096

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOKOUT SPLIT ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE CLIMB ACROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
71309

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE SLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
71512

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' PYRAMID TOWER LINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP300

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIUM COSMOS  LINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP308

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFER MODULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71463

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALPINE LINK SMALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
71894

AutoCAD SHX Text
72096

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOKOUT SPLIT ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPY BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71645

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE VELOCITY ACCELERATOR SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72005

AutoCAD SHX Text
71651

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL LEAF CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT FOR TWO AND TABLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
71348

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINI TRIMAX W/MAX TWIST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68300

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIG ROPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68302

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINI SPACE STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
68305

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIN WHEEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68310

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVED UPRIGHT  FOR OVERHEAD (MAX CLIMB) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68306

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRETCHING RINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
68308

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINI SEAT PANEL W/AURA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68309

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVED UPRIGHT  FOR OVERHEAD (MAX CLIMB) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68306

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINI SPACE STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
68305

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIN WHEEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68310

AutoCAD SHX Text
68317

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE CABLE CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRUM LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
68311

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTTON STEP 10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
65280

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
68316

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HORIZONS VELOCITY SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
65196

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWIZZLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FWR-I-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER (INDIGO) (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FWR-Y-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER (YELLOW) (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFLY-I-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTTERFLY (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFLY-O-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTTERFLY (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSH-SML-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSHROOM (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSH-MED-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSHROOM (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSH-LRG-IG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUSHROOM (SOLD BY FREENOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
68115

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVITY METER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" TWO SIDED RAIN PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7355

AutoCAD SHX Text
71977

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARALLAX HUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
71982

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEX STALK TOPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUNAR CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71988

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUNAR CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71988

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUNAR CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71988

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' TRESTLE BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71437

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL SHOP PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
71968

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL TAKE A SEAT PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
71967

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL IN & OUT PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
71964

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' TRESTLE BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71437

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CRAWL TUNNEL (BELOW DECK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
71352

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPY BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71645

AutoCAD SHX Text
72079

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACKS ACTIVITY PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
72080

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES ACTIVITY PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLAT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71513

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE SLAT ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
71512

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE TEMPLE TROLLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
65275

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATUREROCKS SANDSTONE BOULDER LARGE  & MEDIUM (SOLD BY ULTRAPLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' RAMP DECK TO GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
71016

AutoCAD SHX Text
65223

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWING SHADE (2 BAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK-N-WAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72060

AutoCAD SHX Text
71385

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
71385

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
72096

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOKOUT SPLIT ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WORD SCRAMBLE (ADA PANEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
71158

AutoCAD SHX Text
71502

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE DRIVING PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72107

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72107

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72107

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLE TROLLEY MADE-FOR-ME

AutoCAD SHX Text
65278

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLE TROLLEY BELT SEAT PACKAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
65277

AutoCAD SHX Text
67865

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSTOM FIBERGLASS SIGN 2-SIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 3) HALF PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP413

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 1) HALF PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP417

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 3) HALF PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP415

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 4) FULL PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP414

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 3) FULL PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP418

AutoCAD SHX Text
(QTY 6) FULL PLAY SPHERE, STANDARD 20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP416

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWEEN MATES SWING 5" O.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
65180

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWEEN SWING (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65175

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWEEN SWING (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65175

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWEEN SWING (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65175

AutoCAD SHX Text
65223

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWING SHADE (2 BAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOT SELFIE SWING w/BUMPER (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65174

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOT SELFIE SWING w/BUMPER (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65174

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELFIE SWING  (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65173

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELFIE SWING  (5" O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
65173

AutoCAD SHX Text
65218

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUSIVE ORBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE TRANSFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
71464

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLER SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
71763

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' HANGING CANTILEVER 20' x 10' (HC201008IG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
66786

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLO FLYER BOUNCER

AutoCAD SHX Text
66547

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 0 0 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S



 

 



 

 

 















































































 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
DATE:   November 1, 2024 

 

TO:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 

  
FROM:  Denise Pozniak, Business Assistance Coordinator  

 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST – Sushi Boat  

   

              

Sushi Boat… has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor, 
drinks to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  

 

Business description: Authentic Japanese cuisine and fresh creative sushi 

 

There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this location: 

84 Clarkson Wilson Center 
 

Yachao Fan is the managing officer. 

 

This application was reviewed and approved by both the Police Department and the Department of 

Planning. 
 

With City Council approval at the Monday November 18, 2024 city council meeting, I will 

immediately issue this license. 

 



TO: Mayor and City Council

Date:  November 7, 2024

RE: Budgeted Parks Maintenance vehicle purchases

The 2025 budget proposal was approved by the F&A Committee of the Whole and the
annual public hearing is scheduled for November 18, 2024.  City Council will be asked
to approve the budget by adoption of a resolution the same night.

As you are also aware, the City routinely purchases vehicles through the State
Cooperative purchasing contract, which provides exceptional volume pricing and
which results from a statewide competitive process where vendors and manufacturers
participate annually.  Over the recent past, municipalities, including the City of
Chesterfield have experienced significant issues with manufacturers limiting orders
and cancelling orders once they have reached an indeterminate production date.  You
may recall that our Police Department had their order of 11 police vehicles cancelled
and we were forced to search for replacements from a different automaker.  In turn,
that creates difficulties and additional expenses for our fleet maintenance in having to
maintain a fleet of mixed vehicle manufacturers, each requiring different diagnostic
tools and equipment.

The approved 2025 draft budget includes the purchase of several vehicles.  Staff
cannot initiate an order for these vehicles until after January 1st of 2025 when the
fiscal year starts, unless specifically approved by the City Council.  The State
cooperative procurement contract for Ford has an order cut-off date of 12/6/2024.
Ford Dealers will not accept orders after that date and we will have to wait until the
next procurement cycle is completed by the State, resulting in an extended delay, and
potentially resulting in vehicle delivery as late as sometime in 2026.

As such, I request that City Council authorize Staff to initiate an order for the
purchase of the following vehicles which are authorized in the 2025 Parks Department
budget, prior to the 2024 cut-off date of 12/6/2024.

Ford F-150 XL to replace Pk-17 with a budget of $48,490
Ford F-250 XL to replace Pk-22 with a budget of $56,000
Ford Escape to replace Pk-3 with a budget of $31,830
Ford Escape to replace Pk-21 with a budget of $31,830

Total $168,150

Mike Geisel

City Administrator

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W

Chesterfield MO 63017

Phone 636-537-4711

Fax 636-537-4798

____________________________________________________________________________



Budgeted Parks Maintenance Vehicles
November 7th, 2024
Page 2

In physical reality, the expenditure will occur in 2025 and we hope to take delivery of
the vehicles sometime in 2025.  In the event we experience a catastrophic financial
event, we retain our ability to cancel our order, but we won’t otherwise be able to
process an order once the cut-off date has passed.

This is simply an accounting procedure, due to our modified accrual accounting
process.  If/when Council authorizes the early vehicle order as I have requested, we
will amend the 2024 budget to include the expense and generate a purchase order.
Once the fiscal year ends, that purchase order will roll (unspent) into the 2025 budget
and the 2024 budget will be adjusted back to its current authorized level and the 2025
budget will be restored to its current authorization levels.  The actual expenditure will
be incurred in 2025 as currently proposed, but we simply cannot order and generate a
purchase order in 2024 without Council’s authorization.

As such, I will request a motion generally as follows:

Motion to amend the 2024 and 2025 budgets, authorize staff to immediately
place an order for four park vehicles as previously approved and authorized in
the 2025 budget, in order to ensure the vehicle order is received prior to the
current procurement contract cut-off date.

If you have any questions or require more detailed information, please let me know.  I
describe this process as purely housekeeping, but it is critically important to do so for
full transparency and transactional audits.



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer  
 
DATE:    November 8, 2024
 
RE: 2024 North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project
 

 
On December 5, 2022 the City of Chesterfield City Council approved Resolution 481 

authorizing the submittal of a State ARPA grant to fund sanitary sewer improvements 
along North Outer 40 near the Chesterfield Valley Athletic Complex.  The City’s 
application for a $2,000,000 grant was approved in January of 2023 and will fund 

70% of the project costs of this project up to $2,000,000.  The remainder of the 
construction costs will be paid by Gateway Studios, who is developing properties 
along North Outer 40 in western Chesterfield Valley.  Gateway Studios remains 

responsible for all water, storm sewer, and sanitary sewer costs minus the above-
referenced grant.  The City of Chesterfield is only responsible for bidding / managing 

the sanitary sewer project (in accordance with the grant requirements) and for all 
construction engineering and inspection costs associated with the sanitary sewer 
project.   

 
As a reminder this is an important project for the City as it will facilitate 

infrastructure improvements along North Outer 40 near the CVAC.  While this 
specific project only includes a new sanitary sewer, Gateway Studios will also be 
constructing storm water facilities and water main improvements.  These 

improvements are specifically delineated as a goal in the City’s Strategic Plan and will 
help ensure sufficient and reliable utility service at the CVAC. 
 

The Department of Public Works publicly opened bids for the 2024 North Outer 40 
Sanitary Sewer Project on October 3, 2024.  The results of the bid opening are 

detailed in the attached memorandum from Assistant City Engineer Zachary Wolff.  
After reviewing the bids, Staff recommends the project be awarded to the low bidder, 
Kelpe Contracting, in an amount not to exceed $4,834,000.  This includes the low bid 

amount ($4,297,698), an additional system extension to the west (Alternate #1 -  
$97,293) and a ten percent contingency to cover additional work and change orders.  
Kelpe Contracting has positive references for this type of work and has successfully 

completed similar projects throughout the St. Louis area.   



2 | P a g e  

 

 
While the State ARPA grant and Gateway Studios will completely fund the 

construction contract, the City of Chesterfield has agreed to provide construction 
engineering services and material testing.  Accordingly, as detailed in Mr. Wolff’s 

memorandum, the City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and has chosen HR 
Green as the firm most qualified to provide these services.  A project scope and fee 
has been negotiated at a cost of $104,055.  City Staff is recommending an allocation 

approval of $115,000 to account for any necessary additional work or change orders.   
 
In order to move forward with this project, the following actions are necessary: 

 
1) Execute a contract with Kelpe Contracting for construction of the 2024 North 

Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project in an amount not to exceed $4,834,000.  
These costs will be completely offset by a deposit from Gateway Studios 
($2,419,991) and the state ARPA grant ($2,000,000).  Gateway Studios will also 

be responsible for the costs of all change orders. 
2) Execute a contract with HR Green for construction engineering services in an 

amount not to exceed $115,000.  The City of Chesterfield will be responsible for 
these costs. 

3) Execute a Budget Amendment transferring $4,834,000 from General Fund – 

Fund Reserves to Account 120-079-5299 (Special Projects).  The deposit from 
Gateway Studios and all ARPA grant funding will be deposited into the General 
Fund to recoup these costs.   

4) Execute a Budget Amendment transferring $115,000 from Capital Projects 
Fund – Fund Reserves to Account 120-079-5261 (Professional Services).  

    
Should you have questions or require additional information regarding this project, 
please contact me.   

 
 
Concurrence: ____________________________________ 

    Jeannette Kelly, Finance Director 
 

 
Action Recommended 
 

This matter should be forwarded to the City Council for consideration.  Should 
Council concur with Staff’s recommendation, it should authorize the City 

Administrator to execute the necessary contracts and budget amendments to 
facilitate the 2024 North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project.   



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO:   James A. Eckrich, PE – Director of PW/City Engineer 
 
FROM: Zachary S. Wolff, PE – Assistant City Engineer 
 
DATE: November 7, 2024 
  
RE:  N Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
  Construction and Construction Administration Award 

2023-PW-10 
 

 

As you are aware, sealed bids for the referenced project were opened on October 3,2024 
at 10:00am. There were six bidders on the project. Upon a full review of the submitted 
bids, Kelpe Contracting is the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder with a total 

bid of $4,394,990.50.  The total bid price includes a $4,297,698 base bid and  
$97,292.50 for alternate #1 (an additional extension of the system to the west).  Kelpe’s 
bid is attached.  Kelpe Contracting has positive references for this type of work and 

has successfully completed projects like this through the St. Louis area and in the City 
of Chesterfield. 

 
This project will be funded through a combination of reimbursements through the state 
ARPA program and a deposit from Gateway Studios in accordance with the 

Development Agreement between the City and Gateway Studios dated April 25, 2023 
(Development Agreement). 

 
In accordance with the Development Agreement the construction award 
recommendation below has been reviewed by Gateway Studios and they  have agreed 

to provide an initial deposit of  $2,419,990.50 to the City to complete the project.  This 
amount is the sum of base bid, alternate 1, and an initial contingency funding deposit 
of $25,000, minus the $2,000,000 ARPA grant reimbursement.  Gateway Studios has 

further agreed to provide additional contingency funding deposits, as necessary, if 
approved change orders exceed $25,000 for the project.   

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

The City will provide the necessary construction administration services for this 
project.  Earlier this year the City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to secure 

the services of a consulting firm to perform professional services for the project.  The 
City received three responses to the RFQ and evaluated the submittals based on the 

criteria in the RFQ, which included experience, technical competence, capacity and 
capability, and past record of performance.  The top scoring firm, HR Green, was 
selected as the most qualified firm to provide the necessary professional services.  City 

staff negotiated a scope and fee with HR Green in an amount of $104,055. Construction 
administration costs payable to HR Green will be the City’s responsibility.   
 

To proceed with this project, I recommend requesting authorization from City 
Council to enter into agreements with Kelpe Contracting, in an amount not to 

exceed $4,834,000, and HR Green, in an amount not to exceed $115,000, for 
construction and construction administration of the N Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer 
Improvement project, respectively.  Both amounts include approximately ten 

percent in contingency funding to allow for any unforeseen conditions and/or 
additional work as may be necessary to complete this project.  As stated previously, 

construction costs payable to Kelpe Contracting will initially be paid by the City and 
fully reimbursed through the ARPA program and Gateway Studios.  Construction 
administration costs payable to HR Green will be the City’s responsibility.   

 
Attachments: 2023PW10 Bid Tabulation 

Project Area Map 

   Kelpe Contracting Bid 
    

    
  

   



UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED 

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1 Removal of Improvements LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $50,050.00 $50,050.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $135,531.00 $135,531.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

2 Embankment in Place CY 3,220 $28.00 $90,160.00 $4.50 $14,490.00 $13.50 $43,470.00 $23.00 $74,060.00 $19.55 $62,951.00 $3.25 $10,465.00 $50.00 $161,000.00

3 Traffic Control LS 1 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $12,660.00 $12,660.00 $12,006.00 $12,006.00 $30,500.00 $30,500.00 $145,839.00 $145,839.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

4 Mobilization LS 1 $26,000.00 $26,000.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $230,974.00 $230,974.00 $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $697,708.00 $697,708.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00

5 Contractor Furnished Surveying Staking and As-Builts LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $62,725.00 $62,725.00 $65,205.00 $65,205.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $17,231.00 $17,231.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

6 Inlet Protection EA 18 $200.00 $3,600.00 $160.00 $2,880.00 $356.25 $6,412.50 $135.00 $2,430.00 $155.40 $2,797.20 $200.00 $3,600.00 $1,000.00 $18,000.00

7 Silt Fence LF 9,000 $3.00 $27,000.00 $3.00 $27,000.00 $5.76 $51,840.00 $3.50 $31,500.00 $5.50 $49,500.00 $6.00 $54,000.00 $5.00 $45,000.00

8 Construction Fence LF 5,200 $2.50 $13,000.00 $4.50 $23,400.00 $4.20 $21,840.00 $4.75 $24,700.00 $5.60 $29,120.00 $6.00 $31,200.00 $10.00 $52,000.00

9 Dewatering LS 1 $600,000.00 $600,000.00 $1,030,436.00 $1,030,436.00 $591,447.00 $591,447.00 $2,912,511.00 $2,912,511.00 $2,800,000.00 $2,800,000.00 $750,000.00 $750,000.00 $1,801,785.00 $1,801,785.00

10 Clearing LS 1 $24,660.00 $24,660.00 $19,520.00 $19,520.00 $24,831.00 $24,831.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $23,020.00 $23,020.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

11 Protection and Restoration (Trees) LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00 $14,002.00 $14,002.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $18,663.00 $18,663.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

12 Tree Removal and Replacement EA 11 $2,000.00 $22,000.00 $550.00 $6,050.00 $460.00 $5,060.00 $1,000.00 $11,000.00 $1,951.00 $21,461.00 $1,000.00 $11,000.00 $1,500.00 $16,500.00

13 Temporary Bypass Drive LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $32,910.00 $32,910.00 $64,965.00 $64,965.00 $63,000.00 $63,000.00 $56,372.00 $56,372.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

14 Seeding AC 16 $8,385.00 $132,483.00 $4,300.00 $67,940.00 $6,577.50 $103,924.50 $3,600.00 $56,880.00 $4,144.00 $65,475.20 $4,500.00 $71,100.00 $2,000.00 $31,600.00

15 Ex. Pavement Remove & Replace SF 470 $110.00 $51,700.00 $88.00 $41,360.00 $171.25 $80,487.50 $115.00 $54,050.00 $164.00 $77,080.00 $100.00 $47,000.00 $200.00 $94,000.00

16 Ex. 10'W Conc Walk Remove & Replace SF 1,965 $5.00 $9,825.00 $9.00 $17,685.00 $12.50 $24,562.50 $14.00 $27,510.00 $11.00 $21,615.00 $10.00 $19,650.00 $20.00 $39,300.00

17 Ex. Irrigation Remove & Replace LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $12,453.00 $12,453.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

18 Ex. 8" Water Service Relocate LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00 $25,701.00 $25,701.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $26,058.00 $26,058.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

19 Ex. Trash Enclosure Remove & Replace LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $11,250.00 $11,250.00 $8,979.00 $8,979.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $6,209.00 $6,209.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

20 Ex. Force Main Abandon & Fill LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,400.00 $6,400.00 $11,290.00 $11,290.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $8,375.00 $8,375.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

21 Ex. 8" San Sewer Abandon & Remove LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,400.00 $6,400.00 $5,841.00 $5,841.00 $15,500.00 $15,500.00 $17,060.00 $17,060.00 $750.00 $750.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

22 Ex. San Manhole Abandon & Remove LS 1 $1,010.00 $1,010.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $750.00 $750.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

23 Ex. Pump Station To Be Removed LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,381.00 $3,381.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $25,291.00 $25,291.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

24 Restore Sand Volleyball Court LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $7,740.00 $7,740.00 $2,674.00 $2,674.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $6,537.00 $6,537.00 $3,210.00 $3,210.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00

25 18" CMP Culvert Remove & Replace LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,200.00 $5,200.00 $1,533.00 $1,533.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $16,720.00 $16,720.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00

26 Compacted Backfill (Trench) CY 7,361 $5.62 $41,368.82 $6.00 $44,166.00 $8.75 $64,408.75 $22.00 $161,942.00 $22.00 $161,942.00 $12.00 $88,332.00 $85.00 $625,685.00

27 Granular Backfill CY 1,277 $22.30 $28,477.10 $28.00 $35,756.00 $36.50 $46,610.50 $57.00 $72,789.00 $95.00 $121,315.00 $32.00 $40,864.00 $75.00 $95,775.00

28 8" PVC SDR 35 Gravity Sewer LF 1,753 $65.00 $113,945.00 $53.00 $92,909.00 $86.00 $150,758.00 $75.00 $131,475.00 $233.00 $408,449.00 $300.00 $525,900.00 $245.00 $429,485.00

29 10" PVC SDR 35/26 Gravity Sewer LF 4385 $75.60 $331,506.00 $68.00 $298,180.00 $99.75 $437,403.75 $165.00 $723,525.00 $226.00 $991,010.00 $400.00 $1,754,000.00 $250.00 $1,096,250.00

30 Manhole - Standard Construction EA 22 $4,250.00 $93,500.00 $4,660.00 $102,520.00 $5,939.50 $130,669.00 $9,500.00 $209,000.00 $8,040.00 $176,880.00 $9,500.00 $209,000.00 $12,000.00 $264,000.00

31 8" PVC C900 Class 150 LF 3,672 $65.00 $238,680.00 $46.00 $168,912.00 $58.50 $214,812.00 $60.00 $220,320.00 $95.00 $348,840.00 $250.00 $918,000.00 $125.00 $459,000.00

32 8" DIP Carrier Pipe (AWWA C151) LF 310 $125.00 $38,750.00 $131.00 $40,610.00 $115.25 $35,727.50 $115.00 $35,650.00 $121.30 $37,603.00 $300.00 $93,000.00 $200.00 $62,000.00

33 Bore for 24" Casing LF 660 $1,180.00 $778,800.00 $726.00 $479,160.00 $647.55 $427,383.00 $685.00 $452,100.00 $803.00 $529,980.00 $1,100.00 $726,000.00 $750.00 $495,000.00

34 Connection to Existing Manhole EA 1 $5,185.00 $5,185.00 $12,425.00 $12,425.00 $9,642.00 $9,642.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $20,073.00 $20,073.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00

35 24" Steel Casing Pipe LF 660 $250.00 $165,000.00 $128.00 $84,480.00 $124.25 $82,005.00 $172.00 $113,520.00 $133.60 $88,176.00 $200.00 $132,000.00 $250.00 $165,000.00

36 Epoxy Coat Existing Wet Well & MH LS 1 $3,105.00 $3,105.00 $105,000.00 $105,000.00 $94,621.00 $94,621.00 $87,500.00 $87,500.00 $29,075.00 $29,075.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00

37 Conc. Pavement CL 'A' 6" Thick on Stone LS 1 $15,200.00 $15,200.00 $9,674.00 $9,674.00 $19,946.00 $19,946.00 $21,000.00 $21,000.00 $24,408.00 $24,408.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

38 Bypass Pumping Portal LS 1 $8,270.00 $8,270.00 $27,117.00 $27,117.00 $28,383.00 $28,383.00 $46,000.00 $46,000.00 $54,778.00 $54,778.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

39 Condition Manhole w/Flow Meter LS 1 $2,644.00 $2,644.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $16,035.00 $16,035.00 $27,000.00 $27,000.00 $34,041.00 $34,041.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

40 Hydrostatic Testing LS 1 $6,422.00 $6,422.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $4,226.00 $4,226.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $22,330.00 $22,330.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

41 10" DIP CL52-401 Lined LF 29 $144.00 $4,176.00 $188.00 $5,452.00 $314.50 $9,120.50 $215.00 $6,235.00 $268.50 $7,786.50 $500.00 $14,500.00 $1,000.00 $29,000.00

42 12" DIP CL52-401 Lined LF 42 $279.00 $11,718.00 $204.00 $8,568.00 $336.00 $14,112.00 $226.00 $9,492.00 $319.00 $13,398.00 $750.00 $31,500.00 $1,000.00 $42,000.00

43 96" RCP Storage - Epoxy Lined LF 144 $1,070.00 $154,080.00 $1,826.00 $262,944.00 $1,628.25 $234,468.00 $2,000.00 $288,000.00 $3,111.00 $447,984.00 $3,200.00 $460,800.00 $2,500.00 $360,000.00

44 Access Manhole - 96" Storage EA 2 $3,250.00 $6,500.00 $4,516.00 $9,032.00 $4,966.00 $9,932.00 $8,400.00 $16,800.00 $12,587.00 $25,174.00 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00

45 Versadose LT Bioxide Odor Control System LS 1 $140,000.00 $140,000.00 $156,287.00 $156,287.00 $145,915.00 $145,915.00 $142,000.00 $142,000.00 $156,923.00 $156,923.00 $148,715.00 $148,715.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00

46 Precast Wet Well LS 1 $118,220.00 $118,220.00 $128,984.00 $128,984.00 $165,945.00 $165,945.00 $270,500.00 $270,500.00 $283,150.00 $283,150.00 $838,000.00 $838,000.00 $850,000.00 $850,000.00

47 Precast Valve Vault LS 1 $22,800.00 $22,800.00 $49,943.00 $49,943.00 $32,705.00 $32,705.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $98,986.00 $98,986.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

48 Duplex Pump Station - Pumps, Mech, & Electrical LS 1 $710,000.00 $710,000.00 $557,540.00 $557,540.00 $620,062.00 $620,062.00 $560,000.00 $560,000.00 $648,641.00 $648,641.00 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $600,000.00 $600,000.00

49 Entrance Road to Station LS 1 $47,250.00 $47,250.00 $39,855.00 $39,855.00 $26,450.00 $26,450.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $27,443.00 $27,443.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

50 7' Security Fence LS 1 $26,250.00 $26,250.00 $22,883.00 $22,883.00 $37,219.00 $37,219.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $23,500.00 $23,500.00 $21,750.00 $21,750.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

51 16'W Security Gate LS 1 $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $6,110.00 $6,110.00 $7,682.00 $7,682.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $13,811.00 $13,811.00 $5,750.00 $5,750.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

52 Entrance Road Barrier Post LS 1 $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $4,851.00 $4,851.00 $3,542.00 $3,542.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,220.00 $6,220.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

53 Air Release Valve & Manhole EA 6 $9,040.00 $54,240.00 $7,949.00 $47,694.00 $7,802.50 $46,815.00 $12,000.00 $72,000.00 $14,326.00 $85,956.00 $8,800.00 $52,800.00 $15,000.00 $90,000.00

TOTAL BID $4,332,024.92 $4,297,698.00 $4,579,074.00 $7,500,989.00 $8,847,355.90 $9,300,519.00 $9,373,880.00

A1 Silt Fence LF 1000 $3.00 $3,000.00 $3.00 $3,000.00 $5.55 $5,550.00 $3.50 $3,500.00 $5.50 $5,500.00 $5.50 $5,500.00 $4.15 $4,150.00

A2 Seeding AC 1.4 $8,385.00 $11,739.00 $4,300.00 $6,020.00 $5,307.14 $7,430.00 $3,600.00 $5,040.00 $4,143.00 $5,800.20 $4,500.00 $6,300.00 $5,400.00 $7,560.00

A3 Compacted Backfill (Trench) CY 43 $5.62 $241.66 $5.50 $236.50 $9.75 $419.25 $19.00 $817.00 $50.00 $2,150.00 $12.00 $516.00 $675.00 $29,025.00

A4 Granular Backfill CY 227 $22.30 $5,062.10 $97.00 $22,019.00 $36.25 $8,228.75 $40.00 $9,080.00 $110.00 $24,970.00 $32.00 $7,264.00 $45.00 $10,215.00

A5 8" PVC SDR 35 Gravity Sewer LF 909 $65.00 $59,085.00 $53.00 $48,177.00 $45.50 $41,359.50 $93.00 $84,537.00 $218.00 $198,162.00 $100.00 $90,900.00 $90.00 $81,810.00

A6 Manhole - Standard Construction EA 4 $4,250.00 $17,000.00 $4,460.00 $17,840.00 $4,505.50 $18,022.00 $7,000.00 $28,000.00 $8,041.00 $32,164.00 $3,500.00 $14,000.00 $5,500.00 $22,000.00

TOTAL BID ALTERNATE #1 $96,127.76 $97,292.50 $81,009.50 $130,974.00 $268,746.20 $124,480.00 $154,760.00

TOTAL BID + BID ALTERNATE #1 $4,428,152.68 $4,394,990.50 $4,660,083.50 $7,631,963.00 $9,116,102.10 $9,424,999.00 $9,528,640.00

Indicates math correction from bid

Bid Alternate #1 - Sewer From A4 to A

ESTIMATE

BID TABULATION

N OUTER 40 SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

2023-PW-10

ENGINEER'S 

October 3, 2024

Bates Utility CoBommarito ConstructionKelpe Contracting KCI Kolb Grading Gershenson Construction

2024-10-03 2023PW10 Bid Tab Page 1 of 1 Printed on 10/4/2024



Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Callout
New Gravity Sewer

Zachary Wolff
Callout
New Force Main

Zachary Wolff
Callout
New Pump Station

Zachary Wolff
Rectangle

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
CVAC

Zachary Wolff
Text Box
N Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Improvements2023-PW-10







Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
$22,019.00

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
$97,292.50

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
*Math Error

Zachary Wolff
Line

Zachary Wolff
Line



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 
 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  November 18, 2024   
 

RE:  Schaeffer’s Grove (Lot 16A, Lot 17A), Boundary Adjustment Plat: A 

Boundary Adjustment Plat for Lot 16A and Lot 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove 
Plat 1 located north of Wildhorse Creek Road. 

 
Summary 
The Sterling Company, on behalf of Claymont Development, LLC has submitted a 

request for a Boundary Adjustment Plat for Lots 16A and 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove 
subdivision, Plat 1. The purpose of this Boundary Adjustment Plat is to adjust the 

common property line between Lots 16A and 17A by moving it one (1) foot south 
towards lot 16A. The size of the adjusted lots would be 15,070 square feet for Lot 16A, 
and 15,396 square feet for Lot 17A. The lot sizes comply with the minimum lot size 

requirement of the subdivision site specific ordinance 3187.  

 

Attachments: Legislation, Boundary Adjustment Plat 

 

Figure 1: Subject Site Aerial 

 

17A 

16A 

Schaeffer’s Grove Subdivision 



BILL NO.____________       ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR LOTS 16A AND 17A OF SCHAEFFER’S GROVE 

SUBDIVISION PLAT 1.  
 
 WHEREAS, The Sterling Company has submitted for review and approval a 

Boundary Adjustment Plat for the above referenced properties located west of 
Schaeffer’s Grove Court; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of the Boundary Adjustment Plat is to adjust the 
boundary line between Lot 16A and Lot 17A of Schaeffer’s Grove subdivision 

Plat 1 by moving one (1) foot to the south; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Department of Planning has reviewed the Boundary 

Adjustment Plat in accordance with the Unified Development Code of the City 
of Chesterfield and has found it to be in compliance with all applicable 

ordinances and has forwarded said Boundary Adjustment Plat to the City 
Council. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIED, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. The Boundary Adjustment Plat which is attached hereto as 
“Exhibit 1” and made part hereof as if fully set out herein is hereby approved; 

the owner is directed to record the plat with the St. Louis County Recorder of 
Deeds Office. 
 

 Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to 
evidence the approval of the said Boundary Adjustment Plat by affixing their 
signatures and the official seal of the City of Chesterfield as required on the 

said document. 
 

 Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 
 

 Passed and approved this ______________ day of ______________, 2024. 
 

________________________________    ___________________________
 PRESIDING OFFICER        Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

FIRST READING HELD:   11/18/2024 

3528



D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\g
se

m
on

\a
pp

da
ta

\lo
ca

l\t
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

22
26

8\
13

17
Ba

p1
6-

17
.d

w
g 

  P
lo

tte
d 

on
:  

O
ct

 3
0,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:5
1a

m
   

Pl
ot

te
d 

by
: g

se
m

on

LOCATION  MAP

STERLING

DRAWN

CHECKED

JOB NO.:

DATE:

BY:

BY:

SHEET        OF  

Ph. 314-487-0440 Fax 314-487-8944

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS 

THE

5055 New Baumgartner Road
St. Louis, Missouri 63129

CO.STERLING
www.sterling-eng-sur.com

MSD P# -GFS

JAH

22-11-317

OCT. 30, 2024

21

22MSD-00355

BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT

BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF
LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE

A TRACT OF LAND BEING ALL OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE (PLAT BOOK 371, PAGES 275-279),
LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI
ZONED "E-1/2AC" ESTATE DISTRICT WITH A WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT ACCORDING TO CITY OF CHESTERFIELD ORDINANCE NO. 3187

PREPARED FOR:
CLAYMONT DEVELOPMENT, LLC
16401 SWINGLEY RIDGE ROAD, SUITE 200
CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 63017
PH. (314) 970-5255

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
ORDER NUMBER: 22-11-317
THE STERLING COMPANY
5055 NEW BAUMGARTNER ROAD
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63129
PHONE: (314) 487-0440

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TO CLAYMONT DEVELOPMENT, LLC, JAMIE EDOM, AND SHANEE EDOM THAT WE HAVE, DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER,
2024, PERFORMED A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF "A TRACT OF LAND BEING ALL OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE,
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371, PAGES 275-279, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE FIFTH
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI", AND BASED UPON SAID SURVEY HAVE SUBDIVIDED SAID TRACT
OF LAND IN THE MANNER SHOWN HEREON. THIS PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE "MISSOURI
STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS" AS AN "URBAN" CLASS PROPERTY IN EFFECT AT THE DATE OF THIS PLAT.

THE STERLING COMPANY
MO. REG. 307-D

JAMEY A. HENSON, P.L.S., VICE PRESIDENT                       DATE
MO. REG. L.S. #2007017963

SURVEYOR'S NOTES
1. THE PROFESSIONAL WHOSE SIGNATURE AND PERSONAL SEAL APPEARS BELOW ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY ONLY FOR WHAT APPEARS ON

THIS PLAT AND DISCLAIMS (PURSUANT TO SECTION 327.41 RSMO) ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, ESTIMATES,
REPORTS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS OR INSTRUMENTS NOT SEALED BY THE UNDERSIGNED RELATING TO OR INTENDED TO BE USED FOR
ANY PART OR PARTS OF THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THIS PLAT APPEARS.

2. THIS PLAT CONTAINS 30,466 SQUARE FEET (0.6994 ACRES MORE OR LESS), AND A TOTAL OF 2 LOTS.

3. ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE AS SURVEYED (S) UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  (R) DENOTES RECORD INFORMATION.

4. THE SUBJECT TRACT IS CURRENTLY ZONED "E-1/2AC" ESTATE DISTRICT WITH A WILD HORSE CREEK ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT ACCORDING
TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI ORDINANCE NO. 3187, APPROVED ON MARCH 28, 2022, AND IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
RESTRICTIONS:

FRONT SETBACK LINE: 25 FEET
SIDE SETBACK LINE: 10 FEET OR MINIMUM OF 20 FEET BETWEEN STRUCTURES.
REAR SETBACK LINE: 25 FEET
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 110 FEET
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 15,000 SQUARE FEET

5. BASIS OF BEARINGS: THE RECORDED PLAT OF "SCHAEFFERS GROVE PLAT ONE", RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES 275-279 OF THE ST.
LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS.

6. SOURCE OF RECORD TITLE: WARRANTY DEED TO CLAYMONT DEVELOPMENT, LLC, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 20230101200347 OF THE
ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS (ORIGINAL LOT 16A), AND _______________________  DEED TO JAIME EDOM AND SHANEE EDOM,
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. _______________________ OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS (ORIGINAL LOT 17A).

7. SUBJECT TRACT IS LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONE "X" (UNSHADED) ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND INCORPORATED AREAS ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY, MAP NUMBER 29189C0145K EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 4, 2015.

FLOOD ZONE "X" (UNSHADED) IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN.

NO DEVELOPABLE LOTS CREATED BY THIS PLAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN A FLOODWAY AT THE TIME OF RECORDING.

8. PERMANENT AND SEMI PERMANENT MONUMENTS WILL BE SET IN ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF RECORDING. A TOTAL OF 1 PERMANENT AND 4
SEMI-PERMANENT MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET IN THIS PLAT.

9. FOR EASEMENTS ON ORIGINAL LOT 16A, THE STERLING COMPANY HAS USED, EXCLUSIVELY, AN OWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE BY
TITLE PARTNERS AGENCY, LLC, AS AGENT FOR OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, POLICY NUMBER OX-14471527, FILE
NO. 22-310475-KEE WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2022 AT 12:43 PM. THE NOTES REGARDING SCHEDULE B (SPECIAL
EXCEPTIONS) OF SAID POLICY ARE AS FOLLOWS:

ITEMS 1-2: GENERAL EXCEPTIONS WITH NO COMMENT BY SURVEYOR.
ITEM 3:  EASEMENT GRANTED TO UNION ELECTRIC CO. RECORDED IN BOOK 2109 PAGE 294 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS,

RELEASED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023040400173 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI
RECORDS AND NO LONGER AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 4:  EASEMENT GRANTED TO THE METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT RECORDED IN BOOK 17580 PAGE 2110 OF THE
ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS. DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 5:  EASEMENT GRANTED TO UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY RECORDED IN BOOK 2092 PAGE 295 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY
RECORDS. SAID EASEMENT IS ACTUALLY RECORDED IN BOOK 2092 PAGE 275 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI
RECORDS AND IS RELEASED BY INSTRUMENTS RECORDED DOCUMENT NO. 2023040400222 AND DOCUMENT NO.
2023040400268 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, AND NO LONGER AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 6: EASEMENT GRANTED TO UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY BY THE INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 1294 PAGE 604 AND BOOK
2295 PAGE 282.  BOOK 1294 PAGE 604 IS RELEASED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023040400275 OF THE
ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS AND NO LONGER AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT. BOOK 2295 PAGE 282 IS
RELEASED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023040400269 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI
RECORDS, AND NO LONGER AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 7: BUILDING LINES, EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS AND POWERS OF TRUSTEES ACCORDING TO PLAT BOOK
354 PAGE 867, PLAT BOOK 361 PAGE 36.  NO BUILDING LINES OR EASEMENTS WERE CREATED BY SAID PLATS

ITEM 8: TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF DEVELOPMENT PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 355 PAGE 39 AND PLAT BOOK 360 PAGE 313.
NO COMMENT BY SURVEYOR.

ITEM 9: EASEMENT GRANTED TO UNION ELECTRIC CO. OF MISSOURI ACCORDING TO INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 2105 PAGE
311. RELEASED BY INSTRUMENTS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023032100495 AND DOCUMENT NO. 2023040400237 OF
THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS AND NO LONGER AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 10: PERMANENT ROADWAY IMPROVEMENT, MAINTENANCE, UTILITY, SEWER AND SIDEWALK EASEMENT GRANTED TO CITY OF
CHESTERFIELD AND METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT ACCORDING TO INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 20757
PAGE 886. AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN HEREON. DOES NOT AFFECT ANY LOTS CREATED BY THIS PLAT.
EASEMENT RIGHTS TO SPIRE MISSOURI INC. RELEASED BY DOCUMENT NO. 2022092800520, RIGHTS TO SOUTHWESTERN
BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY D/B/A AT&T MISSOURI RELEASED BY DOCUMENT NO. 2023010500465, RIGHTS TO CHARTER
COMMUNICATIONS ENTERTAINMENT I, LLC RELEASED BY DOCUMENT NO. 2023010400410, RIGHTS TO MISSOURI-AMERICAN
WATER COMPANY RELEASED BY DOCUMENT NO. 2023010500466, RIGHTS TO METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT
RELEASED BY DOCUMENT NO. 2022111600057, RIGHTS TO UNION ELECTRIC COMPANY D/B/A AMEREN MISSOURI RELEASED
BY DOCUMENT NO. 2023032200097 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, AND RIGHTS TO THE CITY OF
CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI ARE RELEASED BY CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3231.

ITEM 11: AVIGATION AND HAZARD EASEMENT GRANTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ACCORDING TO INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK
20110 PAGE 2110. DOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEMS 12-13: GENERAL EXCEPTIONS WITH NO COMMENT BY SURVEYOR.

10. FOR EASEMENTS ON ORIGINAL LOT 17A, THE STERLING COMPANY HAS USED, EXCLUSIVELY, A TITLE COMMITMENT BY TITLE PARTNERS
AGENCY, LLC AS AGENT FOR OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 24-338294-KL WITH A COMMITMENT
DATE OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2024. THE NOTES REGARDING SCHEDULE B, PART II OF SAID COMMITMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

ITEMS 1-5: GENERAL EXCEPTIONS WITH NO COMMENT BY SURVEYOR.
ITEM 6: BUILDING LINES, EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS AND POWERS OF TRUSTEES ACCORDING TO PLAT BOOK

371 PAGES 275-279 AND INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023062800474 AND DOCUMENT NO. 2023062800476
AND ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS. AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 7: MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT RECORDED FEBRUARY 23, 2023 IN
DOCUMENT NO. 2023022300407 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS. AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT BY SERVICING
STORMWATER DRAINAGE FROM THE LOTS CONTAINED WITHIN THIS PLAT.

ITEM 8: MEMORANDUM OF ASSESSMENT ACCORDING TO INSTRUMENT RECORDED JUNE 28, 2023 IN DOCUMENT NO.
2023062800475 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS. AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

ITEM 9: OPTION TO REPURCHASE AS DESCRIBED SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 12, 2023 IN DOCUMENT NO.
2023101200347 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS. AFFECTS THE SUBJECT TRACT.

STATEMENT OF STATE PLANE COORDINATE TIE:
STATE PLANE COORDINATES WERE DETERMINED ON JUNE 15, 2021 USING TRIMBLE REAL-TIME KINEMATIC GPS HARDWARE FROM THE
PROJECT SITE TO A CONTINUOUSLY OPERATING REFERENCE STATION (CORS) WITH AN ID OF MOOF AND A PID OF DM4688 HAVING PUBLISHED
MISSOURI STATE PLANE (EAST ZONE) 2011 COORDINATE VALUES OF NORTH (Y) = 324131.153 METERS AND EAST (X) = 232983.488 METERS.

COMBINED GRID FACTOR = 0.999914072 (1 METER = 3.28083333 FEET)

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S

GROVE PLAT ONE" WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY ORDINANCE NO. __________________ ON THE

__________________ DAY OF ______________________, 2024 AND THEREBY AUTHORIZES THE RECORDING OF THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT

PLAT WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

                                       BOB NATION,  MAYOR

VICKIE McGOWND,  CITY CLERK

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE (ORIGINAL LOT 16A):
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, OWNERS OF A TRACT OF LAND HEREIN PLATTED AND FURTHER DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS
CERTIFICATION HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND ADJUSTED IN LAND AREA IN THE MANNER SHOWN ON THIS BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT, WHICH SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER BE KNOWN AS "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF
SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE".

THE PURPOSE OF THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT IS TO ADJUST THE COMMON BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN TWO TRACTS OF LAND. THIS
BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT CREATE ANY NEW LOTS AND DOES NOT REDUCE ANY PARCEL AREA BELOW THE MINIMUM SIZE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI ZONING ORDINANCE.

THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT VACATE ANY EXISTING EASEMENTS.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THIS PLAT AS OF THE TIME AND DATE OF RECORDING OF
THIS PLAT.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT TAXES OUTSTANDING.

BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN PER ZONING.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND THIS ____________ DAY OF___________________________, 2024.

CLAYMONT DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BY: 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 )SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS ________________ DAY OF ____________________________, 2024, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED

______________________________________, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO, BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT HE IS THE DULY

AUTHORIZED AGENT OF CLAYMONT DEVELOPMENT, LLC, A MISSOURI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED

ON BEHALF OF SAID LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND SAID ______________________________________ ACKNOWLEDGED SAID INSTRUMENT TO

BE THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

LIENHOLDER CERTIFICATE (ORIGINAL LOT 16A):
WHEREAS, ____________________________________________, BY A DEED OF TRUST DATED _____________________, 20______ AND RECORDED IN

DEED BOOK _________________, PAGE __________________ OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, DOES HEREBY JOIN IN AND APPROVE EVERY

DETAIL THIS PLAT OF "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE".

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE UNDERSIGNED HAS EXECUTED THESE PRESENTS THIS _____________ DAY OF _______________________, 2024.

LENDER: 

BY: 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 ) SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS _________ DAY OF __________________________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED ______________________________________________, TO

ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY HE/SHE IS THE _____________________________________________, AND

THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED AND SEALED ON BEHALF OF SAID ASSOCIATION AND SAID __________________________________________

ACKNOWLEDGED SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID ASSOCIATION.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREWITH SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTARIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ORIGINAL LOT 16A):
ALL OF LOT 16A OF "SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE", A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES
275-279 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE
FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ORIGINAL LOT 17A):
ALL OF LOT 17A OF "SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE", A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES
275-279 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE
FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE (ORIGINAL LOT 17A):
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, OWNERS OF A TRACT OF LAND HEREIN PLATTED AND FURTHER DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS
CERTIFICATION HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND ADJUSTED IN LAND AREA IN THE MANNER SHOWN ON THIS BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT, WHICH SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER BE KNOWN AS "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF
SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE".

THE PURPOSE OF THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT IS TO ADJUST THE COMMON BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN TWO TRACTS OF LAND. THIS
BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT CREATE ANY NEW LOTS AND DOES NOT REDUCE ANY PARCEL AREA BELOW THE MINIMUM SIZE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI ZONING ORDINANCE.

THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT VACATE ANY EXISTING EASEMENTS.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THIS PLAT AS OF THE TIME AND DATE OF RECORDING OF
THIS PLAT.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT TAXES OUTSTANDING.

BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN PER ZONING.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND THIS ____________ DAY OF___________________________, 2024.

BY: 
           JAMIE EDOM, OWNER                     SHANEE EDOM, OWNER

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 )SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS ________________ DAY OF ____________________________, 2024, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED JAMIE EDOM AND SHANEE
EDOM, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND
ACKNOWLEDGED THEY EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR FREE ACT AND DEED.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

LIENHOLDER CERTIFICATE (ORIGINAL LOT 17A):
WHEREAS, ____________________________________________, BY A DEED OF TRUST DATED _____________________, 20______ AND RECORDED IN

DEED BOOK _________________, PAGE __________________ OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, DOES HEREBY JOIN IN AND APPROVE EVERY

DETAIL THIS PLAT OF "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE".

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE UNDERSIGNED HAS EXECUTED THESE PRESENTS THIS _____________ DAY OF _______________________, 2024.

LENDER: 

BY: 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 ) SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS _________ DAY OF __________________________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED ______________________________________________, TO

ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY HE/SHE IS THE _____________________________________________, AND

THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED AND SEALED ON BEHALF OF SAID ASSOCIATION AND SAID __________________________________________

ACKNOWLEDGED SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID ASSOCIATION.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREWITH SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTARIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ADJUSTED LOT 16A):
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 16A OF "SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE", A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES 275-279 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150,
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15A OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION, SAID CORNER
BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT (40 FEET WIDE); THENCE LEAVING SAID WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND PROCEEDING ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 15A, SOUTH 77°44’58” WEST, 137.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID LOT 15A, SAID CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE EAST LINE OF A TRACT OF COMMON GROUND/ COMMON OPEN SPACE IN SAID
“SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND/ COMMON OPEN SPACE, NORTH
12°15’02” WEST, 110.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE LEAVING THE EAST LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND/ COMMON OPEN SPACE, NORTH 77°44’58”
EAST, 137.00 FEET TO A POINT LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT; THENCE
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, SOUTH 12°15’02” EAST, 110.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 15,070 SQUARE
FEET (0.3460 ACRES) MORE OR LESS , ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF A BOUNDARY SURVEY PERFORMED BY THE STERLING COMPANY
DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER, 2024 UNDER PROJECT NO. 22-11-317.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ADJUSTED LOT 17A):
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 16A AND ALL OF LOT 17A OF "SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE", A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES 275-279 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND
150, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15A OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION, SAID
CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT (40 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, NORTH 12°15’02” WEST, 110.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND; THENCE
LEAVING SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 77°44’58” WEST, 137.00 FEET TO A POINT LOCATED ON THE EAST LINE OF A TRACT OF COMMON
GROUND/ COMMON OPEN SPACE OF SAID “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE, AND THE EAST LINE
OF LOT 19B OF “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT TWO”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES 280-283 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED
RECORDS, NORTH 12°15’02” WEST, 103.94 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 18A OF SAID “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE”
SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 18A, NORTH 70°17’02” EAST, 133.91 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT
18A, SAID CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT; THENCE
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING COURSES, DISTANCES, AND CURVES: SOUTH 19°42’58” EAST, 20.79 FEET TO A POINT
OF CURVATURE; ALONG AN ARC CONCAVE TO THE WEST, AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.45 FEET, A RADIUS OF 180.00 FEET, THE CHORD OF WHICH
BEARS SOUTH 15°59’00” EAST, 23.44 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; AND SOUTH 12°15’02” EAST, 77.33 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND
CONTAINING 15,396 SQUARE FEET (0.3534 ACRES) MORE OR LESS, ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF A BOUNDARY SURVEY PERFORMED BY THE
STERLING COMPANY DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER, 2024, UNDER PROJECT NO. 22-11-317.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ADJUSTED AREA):
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF LOT 16A OF "SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE", A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 371 PAGES 275-279 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 122 AND 150,
TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15A OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION, SAID
CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT (40 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, NORTH 12°15’02” WEST, 110.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND; THENCE
LEAVING SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 77°44’58” WEST, 137.00 FEET TO A POINT LOCATED ON THE EAST LINE OF A TRACT OF COMMON
GROUND/ COMMON OPEN SPACE OF SAID “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 12°15’02”
WEST, 1.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 17A OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED “SCHAEFFER’S GROVE PLAT ONE” SUBDIVISION; THENCE
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 17A, NORTH 77°44’58” EAST, 137.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 17A, SAID CORNER
BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED SCHAEFFER’S GROVE COURT; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, SOUTH 12°15’02” EAST, 1.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 137 SQUARE FEET (0.0031 ACRES), MORE
OR LESS, ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF A BOUNDARY SURVEY PERFORMED BY THE STERLING COMPANY DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER,
2024, UNDER PROJECT NO. 22-11-317.

 10/30/2024



HATCHING LEGEND:    
ADJUSTED AREA =

EXISTING BUILDING =

ABBREVIATION LEGEND:    
BK. = BOOK
BLDG. = BUILDING
C.G. = COMMON GROUND
ChB = CHORD BEARING
ChD = CHORD DISTANCE
C.O.S. = COMMON OPEN SPACE
D.B. = DEED BOOK
ESMT. = EASEMENT
FND. = FOUND
N/F = NOW OR FORMERLY
(NR) = NON-RADIAL
P.B. = PLAT BOOK
P.O.B = POINT OF BEGINNING
P.O.C. = POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PVMT. = PAVEMENT
(R) = RECORD
R.O.W. = RIGHT-OF-WAY
RET. = RETAINING
(S) = SURVEYED
S.F. = SQUARE FEET
'W = WIDTH

SYMBOL LEGEND:    

= SET PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS (5/8" I.ROD W/ ALUMINUM CAP).

= SET SEMI- PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS. (1/2" I.ROD W/ PLASTIC CAP OR CUT
CROSS).

= FOUND PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND SEMI-PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND CROSS

= FOUND ANCHOR

= ADDRESS

= STATE PLANE COORDINATE REFERENCE

D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\g
se

m
on

\a
pp

da
ta

\lo
ca

l\t
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

22
26

8\
13

17
Ba

p1
6-

17
.d

w
g 

  P
lo

tte
d 

on
:  

O
ct

 3
0,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:5
1a

m
   

Pl
ot

te
d 

by
: g

se
m

on

STERLING

DRAWN

CHECKED

JOB NO.:

DATE:

BY:

BY:

SHEET        OF  

Ph. 314-487-0440 Fax 314-487-8944

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS 

THE

5055 New Baumgartner Road
St. Louis, Missouri 63129

CO.STERLING
www.sterling-eng-sur.com

MSD P# -GFS

JAH

22-11-317

OCT. 30, 2024

22

22MSD-00355

BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT

BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF
LOT 16A AND LOT 17A OF SCHAEFFER'S GROVE PLAT ONE

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

SEE SHEET 1 OF 2 FOR CERTIFICATION.

THE STERLING COMPANY
MO REG. 307-D

JAMEY A. HENSON, P.L.S., VICE PRESIDENT                       DATE
MO. REG. L.S. #2007017963

STATE PLANE COORDINATES

 10/30/2024



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

 
From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  October 7, 2024 
 
RE:  Special Business District – An ordinance to establish the Downtown 

Chesterfield Special Business District and authorizing an election related 
thereto. 

 
 
Summary 

TSG Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC has submitted a petition to establish 
a Special Business District (SBD) in accordance with the requirements of the approved 

Development Agreement between the City of Chesterfield and Downtown Chesterfield 
Redevelopment, LLC. City Council previously approved a Resolution of Intent after 
receiving a petition to establish the district. In accordance with the Revised Statutes of 

the State of Missouri, a public hearing will be held and ultimately an ordinance 
considered by the City of Chesterfield to establish the district. If approved, the City 
Clerk will coordinate to conduct a main in elevation which would authorize a levy on 

the subject site to pay for additional services not currently provided on the site. The 
petition includes public maintenance under the SBD of the following items:  

 
A. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of streets, street lighting, bike paths, 

and pedestrian pathways; 

B. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within 
City accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable 

from systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City); 

C. Security; 

D. Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public parking garage; 

E. Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public park including 
programming for marketing and events; 

F. Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and 

G. All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district 
located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District 

Act. 
 

Additionally, a Survey and Investigation Report is required and provided. This report 
summarizes the services currently provided by the City of Chesterfield as well as the 



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District City Council Memo 

   September 17, 2024 

2 | P a g e  

 

future costs anticipated with the development of the site. As the report demonstrates, 
significant impacts are anticipated to current City services and the SBD provides a 

method to fund these improvements without diverting funds from existing obligation 
of services.  
 

 

 
Attachments:  

1) SBD Ordinance 

2) Survey and Investigation Report 



 

 

BILL NO. _______             ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
ESTABLISHING THE DOWNTOWN CHESTERFIELD SPECIAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ACTIONS 
BY CITY OFFICIALS AND OFFICERS; AND CONTAINING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield, Missouri (the “City”), is a political 

subdivision duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Missouri, and 

 
WHEREAS, upon petition by one or more owners of real property on 

which is paid the ad valorem real property taxes within a proposed special 
business district, the governing body of the City may adopt a resolution of 
intention to establish a special business district pursuant to the Special 
Business Districts Act, Sections 71.790 to 71.808 of the Revised Statutes of 
Missouri, as amended (the “SBD Act”), and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received a Petition to Establish the Downtown 

Chesterfield Special Business District (the “Petition”), filed by an owner of real 
property subject to real property taxes within the proposed boundaries of the 
Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District (the “District”), which Petition 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 1, and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794.(1) of the SBD Act, on                            

September 3, 2024, the City’s City Council (the “Council”) adopted                       
Resolution No. 501, as the resolution of intention to establish the District, in 
accordance with the SBD Act (the “Original Intent Resolution”); then, on 
September 17, 2024 the Council adopted an amended Resolution No. 501, 
which amended the Original Intent Resolution by changing the date and time of 
the public hearing resolved in the Original Intent Resolution, and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council held 
a public hearing to consider the establishment of the District on                        
Monday, October 7, 2024 at 6:45 p.m. at Chesterfield City Hall, 690 
Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, Missouri  63017 (the “Public 
Hearing”), and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council 

caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on two separate occasions 
in a newspaper of general circulation not more than fifteen days nor less than 
ten days before the Public Hearing, and 

 

3524



 

- 2 - 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council caused to be mailed a 
notice by United States certified mail, return-receipt requested of the Public 
Hearing to all owners of record of real property and licensed businesses located 
in the proposed District, and 

 
WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing the Council heard all protests and 

received all evidence for or against the proposed action, all in accordance with 
the SBD Act, and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.792 of the SBD Act, the Council 

conducted a survey and investigation for the purposes of determining the 
nature of and suitable location for the District improvements, the approximate 
cost of acquiring and improving the land therefor, the area to be included in 
the District, the need for and cost of special services, and cooperative 
promotion activities, and the percentage of the cost of acquisition, special 
services, and improvements in the District which are to be assessed against the 
property within the District and that part of the cost, if any, to be paid by 
public funds, and 

 
WHEREAS, a written report of the survey and investigation was filed in 

the Office of the City Clerk of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, and was made 
available for public inspection (the “Report”), which Report is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 2, and 

 
WHEREAS, the cost of the Report is included as a part of the cost of 

establishing the District, in accordance with the SBD Act, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council seeks to establish the District in accordance 

with the SBD Act. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Upon review of the Report and the Petition the Council finds 
that the establishment of the District is in the best interest of the City and that 
the property owners, businesses, and tenants in said District and the public in 
general will benefit from the establishment of said District and the increased 
level of services and improvements provided by the proposed additional tax 
revenues from said District.  Therefore, pursuant to the SBD Act, the 
Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District is hereby established, and 
will continue to exist and function until dissolved by an ordinance of the 
Council.  The District shall include the real property depicted in the Petition, 
and as legally described on Exhibit 3, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference. 

 



 

- 3 - 
 

Section 2. Pursuant to Section 71.800.5 of the SBD Act, the Council 
hereby orders an election on the approval of a tax on owners of real property in 
the District in a sum not to exceed $0.85 per $100 assessed valuation on real 
property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the District for the purpose 
of providing revenue to the District (the “Proposition”).  Ballots on the 
Proposition shall be mailed by or on behalf of the City Clerk by March 4, 2025, 
with the election on the Proposition to occur on April 15, 2025.  The 
procedures for the application of a ballot on the Proposition and the related 
election shall be governed by the SBD Act.   

Section 3. Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with 
the SBD Act and this Ordinance, the property in the District shall be subject to 
the provisions of the additional tax described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, 
which additional tax will have an initial rate of levy to be imposed upon the 
property lying within the boundaries of the District of $0.85 per $100 assessed 
valuation on real property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the 
District.  Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with the       
SBD Act and this Ordinance, the additional revenue generated by the 
additional tax will be put to the uses described in the Petition and in 
accordance with the SBD Act. 

Section 4. The Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District 
Advisory Board (the “Board”) is hereby created by this Ordinance, and as set 
forth below. 

(a) The Mayor of the City, with the consent of the Council, will appoint 
the seven-member Board, which Board will make recommendations 
as to the uses of the District to the Council.  Appointments to the 
Board will be made via a resolution of the Council, except for the 
initial appointments to the Board, which are set forth in this 
Ordinance.   

(b) Members of the Board must be at least 18 years of age. 

(c) Two of the seven members of the Board will be designees of TSG 
Downtown Chesterfield Redevelopment, LLC, a Missouri limited 
liability company, or its permitted successors or assigns in interest, 
as agreed to by the City. Five of the seven members of the Board will 
be designees of the City. 

(d) Each member of the Board will serve for a four-year term (except as 
provided herein with respect to the initial members), with terms 
expiring as of December 31st of the designated year or when their 
successors are appointed as provided herein, whichever is later.  The 
initial members will be appointed for the terms set forth as follows:  
(a) one member will be appointed for a term expiring                 



 

- 4 - 
 

December 31, 2025; (b) two members will be appointed for a term 
expiring December 31, 2026; (c) two members will be appointed for a 
term expiring December 31, 2027; and (d) two members will be 
appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2028. 

(e) The Mayor, with consent of the Council, may remove any member of 
the Board for misconduct or neglect of duty upon written charges and 
after a public hearing. 

(f) Vacancies on the Board occasioned by removal, resignation, 
expiration of term, or otherwise will be reported in writing to the City 
Administrator of the City by the Board. The vacancy will be filled in 
like manner as an original appointment, except that it will be done via 
a resolution of the Council. Appointments to fill vacancies will be for 
the unexpired portion of a term only. 

(g) The Council hereby authorizes and approves the Board to exercise 
those powers and fulfill such duties as are required or authorized for 
such Board under the SBD Act.  The City shall exercise all 
administrative functions of the Board.  

(h) The Board shall, within thirty days of notice that the Proposition 
passed at an election held in accordance with the SBD Act, fix a time 
and place for its annual meeting.  At each annual meeting, the Board 
shall adopt and then file with the Council a proposed annual budget 
for the District, which shall set forth the projected revenues and 
expenditures for the ensuing year; provided, however, that such 
proposal annual budget for the District is only a recommendation to 
the Council, and is not the final budget of the District unless 
approved by the Council.  

 
Section 5. The Mayor hereby appoints and the Council hereby consents 

to the appointment of the below-listed individuals to the District’s initial Board. 

Name Initial Term 
Expiration Date 

City’s Chief of Police, currently, Cheryl Funkhouser December 31, 2025 

City’s Finance Director, currently, Jeannette Kelly December 31, 2026 

City’s Director of Planning, currently, Justin Wyse December 31, 2026 

City’s Director of Public Works, currently, James Eckrich December 31, 2027 

City’s Director of Parks, currently, Mike Geisel December 31, 2027 



 

- 5 - 
 

Michael H. Staenberg December 31, 2028 

Timothy S. Lowe December 31, 2028 
 

Section 6. Pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council shall have all the 
powers necessary to carry out any and all improvements relating to the District 
described in this Ordinance and the Petition, and as further described in 
Section 71.796 of the SBD Act. 

 
Section 7. Pursuant to Section 71.808 of the SBD Act, the findings of 

the Council of the benefits to be derived by the District, as set out in this 
Ordinance and the Petition, shall be conclusive.  

 
Section 8. The WHEREAS clauses of this Ordinance are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 9. The Mayor of the City or his designated representatives are 
hereby authorized to take any and all actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate in order to carry out the matters herein authorized, with no such 
further action of the Council being necessary to authorize such action by the 
Mayor or his designated representatives.   
 

Section 10. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Council that 
each and every part, section, and subsection of this Ordinance shall be 
separate and severable from each and every other party, section, and 
subsection hereof and that the Council intends to adopt each said part, 
section, and subsection separately and independently of any other part, 
section, and subsection.  In the event that any part, section, or subsection of 
this Ordinance shall be determined to be or to have been unlawful or 
unconstitutional, the remaining parts, sections, and subsections shall be and 
remain in full force and effect, unless the court making such finding shall 
determine that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are 
incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

- 6 - 
 

Section 11. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 
after its passage and approval.  
 

Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 202__. 
 
 

   
________________________________                        _____________________________ 
 PRESIDING OFFICER          Bob Nation, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 
FIRST READING HELD: 10/7/2024 



 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

Petition 

(Attached hereto.) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

Report 

(Attached hereto.) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



____________________________________________________________________________

TO: Mayor & City Council

Date:  September 19, 2024

RE: Special Business District Petition – Downtown Chesterfield

SURVEY AND INVESTIGATION REPORT

The City of Chesterfield has received a petition to establish a Special Business
District (SBD) which generally encompasses the proposed Downtown Chesterfield
Development, with the notable exception of the Dillard’s parcel.  The creation of a
Special Business District was included and described in the approved
Redevelopment Plan for the Chesterfield Regional Tax Increment Financing District
as well as the approved development agreement with TSG Downtown Chesterfield
Redevelopment LLC.  As you are also aware, the City previously established the
Wildhorse Village Special Business District after receiving a petition and an
affirmative vote of the District property owners within the proposed district.  The
Wildhorse Village Special Business District is the companion district within the
southwest quadrant.  Consistent with the purpose of the Wildhorse Village Special
Business District, the intent of the Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District
is to provide funding to meet the public obligations created by the new development.

The purpose of this survey and investigation report is to determine the nature of
and suitable location for the SBD improvements, the approximate cost of acquiring
and improving the land therefor, the area to be included in the SBD, the need for
and cost of special services, and cooperative promotion activities, and the
percentage of the cost of acquisition, special services, and improvements in the SBD
which are to be assessed against the property within the SBD and that part of the
cost, if any, to be paid by public funds.

As has been discussed publicly and with City Council over the last three years, the
Downtown Chesterfield property owners are desirous of transferring the obligations
for maintenance of “PUBLIC” improvements to the City of Chesterfield.  Acceptance
of those obligations would, of course, create both financial and resource deficits
within the City.  In submitting the petition to establish the Special Business

Mike Geisel

City Administrator

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W

Chesterfield MO 63017

Phone 636-537-4711

Fax 636-537-4798

OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 2

District, the landowners are, in effect, funding the operation, maintenance, and
capital replacement of the improvements with self-generated SBD revenues.  This
structure also benefits the City, in that it funds the increased municipal obligations
associated with the development and the subsequent residences and businesses
which reside therein.  Please note, that once created, the SBD is a perpetual special
district which funds the provision of municipal services.  Funds generated by the
SBD are only those necessary to provide for the expenses within the district and
cannot otherwise offset any existing municipal obligations or expenses.

The SBD may generally provide for certain services and public improvements listed
in the Act.  The SBD’s revenues may be put to use for all qualified and allowable
expenditures allowed under the Act including but not limited to:

 Maintenance, repair, and replacements of streets, street lighting, bike paths,
and pedestrian pathways;

 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within
City accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from
systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City);

 Security;
 Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight;
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of the public parking garage;
 Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public park including

programming for marketing and events; and
 All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district

located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District Act.

All of the foregoing qualified and allowable expenditures shall be spent exclusively
within the boundaries of the SBD, provided, however, that legal, insurance,
administration and financial oversight expenditures may be spent outside of the
boundaries of the special business district as long as they directly relate to the
geographical area of the SBD.

Also, the SBD may;

A. Cooperate with other public agencies and with any industry or business located
within the SBD in the implementation of any projects within the SBD.

B. Enter into agreements with any other public agency, any person, firm, or
corporation to effect any of the provisions contained in the Act.

C. Contract and be contracted with, and to sue and be sued.
D. Accept gifts, grants, loans, or contributions from the City, the United States of

America, the State of Missouri, political subdivisions, foundations, other public
or private agencies, individuals, partnerships or corporations.



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 3

E. Employ such managerial, engineering, legal, technical, clerical, accounting,
and other assistance as it may deem advisable.  The SBD may also contract
with independent contractors for any such instance.

It is not anticipated that any land acquisition is required in relation to the Special
Business District.  The intent of creating the SBD is to fund, to the greatest extent
possible, the expenses related to the obligations described herein, where revenues
are statutorily limited to $.85/$100 assessed valuation.  Subject to voter approval
and approval by the City of Chesterfield, the City of Chesterfield would administer
and be responsible for delivery of these services.

Missouri statutes 71.790 through 71.808 address the creation and operation of
Special Business Districts.  Once a petition has been received by a municipality, the
City may adopt a resolution of intent to establish the district, as requested.  The
City is then required to schedule a public hearing and notify all owners of record of
real property and licensed businesses within the proposed district.  The City is then
required to conduct and survey and investigation, and file a report with the City
Clerk for public inspection, prior to the hearing.

This communication is intended to fulfill the survey, investigation, and
report requirements as outlined by State statute.  I have compiled
information from each department within the City of Chesterfield
governmental function and summarized that information to meet the
statutory requirements.

Once the public hearing is closed, City Council may adopt an ordinance establishing
the SBD, establishing the initial rate of levy to be imposed and ordering an election of
the qualified voters to approve the SBD property tax and establishing an election date.
A simple majority of those voting is required for approval.

Geographic Description of the proposed Special Business District
The current land parcel of the proposed Special Business District consists of
approximately 100 acres which is dominated by the 1976 planned development of
Chesterfield Mall, including surrounding ancillary offices and/or restaurant sites.

A graphic legal description has been created and attached hereto for your reference
and convenience.

A metes and bounds survey has also been provided, attached immediately following
the graphic legal referenced previously,

Description of Planned Improvements
The proposed special business district includes ~100 acres of which is to be
developed as a dense, mixed-use development, including:



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 4

 2,538 residential units300 room hotel
 3,136,886 sq. ft. of non-residential (retail or office)

 Includes ~200,000 sq. ft. of distinctive retail
 Public Streets, landscaped islands, streetlighting, sidewalks, on-street

parking, irrigation
 Public parking garage ~ 1,068 spaces
 On-Street parking ~ 424 spaces
 ~3 acre park

Development of Downtown Chesterfield is anticipated to include 2,538 residential
units, a 300-room hotel, and more than 3 million square feet of commercial uses
(office, retail, restaurant). As such, this analysis provides an assessment based on the
planned densities at the time of analysis.  A development of this size is typically
constructed in phases, over an extended period of time.  While demolition is scheduled
to begin in October of 2024, core infrastructure construction is anticipated to begin
in late 2025, and vertical development would likely occur over the subsequent ten-
year period.

Existing Levels of Service
Missouri statute 71.798 clearly restricts any city creating a special district from using
SBD revenues to decrease the existing level of publicly funded services.  Accordingly,
it is critically important to develop and document the current level of effort and public
services required within the proposed Special Business District.

History of Chesterfield Mall
In 1974, Louis Sachs, a local real estate investor, sold the 60-acre area that would
eventually become the 1.3 million square foot Chesterfield Mall (the "Mall") to
Richard Jacobs of the Cleveland-based retail developer Richard E. Jacobs Group.
The Mall was built and eventually opened in 1976 as the sister mall to Jamestown
Mall, located in north St. Louis. The Mall had two original anchor stores: (1) Sears;
and (2) Stix, Baer, and Fuller. In 1978, a four-screen cinema opened on an
outparcel adjacent to the Mall. In 1981, a Famous-Barr store opened at the Mall. In
1984, Dillard's replaced Stix, Baer, and Fuller. In 1995, a new Famous-Barr store
was built adjacent to that store's former space, which JCPenney would later take
over. The Mall was renovated in 1996 with upgraded facades, interiors, and
amenities. Dillard's remained in operation until 2016 when flood damages caused
the temporary closure of the anchor. The temporary closure became permanent in
2017 due to dwindling Mall sales and changes in consumer behavior. Famous-Barr
remained a tenant until 2006 when it was replaced by Macy's, which has remained
in operation until this year. Other notable former tenants include Houlihan's (97’-
14'), California Pizza Kitchen (97’-18'), and Ann Taylor Loft (06’-20').



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 5

Ownership
Between 1976 and 2018, the Mall was owned by several groups. The Richard E
Jacobs Group sold the  Mall  to  Westfield  Group  in  2002.  In  2008,  the  Mall
was  acquired  by  CBL  &  Associates Properties. The Mall was placed in
receivership in the third quarter of 2016, pending foreclosure. Management was
transferred to Madison Marquette while a new owner was sought for the property.
The foreclosure was finalized in June 2017, making C-III Capital Partners the
temporary owner. In 2018, the Mall was acquired by Hull Property Group. In
February 2020, The Staenberg Group closed on a deal to acquire the Mall, most of
the Mall's anchor stores, and the Mall's outparcel properties for an undisclosed
price. The Dillard's building remains the property of Dillard Department Stores, Inc.

Decline
The Mall's decline can be traced back to 2000 when anchor tenants began to vacate
their locations. The four-screen cinema went through an ownership change in the
mid-90s which eventually led to the theater's closure on November 5, 2000.
Approximately five years later, the Mall's JCPenney store closed, and the space was
demolished, which made way for many smaller shops and restaurants, including
Borders Books1. The Cheesecake Factory, an American Girl store, a food court, and
a 14- screen AMC Megaplex opened between 2007 and 2018. The AMC Megaplex
takes up a third floor that was constructed in 2016. Border's Books closed in 2011
and was replaced with Books-A-Million and, later, V-Stock. In March 2018,
American Girl shuttered its location within the Mall. On May 31, 2018, Sears
announced it would be closing as part of a plan to close 72 stores nationwide,
including the location at the nearby South County Center. The Sears store closed in
September 2018, leaving Macy's as the last remaining anchor store.

The existing site consists of an obsolete, blighted, enclosed retail mall which
originally opened in 1976.  There are no existing residential housing, no public
recreational facilities.  Other than the perimeter patrols by law enforcement, or
perhaps an occasional inquiry for code enforcement, there are no municipal services
dedicated to this area.  Budget analysis has been developed to reflect the additional
level of service and the new resources required to provide the necessary capacity to
provide a high level of municipal services and oversight

The demolition of Chesterfield Mall is imminent, currently scheduled for demolition
to occur in October of 2024.  There are a few restaurants and offices which continue
to operate outside of the circumferential\perimeter roadway within the boundaries
of the special business district.  These properties are uniquely and solely served and
benefited by the proposed circumferential\perimeter roadway.  There are currently
no public roadways, amenities, or community facilities located within the proposed
Special Business District.



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 6

Concept plan for Special Business District



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 7



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 8



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 9

Description of obligations to be funded by the Downtown Chesterfield SBD

 Maintenance, repair, and replacements of streets. street lighting, bike paths,
and pedestrian pathways;

 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within city
accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from
systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City);

 Security;
 Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and
 All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district

located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District Act.
 And, to the extent that generated revenues are available, and as may be

recommended by the SBD advisory board:
o Maintenance, repair, and replacement of the public parking garage;
o Maintenance, repair and replacement of the public park including

programming for marketing and events;

In completing this survey and investigation, it is recognized that each public asset,
those physical constructed on-site (e.g. roads, signs, lights, pedestrian ways, seating),
and those which are required to provide service (e.g. vehicles and equipment), have
an expected service life.  As such, the estimates include approximations of the average
annual uniform cost for replacement.  These values are to be reflected as annual
capital replacement expenses.  They do not reflect an annual expense, but refer to the
annual life cycle expense.

Special Business District Revenues
While the property owner has initiated this petition to establish the Special
Business District, it is understood that the tax rate is to be established annually by
the Chesterfield City Council, not to exceed the statutory maximum rate of $.85 per
$100 of assessed valuation.  It is explicitly stated that the SBD will have no
obligation to fund maintenance, repair, or replacement of any facilities until such
time as the infrastructure has been constructed, inspected, and approved by the
appropriate agencies, and maintenance obligations will not be incurred until the
City of Chesterfield accepts those improvements proposed to be dedicated and
accepted by the City.  As such, the District anticipates that SBD tax revenues will
be implemented in a tax year preceding acceptance of the improvements to ensure
that the SBD has accumulated funds in the year prior to incurring maintenance
obligations.  It is also understood that per Missouri’s Hancock amendment, the tax
rate may not be increased concurrent with an assessment year, which occurs in odd
numbered years.  As such, the Council will likely establishment of the initial tax
rate in an even numbered year (non-assessment year), proceeding acceptance of any
municipal obligations to ensure that funds are accrued prior to incurring any
obligation.



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 10

When developing this analysis for revenue generation for the proposed business
district based, we based our estimates on the petitioners approved concept plan.
Throughout this analysis, we have utilized the Developer’s concept development
plan to project the composition of development within the SBD.

 2,538 residential units
 300 room hotel
 3,136,886 sq. ft. of non-residential (retail or office)

These values were then used to estimate the full built-out composition and an
associated market rate, assessment rate, assessed value and finally property tax
revenue which could be projected based in 2024 dollars.  That revenue can then be
compared to the fully built-out projected obligations of the district. Please note, that
we’ve estimated the mix of residential and commercial of varying typologies.  We
have also conservatively applied the market value of $225/sq. ft. for both office and
retail.  This intends to underestimate the potential revenue generation from new
office development, which would typically be valued at significantly higher rates.
However, since the mix of Commercial\retail is unknown, we applied the lesser,
more conservative value to the cumulative total.  Likewise, the residential mix is
also uncertain, so for analysis purposes we weighted the mix heavily towards the
lowest cost, rental market values.  It should be understood that this composition is
not intended to represent the proposed development mix, but to represent a
conservative revenue generating mix for forecasting purposes.

0.85

Units Count
Market
Value Rate

Assessed
Value

per $100
valuation

Residential
single family  Count 27 $1,000,000 0.19 $5,130,000 $43,605

condominium Count 300 $700,000 0.19 $39,900,000 $339,150
rentals Count 2,211 $275,000 0.19 $115,524,750 $981,960

Hotel Rooms 300 $70,000 0.32 $6,720,000 $57,120
Commercial

office or retail Sq. Ft. 3,136,886 $225 0.32 $225,855,792 $1,919,774

TOTAL $3,341,610

Fully built Out Revenue Estimate



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 11

Estimated future expenditures
For the purpose of this survey and investigation report, each municipal department
was tasked with estimating the cost of providing services and maintaining the
facilities as proposed by the SBD petition.  It should be noted and understood that
acceptance of these maintenance responsibilities is not expected to occur
immediately and will likely occur in phases over the next decade.  Full development
is expected to occur over a 10 to 15 year period.  The expense to provide the services
requested has been estimated for full build-out, in 2024 dollar values (e.g. those
estimates will be inflated due to the time interval between 2024 and when the
obligation occurs).  It is also understood that while the anticipated capacity is
estimated for full buildout, the capacity will be developed over time, in phases,
based on need and revenue generation.  Obviously, that assumption ensures that
expenses parallel and do not exceed the revenue generation of the SBD.

The costs described in each department’s analysis is not intended to reflect a future
annual budget request, but a current representation of those departmental
expenditures that would be expected.  The individual breakdown of expenditures
between personnel, contractual, commodities, and capital will certainly vary.  In
addition, amounts for Capital replacement represent future annualized costs, but
are not intended to represent an expense in a specific year. Finally, it should be
clear that SBD budgets must be reconciled with annual revenues and fund
balances.  It should also be understood that the mode of providing these services
has not been finalized.  It may well be the case that public works determines that
street maintenance within the SBD should be conducted by contractual methods as
contrasted to doing so with in-house forces.  Similar management decisions would
be considered in each area.  Those decisions would be made prior to the initiation of
any municipal obligations.

expense forecast

Law Public Parks, Rec Info Fin
Enforcement Works & Arts Planning Tech Admin

PERSONNEL $1,015,664 $135,000 $175,000 $94,000 $0 $94,000

CONTRACTUAL $25,000 $675,000 $3,600 $2,851 $25,000 $23,500

COMMODITIES $30,000 $0 $75,000 $2,851 $15,000 $23,500

CAPITAL $6,250 $18,000 $13,659 $0 $5,000 $0

ANNUALIZED $131,250 $375,000 $15,000 $0 $0 $0
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $1,208,164 $1,203,000 $282,259 $99,703 $45,000 $141,000

$2,979,126Total forecasted SBD Expenses

  Downtown Chesterfield Special Business District



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 12

The departmental estimates also reflect that the expenditures are not expanded
linearly, that a portion of the overall expenditures are fixed over-head and
embedded expenditures that would not increase proportionally with the addition of
the SBD.

Finally, it should also be noted that there are other revenues, albeit limited, that will
be derived from the development.  There will certainly be a nominal increase in
utility taxes, although it should be recognized that initially, 50% of any increase is
to be directed towards the Chesterfield Regional TIF.  The City of Chesterfield
receives no property taxes, so there are no associated increases in municipal
property taxes from the development.  Finally, much like the utility taxes, the
development will generate additional sales taxes, although the total proportion of
retail space within the southwest quadrant is not expected to increase significantly.
Regardless, the development will generate additional sales taxes.  However, it should
be acknowledged that the City will not receive the additional proportion of the
County-wide sales tax until after the 2030 census.  With regard to the local 1%
sales tax, 50% of any increase will be diverted to the Chesterfield Regional TIF
during its existence.

Conclusion:
Based upon our rigorous analysis, it is clear that the SBD is expected to adequately
fund the services requested in the landowner’s petition after full build-out.  Clearly
the SBD allows the City to provide the necessary services to the landowners,
residents, and businesses withing the development footprint, but it is also beneficial
to the existing businesses and residents of Chesterfield in that their service levels
are not detrimentally impacted by the increased demands.



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 13



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 14



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 15



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 16



Downtown Chesterfield – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
September 19, 2024
Page 17



 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

District’s Legal Description 

(Attached hereto.) 

  

 



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
Tracts of land being located in U.S. Surveys 415 and 2031, Township 45 North, Range 4 East of 
the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County, Missouri being more 
particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the southeastern corner of Lot C-108 of Chesterfield Village A Phase One Plat One, 
a  subdivision according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 158, Page 96 of the St. Louis 
County records, said point also being located on the northern  right-of-way line of West 
Chesterfield Parkway, variable width; thence along the eastern line of said lot C-108, North 02 
degrees 24 minutes 55 seconds East, 153.50 feet to the northeastern corner thereof, thence along 
the northeastern lines of said Lot C108 and Lot 1 of the Chesterfield Village Area “A” Phase One 
Plat One Lots C109 and C208 Lot Consolidation Plat, a subdivision according to the plat thereof 
as recorded in Plat Book 367, Page 521 of above said records, the following courses and 
distances: North 52 degrees 55 minutes 05 seconds West, 837.00 feet; North 18 degrees 15 
minutes 05 seconds West, 305.01 feet and North 64 degrees 14 minutes 40 seconds West, 41.67 
feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 432.82 feet; thence along 
said curve with an arc length of 106.89 feet and a chord which bears South 60 degrees 42 minutes 
11 seconds West, 106.62 feet; South 53 degrees 37 minutes 42 seconds West, 8.62 feet to the 
beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 337.50 feet an arc length of 245.60 
feet and a chord which bears South 74 degrees 28 minutes 29 seconds West, 240.22 feet and 
North 84 degrees 40 minutes 43 seconds West,  14.47 feet to the eastern right-of-way line of 
West Chesterfield Parkway, 73 feet wide, said point also being located on a curve to the right 
having a radius of 763.50 feet; thence said eastern right-of-way line the following courses and 
distances: along said curve with an arc length of 120.92 feet and a chord which bears North 07 
degrees 07 minutes 21 seconds East,120.79 feet; North 11 degrees 34 minutes 18 seconds East, 
735.22 feet to the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 3,036.50 feet; thence along 
said curve with an arc length of 79.87 feet  and a chord which bears North 10 degrees 49 minutes 
05 seconds East 79.87 feet; North 10 degrees 03 minutes 52 seconds East, 1,599.81 feet; to the 
beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 1,113.50 feet; thence along said 
curve with an arc length of 270.65 feet and a chord which bears North 17 degrees 03 minutes 37 
seconds East, 269.98 feet to its intersection with the southern right-of-way of Interstate Route 64, 
variable width; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: North 71 
degrees 18 minutes 34 seconds East, 135.85 feet; South 69 degrees 05 minutes 12 seconds 
East, 32.21 feet and South 59 degrees 27 minutes 08 seconds East, 11.64 feet to the 
northwestern corner of a tract of land as conveyed to the First Baptist Church of Chesterfield by 
instrument recorded in Book 5232, Page 199 of above said records; thence along the western, 
southern and eastern lines of said First Baptist Church Of Chesterfield tract the following: South 
34 degrees 10 minutes 42 seconds West, 180.51 feet; South 55 degrees 53 minutes 57 seconds 
East, 137.63 feet; North 34 degrees 59 minutes 14 seconds East, 43.04 feet; North 15 degrees 
05 minutes 31 seconds East, 47.83 feet; North 27 degrees 03 minutes 39 seconds East, 17.67 
feet and North 35 degrees 05 minutes 18 seconds East, 82.29 feet to  the southern right-of-way 
of above said Interstate Route 64; thence along said right-of-way line South 59 degrees 27 
minutes 08 seconds East, 84.03 feet and South 33 degrees 54 minutes 09 seconds East, 408.23 
feet to the eastern line of above said Chesterfield Village Area "A" Phase One Plat Two the 
following courses and distances: South 02 degrees 31 minutes 14 seconds West, 74.82 feet; 
South 28 degrees 18 minutes 26 seconds West, 85.00 feet; South 60 degrees 52 minutes 26 
seconds West, 334.47 feet; South 08 degrees 46 minutes 20 seconds West, 827.12 feet to the 



northwest corner of Adjusted New Section B of the Boundary Adjustment Plat as recorded in Plat 
Book 372, Pages 373 and 374 of the above said records; thence along the northern lines of said 
Adjusted New Section B the following courses and distances: South 75 degrees 34 minutes 41 
seconds East, 51.88 feet;  South 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East, 123.89 feet and North 
77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 143.58 feet; thence departing said northern line the 
following courses and distances: South 12 degrees 23 minutes 25 seconds East, 245.62 feet; 
North 77 degrees 36 minutes 34 seconds East, 106.66 feet; North 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 
seconds West, 5.73 feet; North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 451.32 feet; South 12 
degrees 26 minutes 49 seconds East, 13.15 feet; North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 
422.43 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right; having a radius of 500.16 feet; 
along said curve with an arc length of 62.49 feet and a chord which bears South 25 degrees 27 
minutes 14 seconds East, 62.45 feet and North 77 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 61.46 
feet to the west line of Lot C-106 of  Chesterfield Village, Area A, Phase One Plat One, as recorded 
in plat Book 158, Page 96 of above said records, said point also being located on a non-tangent 
curve to the left having a radius of 515.00 feet, saif point also being located on the northeastern 
line of Adjusted Lot C-101C of above said Boundary Adjustment Plat; thence along the 
northeastern and northern lines of said Adjusted Lot C-101C the following courses and distances: 
along last said curve with an arc length of  168.25 feet and a chord which bears North 33 degrees 
39 minutes 38 seconds West, 167.50 feet; North 42 degrees 50 minutes 52 seconds West, 411.70 
feet; North 42 degrees 53 minutes 57 seconds West, a distance of 124.85 feet; South 47 degrees 
06 minutes 03 seconds West, 5.00 feet; to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having 
a radius of 400.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 307.06 feet and a chord which bears 
North 64 degrees 53 minutes 28 seconds West, 299.58 feet: North 12 degrees 26 minutes 49 
seconds West, 397.78 feet and North 54 degrees 13 minutes 23 seconds East, 121.24 feet to its 
intersection with the southern right-of-way line of Chesterfield Airport Road, variable width, said 
point also being located on a curve to the left having a radius of 2,914.93 feet; thence along said 
right-of-way line the following courses and distances: southeasterly along said curve with an arc 
length of 477.12 feet and a chord which bears South 40 degrees 27 minutes 57 seconds East, 
476.59 feet; South 44 degrees 50 minutes 42 seconds West, 10.00 feet; to the beginning of a 
curve to the left having a radius of 2,924.93 feet an arc length of  297.79 feet and a chord which 
bears South 48 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds East, 297.66 feet; South 33 degrees 45 minutes 
48 seconds East, 104.87 feet; South 49 degrees 19 minutes 35 seconds East, a distance of 99.00 
feet; South 58 degrees 34 minutes 34 seconds East, 15.00 feet; North 10 degrees 39 minutes 45 
seconds East, 54.56 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 
2,914.93 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 54.29 feet and a chord which bears South  
55 degrees 13 minutes 15 seconds East, 51.79  feet; South 37 degrees 49 minutes 25 seconds 
East, 51.79 feet and South 57 degrees 07 minutes 42 seconds East,  446.22 feet to the northwest 
corner of that part of Chesterfield Center vacated by City of Chesterfield Ordinance Number 511, 
and recorded in Book 8872, Page 2431 of above said records; thence along the north, east and 
south lines of said vacation the following  courses and distances: continuing  Southeasterly along 
last said line, South 57 degrees 07 minutes 42 seconds East,  21.18 feet; South 42 degrees 52 
minutes 34 seconds East, 8.16 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a 
radius of 61.00 feet, an arc length of 31.10 feet and a chord which bears South 13 degrees 33 
minutes 13 seconds West, 30.76 feet; South 28 degrees 09 minutes 48 seconds West, 126.11 
feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 495.58 feet, an arc length of  17.10 
feet and a chord which bears South 29 degrees 09 minutes 07 seconds West 17.10 feet; South 
30 degrees 07 minutes 59 seconds West, 34.42 feet and North 69 degrees 47 minutes 38 seconds 



West, 5.45 feet to the northeastern corner of Lot C-105 of Chesterfield Village Area “A” Phase 
One Plat One as recorded in Plat Book 158, Page 69 of above said records; thence along the 
eastern line of said Lot C-105 the following courses and distances: South 20 degrees 43 minutes 
6 seconds West, 52.71 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 
311.50 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 172.85 feet and a chord which bears South 04 
degrees 21 minutes 54 seconds West, 170.65 feet; South 11 degrees 20 minutes 24 seconds 
East, 157.91 feet; to the beginning of a curve to the curve to the right, having a radius of 250.00  
feet; along said curve with an arc  length of 104.36 feet and a chord which bears South 00 degrees 
38 minutes 16 seconds West, 103.60 feet and  South 12 degrees 34 minutes 14 seconds West, 
149.04 feet to the north line of Lot C-102 of above  Chesterfield Village Area “A” Phase One Plat 
One, said point also being located on a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 373.00 
feet; thence along said north line and last said curve with an arc length of  137.75 feet and a chord 
which bears South 70 degrees 43 minutes 56 seconds East, 136.97 feet; thence South 11 
degrees 41 minutes 44 seconds East,  41.56 feet to the western right-of-way line of Clarkson 
Road, variable width thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: 
South 34 degrees 27 minutes 25 seconds West,  386.00 feet; South 23 degrees 33 minutes 07 
seconds West,  181.60 feet; South 31 degrees 08 minutes 12 seconds West,  828.33 feet and 
South 85 degrees 41 minutes 13 seconds West,  26.89 feet to the northern right-of-way line of 
above said West Chesterfield Parkway, said point also being located on a curve to the left having 
a radius of 1,060.17 feet; thence along said right-of-way line the following courses and distances: 
along said curve with an arc length of 334.12 feet and a chord which bears North 73 degrees 49 
minutes 52 seconds West, 332.74 feet; North 82 degrees 51 minutes 36 seconds West,  126.21 
feet; North 82 degrees 52 minutes 12 seconds West,  37.73 feet and South 86 degrees 45 minutes 
4 seconds West,  35.95 feet  to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 
Containing 4,395,040 square feet or 100.896 acres, more or less, according to calculations 
performed by Stock & Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc on August 29, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 


	2024-11-18 Paragraphs
	2024.10 Excess Checks Report
	2024-10-21 City Council Minutes
	ARB Reappointment Memo
	2024-11-18 Public Street Acceptance
	Resolution FY 2025 Budget
	Forestry Management Packet - signed
	Dog Park Fee Memo-signed
	Alan Politte Emeritus - signed
	2024 North Outer 40 Sanitary Sewer Project
	2023PW10 Recommendation Exhibit
	2023PW10 Kelpe Bid
	2023PW10 Bid Tabulation

	Parks Vehicle Early order recommendation
	SUSHI BOAT
	Parks Grant acceptance agreement
	2024-11-18 16A & 17A Schaeffer's Grove BAP
	2024 Central Park Playground
	Play & Park Structures Quote (2)
	796-167075E_Central Park_(Chesterfield MO)_2DT
	Sheets and Views
	PPS 24x36 Standard


	Signed Resolution Central Park Playground
	Parks Grant acceptance agreement
	Doc1
	Round 25 MUNI Grant memo 2

	2025 Proposed Budget
	2024-11-18 PZ 08 CC Packet
	2024-10-07 Dwntwn SBD
	11-07-2024 Planning and Public Works Committee Minutes
	2024.10 Excess Checks Report



